CABINET
Date:

Monday 30 November 2020

Time:

5.00 pm

Venue:

Meeting to be held via Microsoft Teams – please click here

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Leader of the Council, Councillor Jack Hopkins
Deputy Leader of the Council (Housing and Homelessness), Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite
Deputy Leader of the Council (Sustainable Transport, Environment and Clean Air), Councillor Claire
Holland
Cabinet Member for Planning, Investment and New Homes, Councillor Matthew Bennett
Cabinet Member for Children and Young People, Councillor Ed Davie
Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care (job share), Councillor Jim Dickson and Councillor Danny
Adilypour*
Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Community Safety, Councillor Jacqui Dyer
Cabinet Member for Voluntary Sector and Leisure, Councillor Donatus Anyanwu
Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance, Councillor Andy Wilson
Cabinet Member for Equalities and Culture, Councillor Sonia Winifred
*non-voting

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Christian Scade, Telephone: 020 7926 0045; Email: cscade@lambeth.gov.uk

Published on: Friday 20 November 2020

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How to access the meeting
This meeting will be held in accordance with Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020 and the related
Regulations which details that members of the public and press be provided access to the meeting
through remote means, such as video conferencing and live streaming as provided by the link below.

For Members of the Public
This is a Microsoft Teams Live Event meeting. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking here will take
you to the meeting page where you will be prompted to download the app or watch on the web instead.
Please follow the instructions to watch on the web. On doing so, you can join our live event
anonymously.
Members of the public wishing to make representations at this meeting must inform Democratic Services
(see front page for contact details) by 12pm on Friday 27 November 2020.

For Members of the Committee
Please refer to the joining instructions you have already received – do not use the link above.

For elected Members of the Council
Councillors who are not members of the Committee but wish to attend the meeting must inform
Democratic Services by 12pm on Friday 27 November 2020.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever,
nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair
of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption
caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Speaking rights at Cabinet meetings






Cabinet normally has a large amount of business to consider at each meeting; accordingly, the
order of the agenda and time allowed for each item is decided by the Leader of the Council
beforehand;
Cabinet expects there to have been prior consultation with the public and other interested parties
on proposals and a summary of the results to be included in the report. Therefore, oral
contributions from members of the public at the meeting should not normally be necessary;
the time available may allow contribution(s) to be heard on reports on the agenda but this is
entirely at the discretion of the Leader of the Council. Anyone wishing to speak must advise
Democratic Services before the day of the meeting, advising what aspect not covered in the report
they wish to cover;






any such contributions are required to be brief; a maximum of three minutes is likely to be
available;
speakers should ideally be on behalf of a number of people or a specific group;
speakers will be advised at the meeting whether and when they will be heard; and,
Councillors may speak at the discretion of the Chair on agenda items, and are entitled to speak
on matters that specifically concern their ward.

AGENDA

Page
Nos.

1.

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
Under Cabinet Rule 1.5.2, where any Cabinet Member has a
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of
Conduct (para. 4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the
Council, a committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must
withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of the
consideration of that matter and must not participate in any vote on
that matter unless a dispensation has been obtained from the
Monitoring Officer.

2.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

1-4

3.

Lambeth Skills and Employment Strategy

5 - 98

4.

Direct Labour Organisation (Housing Services)

99 - 132

5.

Lambeth Made Safer Strategy

133 - 188

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

Page 1

CABINET MINUTES
Monday 19 October 2020 at 5.00 pm
Held virtually via Microsoft Teams
Present:
Cabinet Member:

Portfolio:

Councillor Danial
Adilypour*
Councillor Donatus
Anyanwu
Councillor Matthew
Bennett
Councillor Jennifer
Brathwaite
Councillor Edward Davie

Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care (job-share)

Councillor Jim Dickson

Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care (job-share)

Jacqui Dyer

Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Community Safety

Councillor Claire Holland

Deputy Leader of the
Environment and Clean Air)

Councillor Andy Wilson

Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance

Councillor Sonia Winifred

Cabinet Member for Equalities and Culture

Apologies for absence

Councillor Jack Hopkins

Also present:

Councillor Mary Atkins, Councillor Pete Elliott and Councillor Nicole
Griffiths

Cabinet Member for Voluntary Sector and Leisure
Cabinet Member for Planning, Investment and New Homes
Deputy Leader of the Council (Housing and Homelessness)
Cabinet Member for Children and Young People

Council

(Sustainable

Transport,

*non-voting

1.

DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST
There were none.

2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 September 2020 be approved
as a correct record of the proceedings.

3.

LAMBETH’S CORPORATE CARBON REDUCTION PLAN ANNUAL UPDATE
Councillor Claire Holland, Deputy Leader (Sustainable Transport, Environment and Clean Air),
introduced the report and provided an update on progress that had been made in developing

Page 2
and implementing the council’s corporate carbon reduction plan. It was noted, following the
publication of the first corporate carbon reduction plan in 2019, that it had been agreed to report
to Cabinet annually on progress.

Councillor Holland also provided a summary in relation to the carbon baseline. It was explained
that this had been developed over the past year and provided a starting point for reduction
measures and would underpin an action plan. This would allow progress to be measured in
relation to the council’s target of reaching carbon neutrality by 2030.

Councillor Nicole Griffiths, Co-Leader of the Opposition, and Councillor Pete Elliott made
representations which focussed on:
-

Concerns that, in their opinion, there was not a clear joined up strategy in place for
Lambeth to address the climate emergency and that some actions had not been
actioned quickly enough.

-

The need to increase the number of stakeholders, including local residents and
businesses, involved in developing climate change plans and projects.

-

The importance of taking action across the Council, with buy in from senior
management, to ensure commitments on climate change were delivered.

-

The benefits of retrofitting at scale, especially with the Council working with London
South Bank University to deliver training and employment opportunities for local
residents.

-

The need for system change to ensure greater focus on health and wellbeing.

-

Concern that carbon budgets had not been set for either the corporate baseline or the
borough wide baseline.

-

Environmental concerns in relation to estate regeneration, demolition of housing and the
Homes for Lambeth business plan.

-

Requests for further information in relation to actions the Housing Directorate would be
taking to reduce carbon emissions.

-

The need for a more robust plan, with both an emissions reduction pathway and carbon
removal pathway in place, in order to reach the target of carbon neutrality by 2030.

In response to questions about senior management support, the Director of Planning, Transport
and Sustainability provided an update on governance arrangements and resources in place to
support the climate change response programme. This included information on the work of the
Climate Change Response Board, which included input from senior officers from across the
Council, an update on the work that had been undertaken by the Council’s Management Board,
and details of various business as usual activities which had been progressed across the
Council to support the corporate goal of reaching carbon neutrality by 2030. Information was
also provided on additional resources which had been made available, including the scaling up

Page 3
of the Climate Change and Sustainability team.

In response to questions, the Assistant Director for Sustainable Growth and Climate Change
Response provided further information on actions and areas of activity that the Council would be
taking forward to reduce its corporate carbon emissions, including details in relation to
workstreams sponsored by the Director for Housing.

During the discussion that followed, Cabinet considered a wide range of issues, including
matters relating to:
-

Investing in the Council’s housing stock, to achieve the highest possible sustainability
ratings, and ensuring all new council homes were built to the highest efficiency
standards.

-

The importance of building partnerships and relationships with others, across the
borough, to ensure action to reduce carbon emissions had most impact.

-

The impact of Covid-19 and ensuring the Council’s response to the pandemic was
aligned with its commitments on climate change.

-

The additional, and important, work that was required to build greater understanding of
the equalities impacts of climate change, including opportunities for action and
mitigation.

-

The use of technology, including the retrofitting of public buildings, to reduce carbon
emissions.

-

The development of an Energy Strategy to help reduce both corporate and boroughwide
emissions.

-

The importance, and challenges, associated with tackling emissions from gas and
electricity use.

-

Requirements for future procurement exercises to consider carbon emissions and for
suppliers to work towards carbon neutrality.

In conclusion, Cabinet paid tribute to both Councillor Holland’s leadership and the excellent
work that had been undertaken by officers in developing and implementing the council’s
corporate carbon reduction plan.

RESOLVED:
(1) That the update in the report presented be noted.
(2) That the additional actions to be taken by the council to reduce carbon emissions, as set out
in the corporate carbon reduction plan, be agreed.
The meeting ended at 6.06 pm
CHAIR, CABINET
Monday 30 November 2020

Page 4
Date of Despatch: Friday 23 October 2020
Call-in Date: Friday 30 October 2020
Contact for Enquiries: Christian Scade
Tel: 020 7926 0045
E-mail: cscade@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

CABINET
30 NOVEMBER 2020
Report title: Lambeth Skills and Employment Strategy
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Community Safety: Councillor Jacqui Dyer
Report Authorised by: Strategic Directors for Sustainable Growth and Opportunity: Eleanor
Purser and Sara Waller
Contact for enquiries: John Bennett, Head of Economic Inclusion, 0207 926 6452,
jbennett7@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
The Council, along with partners from the Lambeth Skills and Employment Board, have developed a Skills
and Employment Strategy. The strategy provides a framework of employment, skills and training priorities
and actions that contribute to the delivery of the Borough Plan goal to enable communities to be resilience
and to benefit from the opportunities in Lambeth and London. It is based on analysis of relevant economic
data as well as qualitative feedback from residents, employers and partners about the steps that are
needed to ensure residents have access to jobs and training. The strategy seeks to address inequalities
which currently exist in the local labour market, respond to the economic impact of COVID-19 and take a
systemic approach to improving the skills offer in the borough.

Finance summary
The recommended 3-year strategy will inform how future resources are allocated to meet future job and
growth objectives and priorities.
Its proposed that any actions arising from the report will be funded through section 106, community
infrastructure levy (CIL), grants, and partnership funding.

Recommendations
(1) To approve the Lambeth Skills and Employment Strategy.

Page 6
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

The Council has developed a Skills and Employment Strategy. The purpose of the strategy is to
provide a framework of priorities and actions that contribute to the delivery of the Economic
Resilience Strategy and the goals of the Borough Plan.

1.2

Investment in employment support and skills training are important tools to create pathways into
fulfilling careers and ensure that the benefits of growth are available to all residents of the borough,
which also address household poverty.

1.3

The Council and partners are seeking systemic change that will better ensure programmes, projects
and opportunities available in the borough are better coordinated and targeted at those who need
them most. A range of partners have been involved in developing the strategy and this collaboration
and collective impact approach will continue in the future through the newly established Lambeth
Skills and Employment Board who will oversee the implementation of the strategy.

1.4

The strategy sets out how Council and partner employment and skills activities are aligned and
directed to:
 support long-term high value growth and investment in the borough;
 create opportunities for residents to access and retain stable and well-paid jobs; and
 remove barriers to employment and challenge exclusion through intensive engagement of
communities who experience disadvantage.

1.5

The strategy identifies the Council’s role in employment and skills and the role that partners play.
This continues to change to reflect national/regional policy (e.g. devolution of the adult education
budget to the GLA) and the local labour market. It also reflects the levers available to the Council
either through “hard power” (e.g. procurement and supply chains, planning system, commissioned
services) or “soft power” (e.g. influencing partners, encouraging employers to adopt certain
practices).

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

Lambeth is a thriving borough, home to many well skilled residents and a growing number of jobs.
Lambeth has gone through significant change over the last decade, with an expanding employment
base, a high business formation rate and a pipeline of major commercial developments, particularly
in the north of the borough. Since 2010, the number of businesses has increased by 50 per cent, the
number of jobs in Lambeth has increased by 21 per cent and the borough has an historically high
employment rate.1 Population has also grown over this period by 9.4 per cent,2 characterised by
young working age people moving into the borough to access higher education and the capital’s
labour market. These changes have contributed to Lambeth’s attractiveness as a place to live and
enhanced its importance as a business, cultural and residential centre in London. COVID-19 has
had a significant economic impact which has seen unemployment grow sharply and further
uncertainty about the speed and timing of economic recovery.

2.2

Lambeth faces a number of challenges to ensure that the benefits of economic development are
shared by all residents. Growth creates a unique opportunity to invest in the future of Lambeth’s
communities to tackle long-standing issues of poverty and exclusion, sharply experienced by Black
residents and those with disabilities; to improve the skills and ability of residents to compete in the
London labour market; and to build pathways for young people from school into careers that enable
them to realise their full potential. Economic growth creates the means to transform life chances,

1
2

ONS (2018) BRES and APS data
ONS (2018) Mid-Year Population Estimates

Page 7
where the financial gains from new investment are directed into quality services that enhance
employability, raise skills and contribute to reducing inequality.
2.3

The production of a Skills and Employment Strategy for Lambeth shows where actions needs to be
focused to improve the effectiveness of the skills system to address issues where residents
experience structural barriers to accessing work or where the market reproduces inequalities that
have pervasive economic or social consequences..

2.4

Appendix One provides a summary of the economic context and challenges which have informed
the development of the strategy. This summary is based on an analysis of the data available on the
local labour market and economy, as well as insights from local partners, businesses and residents.
This context has been changed drastically with the impact of Covid-19.

2.5

Much of the economic data available does not yet reflect the changes that have happened over the
last six months, other than welfare benefit data which is published more regularly. This data shows
the huge increase in unemployment which has happened in Lambeth and across the country as a
result of the pandemic. In Lambeth the unemployment claimant count has increased from around
8,700 at the start of 2020 to over 21,000 in September. There are also high numbers of Lambeth
residents who have been furloughed. Predictions by the Bank of England and the Office for Budget
Responsibility suggest that 15-20% of those furloughed may lose their job once the scheme ends.
This would mean that unemployment in Lambeth to between 25,000-30,000 over the next few
months.

2.6

The huge uncertainty in the current and future economy needs to be acknowledged, with the
significant impact that COVID-19 has had on residents’ work and study, and this is reflected in the
strategy. Our approach will need to be reviewed and adapted as we learn more from a combination
of resident insight, delivery experience, wider policy and funding opportunities, and changes to the
economic context. Actions have been sequenced across the short (3-9 months), medium (9-18
months) and long-term (18 months +) with the greatest certainty being available in the actions over
the coming 12 months.

2.7

The strategy will be overseen by the Lambeth Skills and Employment Board (membership and
background are outlined in section 5). This is vital given how much we need to work in partnership
with other stakeholders to ensure we can achieve our priorities for skills and employment. The Board
will receive regular updates on the implementation of the strategy, including qualitative feedback
from residents, employers and providers. This will ensure that progress is being made and that our
collective efforts are remain agile and responsive to a changing economy and labour market.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

It is proposed that any actions arising from the report will be funded through section 106, community
infrastructure levy (CIL), grants and partnership funding.

3.2

If the strategy is approved by cabinet, separate reports will be required:
 to seek approval for CIL and s106 funding
 confirm costings for the proposed actions

3.3

Partners from the Lambeth Skills and Employment Board will also use their own resources to
contribute to the delivery of the strategy.

Page 8
4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

Section 15ZA (1) of the Education Act 1996 places a duty on the Council to secure that enough
suitable education and training is provided to meet the reasonable needs of persons in its area who
are over compulsory school age but under 19, and persons in their area who are aged 19 or over
and for whom an Education Health and Care plan is maintained.

4.2

Section 15B of the Education Act 1996 enables the council to secure the provision for their area of
full-time or part-time education suitable to the requirements of persons who have attained the age of
19, including provision for persons from other areas. This power includes the power to secure the
provision of training, including vocational, social, physical and recreational training.

4.3

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires the Council in the exercise of its functions to have due
regard to the need to:
 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other form of conduct prohibited
under the act; and,
 to advance equality of opportunity and to foster good relations between persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic (age, disability, gender re-assignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion and belief, sex, and sexual orientation) and
persons who do not share it.

4.4

Having regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share relevant
protected characteristics and persons who do not share it involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to:
 remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
 take steps to meet the needs of the persons who share that characteristic that are
different from the needs of persons who do not share it; and,
 encourage persons of the relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life
or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

4.5

The Equality Duty must be complied with before and at the time that a particular policy is under
consideration or decision is taken – that is, in the development of policy options, and in making a
final decision. A public body cannot satisfy the Equality Duty by justifying a decision after it has been
taken.

4.6

This proposed key decision was entered in the Forward Plan on 01 September 2020 and the
necessary 28 clear days’ notice has been given. In addition, the Council’s Constitution requires the
report to be published on the website for five clear days before the proposed decision is approved
by the Cabinet Member. Any representations received during this period must be considered by the
decision-maker before the decision is taken. A further period of five clear days - the call-in period –
must then elapse before the decision is enacted. If the decision is called-in during this period, it
cannot be enacted until the call-in has been considered and resolved.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1 The council is one of a number of key stakeholders in the development of the local economy. This
strategy has been produced through a process of ongoing engagement and consultation with a range
of partners including:
 Strategic partners such as Jobcentre Plus, Lambeth College, mental health services and social
housing Registered Providers;
 Local employment and training providers;
 Local enterprise providers;

Page 9



Local businesses and Business Improvement Districts; and,
Local funding organisations.

5.2

The strategy was originally in development before the Covid pandemic. An Advisory Group was
established to enable partners to contribute their experience and knowledge to the strategy’s
development. The Group met twice in late 2019 and a further meeting was planned for March 2020
but was postponed. The first meeting received presentations on the purpose of the group in
developing the strategy, and on the emerging themes from the analysis and research to date. This
was followed by small group discussions to look at the themes in more detail. The second meeting
focussed exclusively on apprenticeships. Apprentices from within the council and local partners were
also invited. There were presentations on what the data shows is the local picture with
apprenticeships, plus insights from employers and apprenticeship providers.

5.3

The advisory group has now been repurposed into a Skills and Employment Board for the borough.
The Board has ownership of the implementation of the Skills and Employment Strategy and will
coordinate the provision of employment and skills activities in line with the strategy. The Board has
met twice to consider the Skills and Employment Strategy on 8th September and 24th November, as
well as a dedicated equalities session on 16th November.

5.4

Membership of the Skills and Employment Board includes representatives from the following
organisations:



















5.5

Lambeth Council (Councillors plus various departments including Sustainable Growth and
Opportunity; Children’s Services; Adults and Health)
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group
Lambeth College
London South Bank University
Kings College London
Jobcentre Plus/Department for Work and Pensions
Morley College
Black Thrive
South Bank Employers’ Group/South Bank Business Improvement District (BID)
Brixton BID
Guys and St Thomas’ Charitable Trust
Walcot Foundation
Iconic Steps
LDN Apprenticeships
St Giles Trust
Spiral Skills
Berkeley Homes
Central London Forward

In addition, a number of workshops/meetings have taken place to delve into issues in more detail:


Opportunity Lambeth Provider Forum – workshop with 20 local employment support and training
providers to look at how local support could be better coordinated, identify current interventions
that are proving effective, and to source any insight providers have from their service users. This
has been supplemented by 1-1 discussions with these providers, as well as others operating in
the borough.

Page 10


Opportunity Lambeth Developer Forum – workshop with major local developers (some with
current sites, some with planned future sites) and training providers, discussions about how to
improve the perception of the construction sector for employment, promoting local employment
and training opportunities, and how the local employment and training system for construction
roles could be improved.



Health and Poverty Summit – major event in November 2019 attended by over 100 participants
to explore the links between poverty and health outcomes; two workshops on securing the health
of the working age population, which included how good quality employment and skills provision
can positively contribute to health outcomes.



Living Wage Week Celebration Events – taken place in 2019 and 2020, exploring what motivates
employers to pay the Living Wage and identifying employers who are prepared to be case
studies/promote the Living Wage, each attended by around 40 people from employers in
Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham.



Health in all Policies workshop – workshop with 25 health partners (e.g. hospitals, GPs) to look at
opportunities for integration of health and employment services, how to promote healthy
workplaces amongst employers, and career opportunities in health and social care.



Meetings with Kings College Hospital, Guys and St Thomas’ Hospital and Lewisham &
Greenwich Hospital – to discuss their current recruitment practices and skills gaps, and how they
can create good career pathways for local people.



Meeting with Careers Leads from Lambeth secondary schools – highlighting emerging priorities
of the strategy, with a focus on apprenticeships, and what it means for schools.



Equalities impact challenge session – workshop with people nominated by external partners to
consider the equalities impact of the strategy.

5.6

There has also been engagement directly with residents to explore some of the emerging issues:


Focus groups/interviews with people in low paid work – discussions about what support people
feel they need to progress into better paid work, and where they would go to seek help about
careers information, advice and guidance. Around 20-25 people were engaged.



Focus groups with parents looking for work – conducted by Lambeth Early Action Partnership
(LEAP) last year, with ongoing engagement and workshops with a group of interested parents.



Young People’s survey – linked to the work to tackle serious youth violence, questions were
included in the survey about education, employment and training. The survey was completed by
over 500 young people.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

There is currently significant uncertainty in the economy and labour market at a national, regional
and local level. The strategy will reflect the current thinking and forecasts but will need to be kept
under ongoing review to ensure it can be adapted to reflect any changed economic circumstances.

6.2

Through the Economic Resilience Strategy we are promoting economic recovery and growth in a
range of sectors, to make sure that the local economy is diverse and not reliant on one industry. We
are also working closely with our largest employers to ensure that the borough continues to meet

Page 11
their needs for a motivated and skilled workforce by improving the links between local employers
and schools and ensuring that local skills provision is led by the demands from employers.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

The strategy is based on an evidence base from an analysis of both quantitative and qualitative
information. This has allowed us to identify groups who need greater levels of support to benefit from
the economic growth that has already taken place in the borough and will continue over the coming
years.

7.2

The proposals set out in the strategy are intended to have a positive equalities impact through
addressing inequalities faced by some residents in the labour market. The Equalities Impact
Assessment and accompanying data analysis is included as Appendix 1. The Equalities Impact
Assessment was approved on 17th November 2020.

7.3

Our focus is on interventions that support those most likely to be disproportionately affected by
unemployment, insecure work and low skills. These groups will be prioritised in the design and
commissioning of services by the Council and its partners:
● Residents from Black and Minority Ethnic backgrounds
● Young people who are care leavers, not in education, employment or training, or at risk of
becoming NEET such as those known to the criminal justice system
● People who are homeless or at risk of homelessness
● People with health conditions and disabilities, including mental health problems, and their
carers
● Parents with young children
● People at risk or victims of domestic violence
● People aged 50 and above

7.4

We will focus employment support and adult learning on sections of the community furthest from
employment. Through the provision of intensive support, delivered in neighbourhoods, to raise skills
and remove barriers to work, we aim to close employment and skills gaps for our target groups
above.

7.5

Working with employers, communities and training providers we will significantly expand the creation
and take-up of apprenticeships. This will entail a range of actions to improve information and support
for apprenticeships locally and building partnerships with major employers and business networks
to champion the take up of apprenticeships.

7.6

Ensuring that all young people have a range of pathways from school into further education,
vocational training and employment is a vital part of our goal to close opportunity and attainment
gaps. With many of the traditional routes into professional careers gone and a growing number of
young people trapped in low paid and low skilled jobs, it is vital that, with partners, we innovate to
tackle disadvantage and support young people to make informed choices about their future careers,
including a systematic approach to work experience and apprenticeships.

7.7

To grow local employment and enable local residents to access the opportunities being created
requires collective action, involving business, public agencies and local residents. Working closely
with partners we will engage with employers in the borough to increase access to local jobs and
encourage them to offer fair contracts and wages. Local recruitment and better jobs are important
for residents, but also bring significant benefits for employers who gain access to skilled and
productive workers.

Page 12
7.8

Improving skills and access to learning is a key part of our goal to realise inclusive growth in Lambeth.
We intend to create a skills system that works for residents and employers. With partners we will
ensure that the quality and relevance of skills training reflects labour market demand and also
provides a strong foundation for young people and adults to access employment and invest in lifelong
learning.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

Being in employment, education or training is a preventative factor in reducing the likelihood of
someone being involved in serious youth violence and other offending. There are links between the
Skills and Employment Strategy and the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

Environmental
Jobs being created in low carbon sectors and the green economy are recognised as being likely to
grow in the coming years. Measures outlined in this strategy will ensure local residents are aware of
these opportunities and provided with the necessary skills and qualifications to succeed in this
sector. Growth of the low carbon economy will directly contribute positively to borough’s efforts to
tackle climate change.
Health
Implementation of these recommendations would be expected to have a positive impact on health
outcomes given the positive correlation between being in employment and good health and
wellbeing. Higher levels of employment in the borough will provide not just economic benefits but
also will help deliver increased wellbeing amongst local residents.
Corporate Parenting
Care Leavers are recognised in the strategy as a priority group, highlighting that the Council and
partners will be increasing efforts to ensure they have access to high quality careers support,
relevant skills and qualifications, and local job opportunities. The actions in this strategy should
increase the number of Care Leavers who are in education, employment or training.
Staffing and accommodation
None.
Responsible Procurement
Approval of the strategy by Cabinet will lead to the Council and partners commissioning a range of
services to enable the delivery of the actions outlined in the strategy.
Good Quality Jobs with Fair Pay and Decent Working Conditions
The strategy outlines why good quality jobs with fair pay and decent working conditions are
important, and maintains commitments to promoting the London Living Wage locally including
through the Council’s own supply chain.
Quality Apprenticeships, targeted Employment for Lambeth residents and Lambeth Priority Group
The strategy outlines why apprenticeships and local employment opportunities are needed and
which residents are in a priority group. The strategy will enable an increase in the availability of local
apprenticeships and greater equality in employment and skills outcomes.
Reduce Emissions: Lambeth Council has a commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030

Page 13
9.8

Not applicable.

9.9

Single Use Plastics
Not applicable.

Positive Health and Wellbeing
9.10 As outlined in 9.2.
Other Offers (Innovation)
9.11 Not relevant.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 The timetable is as follows:
15th October 2019
4th December 2019
8th September 2020
23rd September 2020
24th November 2020
30th November 2020
December 2020 onwards

First Advisory Group meeting
Second Advisory Group meeting
First meeting of the Lambeth Skills and Employment Board
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Second meeting of the Lambeth Skills and Employment Board
Cabinet
Implementation of the strategy, subject to Cabinet approval

Page 14
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Jacqui Dyer
Eleanor Purser and Sara
Waller, Strategic Director
Paul Badiani, Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
Greg Carson, Legal
Services
Maria Burton, Democratic
Services
Nabeel Khan, Director
Lesley Robinson, Head of
Adult Learning
All Board Members

Lambeth directorate /
department or partner
Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills
and Community Safety
Sustainable Growth and
Opportunity
Finance and Investment

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments in
paragraph:

17.11.20

17.11.20

16.11.20

17.11.20

16.11.20

17.11.20

3

Legal and Governance

16.11.20

17.11.20

4.3-4.5

Legal and Governance

16.11.20

17.11.20

4.1-4.2

Legal and Governance

16.11.20

17.11.20

4.6

Economy, Culture and Skills

16.11.20

17.11.20

Economy, Culture and Skills

16.11.20

17.11.20

Lambeth Skills and Employment
Board

09.11.20

18.11.20

Appendix

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

Appendices

03.10.19
18.11.20
19.11.20
No
Yes
01.09.20
Meets community impact test
None
Appendix One: Equalities Impact Assessment including
Economic Analysis
Appendix Two: Lambeth Skills and Employment
Strategy

Proposal Title

Skills and Employment Strategy
The Council is currently preparing a Skills and Employment Strategy. The purpose of the strategy is to provide a
framework of priorities and actions that contribute to the delivery of the Economic Resilience Strategy and the
goals of the Borough Plan.

1a. What is
changing?

The Council and partners are seeking systemic change that will better ensure programmes, projects and
opportunities available in the borough are better coordinated and targeted at those who need them most.
The production of a Skills and Employment Strategy for Lambeth provides an opportunity to improve the
effectiveness of the skills system to address issues where residents experience structural barriers to accessing
work or where the market reproduces inequalities that have pervasive economic or social consequences.
Cabinet will be asked to approve the strategy and it's supporting actions.
Cabinet; Lambeth Skills and Employment Board

Unemployment in Lambeth has increased considerably over the last six months due to the economic impact of
Covid-19. The claimant count has increased from 8,700 in January 2020 to over 21,000 in September. It is
predicted to rise further to 25,000-30,000, especially as the Job Retention Scheme (furlough) ends.
2a. What do we
know about the
people who will
be impacted by
this change?

Prior to the pandemic, Lambeth had benefited from consistent economic growth. The number of jobs in the
borough had increased by 22% between 2009-2019 and the number of businesses had increased by 40%
between 2012-2019. Alongside this there was an increased employment rate among working age residents,
rising from 68.8 per cent in 2009 to 78 per cent in 2019, faster than the average for London. Across the working
age population there has been a significant increase in qualification levels, with 61.7 per cent of residents holding
level 4+ qualifications compared to 53.1 per cent average for London. However the benefits of that growth have
not always been felt equally by residents.

Page 15

1b. Who will be
involved in
approving this
decision?

Inequality
Employment rate data for Lambeth shows a substantial gap of 18 percentage points between Black and White
residents. This disparity of access is also found across unemployment benefit claimants, with Black residents
four times more likely to be unemployed than White residents. Less than half of disabled Lambeth residents are
in employment. The unemployment rate for residents aged 50+ is also disproportionately high. These patterns of
difference and structural exclusion are evident consistently across a range of indicators that begin with school
performance and extend into qualification levels and adult earnings.
Unequal access and barriers to progression have led to persistent gender, race and disability gaps that effectively
cap the ability of some residents to benefit from Lambeth’s economic growth. Under representation of women and
BAME groups in higher skilled and better paid jobs; a lack of flexible working opportunities; and limited affordable
childcare provision for working parents narrows access to employment. Other compounding issues include
physical and mental health difficulties, housing instability and offending histories.

These challenges are magnified across ethnic groups, with data indicating that Black working age residents have
around half the proportion of degree qualifications and double the proportion of level 1 qualifications of White
residents. Our high-quality local education and training providers offer a route for people to be able to improve
their qualification levels.
The challenge for Lambeth is to build on effective existing activity taking place in the borough to act with our partners
to remove structural barriers to work and skills. Collective action with employers, providers and communities can
address the risks of unemployment, low skills and insecure work that entrenches disadvantage for some Lambeth
residents.

Page 16

Despite rapid improvement in the number of residents with higher level qualifications in Lambeth, nearly one in
ten residents have level 1 or no qualifications, placing them at risk of low pay and unemployment. Employer
requirements in London mean that residents without at least a level 3 qualification will be at a disadvantage when
competing for jobs and more likely to become trapped in insecure employment. Lambeth employment rate is
nearly three times higher for people with level 4+ qualification (92%) than for people with level 1 or no
qualifications (34%).

Fair Pay and Good Work
Increasing the number of jobs in Lambeth is not enough. We need to do more to improve the quality of work. Too
many residents are working for wages below the London Living Wage or struggling with multiple insecure jobs.
Raising the quality of employment is important for residents, but also helps employers, who gain the full benefit of
a motivated, productive and committed workforce.
In Lambeth the percentage of jobs paid below the London Living Wage has been increasing over the last five
years. More than one in five employee jobs are below the London Living Wage, with this rate increasing faster
than the London average.
Low pay and insecure work particularly affect the most vulnerable, with around 7.5 per cent of young Londoners
aged 18 – 24 on zero-hour contracts; Black and Minority Ethnic workers are more than a third more likely to in
insecure employment than their White peers; and low-level qualifications strongly linked to low earnings.

Providing excellent careers information, advice and guidance alongside targeted mentoring and work experience
is vital to raise the aspirations of young people and connect them with opportunities for learning and work.
Effective support is founded on good information gained from working closely with young people. Identifying the
risks of young people not in employment, education or training (NEET) and having high performing destination
tracking are vital to ensure that every young person has help when they need it. We have a particular duty to our
Looked after Children, who are often the most vulnerable and at risk of exclusion.
The challenge is to engage young people, employers and training providers to map pathways from education,
focusing on those at risk of exclusion. Research in London has demonstrated the links between household

Page 17

Opportunities for Our Next Generation
Ensuring that all young people in Lambeth are supported to make an effective transition from school to further
learning and work, is essential to break patterns of exclusion and underachievement. The challenge is partly
about improving information and broadening horizons to help young people and their parents make better
choices. But it is also about addressing underlying problems of household poverty and the structural conditions
that limit access to training and employment. Recent data on achievement of five good GCSEs in Lambeth at age
18, shows a growing attainment gap of 16.4 percentage points between school pupils eligible for free school and
their peers not eligible for free school meals; marking the impact of low incomes on educational attainment.

unemployment and serious youth violence; making engagement in rewarding learning and work a vital tool to
break cycles of risk. Gaining the support of employers in Lambeth and elsewhere in central London to create
opportunities for experience, work and career development is essential.
Apprenticeships
Apprenticeships provide a real opportunity to expand the range of work-based training and pathways into
employment for young people and adults. However, in common with London, the take-up of apprenticeships by
employers in Lambeth has been low, fuelled by perceived problems of underfunding and administrative
complexity. The demand for apprenticeships among young people and adults has also been low.
Data to 2019 shows there were seven apprenticeship starts per 1,000 adult working age population in Lambeth;
the same as London, but less than half the national average. Nearly two thirds of apprenticeship starts were in
two sector skill areas - business administration and law; and health, public services and care.

There is a need for employers and training providers to more actively promote apprenticeships opportunities with
Lambeth residents, highlighting the advantages for long-term career development. There is also a need to
address the racial disparity in higher-level apprenticeships.
A changing economy
We recognise that the nature of work and the requirements for skills are being changed by the adoption of
technology in the workplace. Linked to the increasing professionalisation of employment is the application of
digital processes that are automating work tasks. Analysis indicates that up to one third of employment in London
is at risk, with administrative and operative jobs showing high potential for automation. This has significant
implications both for the long-term supply of digital basic skills, but also specific risks for women and young
people that currently rely on administrative process jobs as a key source of employment.

Page 18

From August 2019 to April 2020, 1,080 Lambeth residents started apprenticeships: the 5th highest number of
apprenticeships starts both in absolute terms and as a proportion of population (compared to the 12 other Central
London boroughs). The take-up of apprenticeships by BAME residents is high with 50% of apprenticeship starts.
However BAME residents are disproportionately over-represented in lower-level apprenticeships (Levels 2 and 3)
and under-represented in higher-level apprenticeships.

NESTA’s report “The Future of Skills. Employment in 2030” states there will also be opportunities from
automation and digital advances. But to benefit, the future workforce will need interpersonal, systems and higherorder cognitive skills. Their recommendations include that to help young people to prepare for uncertainty around
future employment, the education system must teach a much wider range of skills, including social and emotional
skills and creativity. This matches with the findings from the Durham Commission on Creativity and Education
which recommended that teaching for creativity in schools must be prioritised to equip young people with the
skills they need in later life
While we have some excellent education and training providers and a strong network of community-based
employment support organisations, there is a lack of strategic co-ordination of what is delivered. Fragmentation of
funding and planning arrangements limit our ability to focus on and expand good practice or to invest in new
areas of learning that reflect changes in the labour market. Addressing these challenges is essential to ensure
the volume and quality of learning and employment support.

The detailed economic analysis which has informed the strategy is attached as an appendix to this document.
The strategy is intended to have a positive impact on many residents, addressing the inequalities and challenges
highlighted above.
2b. How will they
be impacted by
the change?

The five objectives of the strategy are:
1. Create a skills and employment support system responsive to changes in the economy, employer demand
and the growth sectors of the future
2. Enable our residents to be more resilient and unlock their potential through upskilling, reskilling, training
provision and apprenticeships
3. Support our residents into employment pathways and entrepreneurial activity, with a particular focus on
our black, young and disabled residents

Page 19

To engage and support residents furthest from work and learning needs fresh approaches to how training is
structured. Our responses should take account of the importance of work-place learning, opportunities to join-up
services through local health and community facilities and creating effective progression routes to the higher-level
qualifications in demand within the London labour market.

4. Encourage our businesses to be inclusive and resilient, by tackling low pay, in-work poverty and to reduce
their carbon emissions.
5. Work with our anchor institutions and major employers to utilise our supply chains and increase spend with
local businesses

We will focus employment support and adult learning on sections of the community furthest from employment.
Through the provision of intensive support, delivered in neighbourhoods, to raise skills and remove barriers to
work, we aim to close employment and skills gaps for our target groups above.
Working with employers, communities and training providers we will significantly expand the creation and take-up
of apprenticeships. This will entail a range of actions to improve information and support for apprenticeships
locally and building partnerships with major employers and business networks to champion the take up of
apprenticeships.
Ensuring that all young people have a range of pathways from school into further education, vocational training
and employment is a vital part of our goal to close opportunity and attainment gaps. With many of the traditional
routes into professional careers gone and a growing number of young people trapped in low paid and low skilled
jobs, it is vital that, with partners, we innovate to tackle disadvantage and support young people to make informed
choices about their future careers.

Page 20

Within these objectives our focus is on interventions that support those most likely to be disproportionately
affected by unemployment, insecure work and low skills. These groups will be prioritised in the design and
commissioning of services by the Council and its partners:
● Residents from Black and Minority Ethnic backgrounds
● Young people who are care leavers, not in education, employment or training, or at risk of becoming NEET
such as those known to the criminal justice system
● People who are homeless or at risk of homelessness
● People with health conditions and disabilities, including mental health problems, and their carers
● Parents with young children
● People at risk or victims of domestic violence
● People aged 50 and above

To grow local employment and enable local residents to access the opportunities being created requires
collective action, involving business, public agencies and local residents. Working closely with partners we will
engage with employers in the borough to increase access to local jobs and encourage them to offer fair contracts
and wages. Local recruitment and better jobs are important for residents, but also bring significant benefits for
employers who gain access to skilled and productive workers.
Improving skills and access to learning is a key part of our goal to realise inclusive growth in Lambeth. We intend
to create a skills system that works for residents and employers. With partners we will ensure that the quality and
relevance of skills training reflects labour market demand and also provides a strong foundation for young people
and adults to access employment and invest in lifelong learning.

Alongside our partners in the Lambeth Skills and Employment Board, we recognise that we need to play a range
of different roles to achieve the positive changes in this strategy. These can be summarised as:
3a. How do you
plan to promote
and deliver any
positive impacts
of the proposal?







Advocates for the involvement and leadership of people with lived experience, so that solutions and
services are co-designed wherever possible, and lobbying to get the best deal for the borough
Navigators and coordinators – developing a more integrated system for employment and skills, with
clearer pathways across a range of provision to support people into good jobs based on well managed and
maintained relationships with key employers and sectors
Funders and commissioners – building and sharing an evidence-based approach to funding decisions
on programmes and services
Anchor institutions – ensuring jobs and opportunities are created directly within these employers, and
through supply chains
Providers – Lambeth has a large and responsive institutional and provider network, delivering education
and a wide range of vocational training and employment support services

Page 21

For each of the five objectives we have identified a set of strategic themes and delivery action. Actions have been
sequenced across the short (3-9 months), medium (9-18 months) and long-term (18 months +) with the greatest
certainty being available in the actions over the coming 12 months.



3b How do you
plan to address
and mitigate any
negative impacts
of the proposal?

Outcome of
equality impact
assessment

Implementation of the proposed strategy is not intended to have any negative impacts. The strategy does not
propose to end any existing services. Instead it proposes to better focus on employment support on those
residents facing greatest exclusion from the labour market; to work more closely with local employers to ensure
they are providing opportunities to local residents; and to improve the skills system in the borough so that
residents are equipped with the skills and qualifications required to thrive in the future economy.

Delivery of the Skills and Employment Strategy will be overseen by Lambeth Skills and Employment Board. This
is vital given how much we need to work in partnership with other stakeholders to ensure we can achieve our
priorities for skills and employment. The Board brings together partners from the public sector, education,
businesses, voluntary and community sector and training providers.
Included within the strategy are identified measures which will be used to assess whether the objectives of the
strategy are being met. The strategy also identifies specific actions which the council and partners need to take to
deliver the objectives. The Board will receive regular updates on the implementation of the strategy and the wider
economic context, to ensure that progress is being made and that the proposed priorities and actions remain
relevant.

No adverse impact, no change required

Page 22

4. How will you
review/evaluate
your proposal,
mitigating
actions and/or
benefits? Who
will be
responsible for
this?

Employers and businesses – providing good jobs and opportunities for local people, benefiting from a
committed and skilled local workforce

Page 23

Lambeth Skills and Employment Strategy
Economic Analysis

Page 24

Contents
Page
1. Introduction

11

2. The short-term economic impact of Covid-19

12

3. Lambeth Profile

17

4. Economic Structure

20

5. Employment and Skills Demand

26

6. Labour and Skills Supply

37

Appendix 1 – Data sources

60

- 10 -

Page 25

1.

Introduction

1.1

As part of the commitment to delivering inclusive growth in the borough, Lambeth Council is
producing a Skills and Employment Strategy. The Strategy sets out Lambeth’s priorities to
support local residents to improve their skills and qualifications, to access good quality
employment and reduce gaps in access and opportunity affecting a number of target groups
in the borough. The strategy is being developed on behalf of the Lambeth Skills and
Employment Board.

1.2

The evidence base used to develop the strategy has been drawn from a range of public sources
of data from national statistics, through London bodies (in particular the Greater London
Authority) and information from within Lambeth Council. In developing the Strategy,
information has been used to identify the key opportunities, challenges and trends affecting
Lambeth in order to inform the design of policy.

1.3

This data annex brings together the key information and data sources collected and used in
the production of the Skills and Employment Strategy. The first stage of the process of
researching and writing the Strategy was undertaken between August 2019 and January 2020.
Following the initial impact of COVID-19 this work was paused then restarted in July 2020. At
this point the main data sources were reviewed and updated where new data had been
released. Additionally a new section using more regularly updated data that shows the impact
of COVID-19 has been added. There are two benefits related data sources and data from the
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) that show some of the impact on residents. Given
the limited amount of data available we have also engaged with local partners and drawn on
regional data and research that has been collated and made available by the Greater London
Authority (GLA).

- 11 -

Page 26

2.

The short-term economic impact of COVID-19

2.1

There are three borough-level datasets available on a monthly basis that can be used to partly
understand the economic impact of COVID-19 on our residents, these are:

2.2



Unemployment claimant count



Universal Credit (UC) claimants



Government Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (furloughed employees)

This local level data has been supplemented with London level data and modelling form the
Greater London Authority Economics Team to help understand the broader economic and
employment context that Lambeth residents will be part of for the foreseeable future as the
regional economy recovers from the negative effects of COVID-19.

Recent Unemployment Claimant Trends
2.3

The Lambeth unemployment claimant count rose sharply from a historic low of just over 9,000
in March 2020 to almost 20,000 in May where it stabilized through the summer but rose again
to 21,500 in September.

Figure 0.1: Lambeth JSA Claimant Count by Month

2.4

The September claimant count represents 8.7% of residents aged 16-64, which is more than
the previous highest rate of 7.1% in October 2011 which was resulted from the impact of the
recession that followed the financial crash in 2008. That October 2011 high point represented
12,300 residents aged 16-64 claiming benefits, which highlights the magnitude of the
challenge now facing many residents in the borough.

2.5

All age groups saw an increase in claimant count but the 18-34 group saw the most significant
numeric increase between March and May. Those aged 45+ were affected but to a lesser
extent.

2.6

The split of male and female JSA claimants has remained at about the same proportions
between March and September with males at the higher rate.

2.7

Geographically all areas of the borough have been affected by significant increases in their
claimant count. Streatham South stands out as being significantly affected when compared to
the pre-COVID baseline, followed by Brixton Hill, Streatham Hill and Streatham Wells.

- 12 -

Page 27

Figure 0.3: % Change in Ward JSA Claimant Count Compared to January 2020

2.8

The Wards that have historically had the highest numbers of claimants remain the same as
before the impact of COVID. The highest instances of claimants is Coldharbour by around 30%
more than the next highest group of Tulse Hill, Vassall and Larkhall.

2.9

Claimant Count data available to us does not include splits by ethnicity so it is not possible to
undertake deeper analysis of impact in Lambeth.

Recent UC Claimant Trends
2.10 Overall, the Lambeth total UC claimant count (all purposes) has followed a similar trend to the
unemployment claimant count in recent months. The numbers rose sharply from a base of
- 13 -

Page 28

just over 18,000 in March 2020 to around 33,000 in May but followed by steady increases up
to just under 36,800 in August, which is the most recent data currently available.
Figure 0.4: Lambeth UC Claimant Count by Month

2.11 The proportion of UC claimants not in employment has remained relatively stable at 65.4% in
March and 63.5% in August. This suggests that there have been rises in both UC claimants who
are in work and those out of work.
2.12 In terms of age ranges the general profile of 16-19s and 60+ showing the highest proportions
not in employment has remained broadly the same throughout the March to August period.
2.13 The female count rose from 10,200 in March to 18,800 in September. Males have seen higher
increases in claimants (7,800 in March up to 17,800 in September) but from a lower pre-COVID
base. There are still more female UC claimants than male claimants.
2.14 Universal Credit data available to us does not include analysis by ethnicity so it is not possible
to undertake deeper analysis of impact in Lambeth.
Government Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (furloughed employees) data
2.15 This Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) data is based on information submitted by
businesses to the government each month in relation to when they have furloughed workers.
It uses the employee address of the furloughed worker and provides a picture of jobs
potentially at risk due to the impact of COVID-19 on the economy.
2.16 CJRS data is available from the end of May onwards with the end of August the most current
at the time of writing this document. Over this period Lambeth saw the number of residents
furloughed rise from an initial 42,300 at the end of May to 56,300 at the end of July but this
total fell to 23,100 at the end of August following a combination of the re-opening of the
hospitality sector in July and changes to the scheme (now required employer contributions).
2.17 The comparator data (Employments Furloughed vs Eligible Employments) shows Lambeth as
within one percentage point of the London average over the period but numerically Lambeth
had the sixth highest number of furloughed workers in June and July then the fifth highest in
August. The comparator data is affected by the fact that Lambeth has a high number of eligible
employments.
2.18 At the London level the CJRS data unsurprisingly shows that hospitality (accommodation and
food services) jobs have been most affected with 75% of eligible jobs, or 310,000 staff, in
London being furloughed. Retails and wholesale fare better due to food stores being less
affected but 44% of eligible jobs, or 245,000 staff, were still furloughed at the peak usage of
the scheme in July.

- 14 -

Page 29

GLA Economics Team Data and research
2.19 Data and research reports made available by the GLA Economics team are a useful source of
data, including projections for the future, and relevant research for London and Lambeth as a
central London borough.
2.20 The GLA has developed three macroeconomic scenarios on London’s real output (Gross Value
Added) and employment in the medium term to highlight the likely London post-COVID-19
economic outlook. The scenarios are periodically updated with new evidence and data as they
become available. These scenarios show that even in the best-case there will be a significant
slump in GVA in 2020 with employment contraction in both 2020 and 2021 with the recovery
gaining traction in 2022.

Figure 0.5: London Real GVA (annual growth rate) – three scenarios

Figure 0.6: London Workforce Jobs (annual growth rate) – three scenarios

2.21 The scenarios show challenging times ahead with different sectors expected to be affected to
different degrees. Other key points from recent research shared by the GLA are:


1

In areas such as Central London where the hospitality and retail sectors rely on tourists
and/or office-based workers for their trade then they will struggle as a result of lower
levels of footfall in the short and potentially medium-term1

WPI Economics, the Current and Future Impact of COVID-19 on London’s Retail and Hospitality Sector, 2020

- 15 -

Page 30



Local authorities are facing the twin challenge of reduced revenue income from the range
of local sources such as Council Tax, Parking Fees, Business Rates etc and pressure on
spending from increased demand for Council services as residents suffer both
economically and socially post-COVID-192. There is a risk that this will be compounded by
future government spending cuts that could be a response to public borrowing rising the
more than £300bn above government plans3



The economic impact from COVID-19 in the UK is sharp and severe but is possible to
recover from over the medium-term with longer term impact on Gross Domestic Product
being minimal (a permanent 1.7% reduction). This differs to the potential slower but
more permanent negative impact of a no-deal Brexit which would see GDP reduce by
7.6% over 15 years or 4.9% with a free trade agreement4



There is the potential for more structural shifts in demand for office space that stem from
changes in office-worker preferences and company responses to them. The enforced to
need to work from home has meant that organisations have been forced to make the
most of new technologies which when combined with workers seeking more balance
could lead to a lower demand for larger office spaces as companies switch to a mix of
home and office work and associated cost reduction in property leases5

2

Institute for Fiscal Studies, COVID-19 and English Council Funding: what is the medium-term outlook?, 2020
Institute for Government, The cost of COVID-19. The impact of coronavirus on the UK’s public finances, 2020
4
Dr Thomas Sampson (for UK in a Changing Europe), The UK Economy Brexit vs COVID-19, 2020
5
The Economist, The future of the office: COVID-19 has forced a radical shift in working habits , 2020
3

- 16 -

Page 31

3.

Lambeth Profile
Geography

3.1

The London Borough of Lambeth is located in South London but forms a key part of the central
London economy. It is 11 kilometres north to south, and 4 kilometres east to west at its
maximum extent. The position within London and the geography of the borough has an
important influence on its economic functions.

3.2

The north of the borough is part of the central London activity zone, with international cultural
venues on the South Bank and surrounding area; a major transport interchange in Waterloo;
and a significant number of large employers in high value sectors. In recent years north
Lambeth has seen increasing levels of commercial and residential development activity, as the
central London economy has expanded.

3.3

The South of the borough has traditionally functioned as residential communities, sharing
characteristics with outer London boroughs, with strong town centres and high levels of
commuting across and outside of Lambeth. The employment profile in the south is typically
characterised by services and light industrial activity across small and medium sized
businesses. Town centre areas of the borough have become important locations for new
enterprises and a growing digital and creative sector.
Population

3.4

Lambeth has a population of 325,917 in 20186. The number of residents in Lambeth has grown
year-on-year over the last decade, with an increase of 12.7 per cent (some 36,700) between
2008 and 2018.

3.5

As shown in figure 1., Lambeth has a comparatively high proportion of residents of working
age, when compared to London. This suggests the growing attractiveness of Lambeth as a
place to live, work and study. The strong public transport connections make the borough an
excellent base from which to commute into central London.
Figure 1: Resident Population by Age Group, Lambeth and London 20187

6
7

ONS Population Estimates, 2018
ONS Population Estimates, 2018

- 17 -

Page 32

3.6

Lambeth has an ethnically diverse population, with an estimated 47 per cent of residents from
Black and Minority Ethnic groups. Analysis by the GLA (figure 2) shows Black residents as the
largest minority group within Lambeth. Between 2012 and 2018 this data indicates both
substantial growth of non-White groups (from 34.3 per cent to 46.9 per cent), but increase in
the proportion of Asian and mixed race / other groups.
Figure 2: Population by Broad Ethnic Group, Lambeth 2012 – 20188

Deprivation
3.7

Lambeth has a diversity of communities and neighbourhoods that have bolstered its
attractiveness as a place to live and work and also reflect significant levels of inequality. The
IMD 2019 (figure 3) illustrates the spatial distribution of deprivation in Lambeth and London.
Lambeth ranks 42nd most deprived local authority in England (out of 317) on the rank of
average rank and eighth most deprived borough in London, on the same measure.9
Figure 3: Index of Multiple Deprivation 2019, Deprivation Map of London4

8

ONS Population Estimates – GLA Analysis by London Borough, 2018.
GLA Indices of deprivation 2019 initial analysis. Available: https://data.london.gov.uk/blog/indices-ofdeprivation-2019-initial-analysis/
9

- 18 -

Page 33

3.8

Across the 178 Lower Super Output Areas in Lambeth, there are none falling within the 10%
most deprived in England. However, one in five are within the 20% most deprived and the
majority (83.1 per cent) are within the 50% most deprived – see figure 5 below.

3.9

Whilst IMD does not identify any LSOA within the worst 10 per cent, the concentration of
neighbourhoods at the lower end of the index suggests vulnerability to poverty. When
combined with other evidence on income levels, house prices and insecurity of work, the
distribution of deprivation underlines the importance of policy that promotes equality of
access and labour market mobility.

3.10

Deprivation data is supported by analysis of the minimum income standard for London10 that
showed that overall 41 per cent of Londoners have an income below that needed for a
minimally acceptable standard of living. Not only is it more expensive to live in London,
compared to the rest of the country, but the costs are rising faster in the Capital than
elsewhere. The key additional costs in London are in housing, childcare and transport. Of
particular concern is that the research finds nearly 60 per cent of children in London are in
households with oncomes below the minimum income standard and this rises to 80 per cent
for children in lone parent families.
Figure 4: IMD 2019, Deciles Lambeth LSOA11
IMD
Decile
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Number
LSOA
0
36
43
41
28
18
7
4
1
0

%
LSOA
0
20.2
24.2
23.0
15.7
10.1
3.9
2.2
0.6
0

% 30
25
20

15
10
5
0
1

10

2

3

4

5

6

Padley, M. et al (2017) A Minimum Income Standard for London 2016 / 17. Available:
https://www.trustforlondon.org.uk/publications/minimum-income-standard-london-201617/
11

MHCLG (2019) Index of Multiple Deprivation 2019
- 19 -

7

8

9

10

Page 34

4.

Economic Structure
Economic Structure – Employment

4.1

Lambeth has a significant employment base of some 158,000 jobs in 2018. Lambeth has the
9th largest employment base in London.

4.2

As set out in figure 9, Lambeth has an employment base that is dominated by public sector
employment, with nearly a quarter of jobs in the health sector and in total over one third of
employment in public service delivery in education and local government. Additionally, key
sectors of employment are found in business administration and support (16 per cent),
accommodation and food services (10.2 per cent) and professional services (8.3 per cent).
Figure 9: Employment by Sector, Lambeth 201812

4.3

12

Compared to London, figure 10, shows that Lambeth has significantly higher proportions of
employment in health and in business administrative services.

ONS (2019) Business Register and Employment Survey

- 20 -

Page 35

Figure 10: Employment by Sector, Lambeth and London 201813

4.4

Concentrations of employment, compared to London, are also clear at a more detailed level.
As shown in figure 11, the borough has proportionately 2.9 times the number of people
employed in the creative and arts sector, 2.8 times London employment in cleaning and waste
and 2.5 times employment in human health. While the actual number of jobs varies by sector,
figure 11 identifies significant concentration of activity in Lambeth compared to London
Figure 11: Location Quotient – Lambeth Compared to London14

2.5
2

Other professional,
scientific and technical…

Activities of membership
organisations

Food and beverage service
activities

Accommodation

Land transport and
transport via pipelines

Public administration and
defence; compulsory…

Residential care activities

Civil engineering

Social work activities
without accommodation

Security and investigation
activities

Human health activities

Services to buildings and
landscape activities

1

Waste collection,
treatment and disposal…

1.5

Creative, arts and
entertainment activities

Concentration Rate

3

Economic Structure - Employment Change
4.5

13
14

The number of jobs in the borough has steady increased over the period 2009 – 2018 by some
28,000, a growth rate of 21.5 per cent (figure 12).

ONS (2019) Business Register and Employment Survey
ONS (2019) Business Register and Employment Survey

- 21 -

Page 36

Figure 12: Employment Change, Lambeth 2009 – 201815
180,000
160,000
140,000
120,000
100,000
80,000
60,000
40,000
20,000
0
2009

4.6

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

The rate of employment growth is similar to the average for London (23.7 per cent) over the
same period. As shown in figure 13, performance in Lambeth has broadly tracked progress in
London, albeit with greater volatility (which may be due to data reporting).

Figure 13: Employment Change Lambeth and London 2009 – 201816
Index: 2009 =100
130
125
120
115
110
105
100
95
90
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Lambeth

4.7



16

2015

2016

2017

2018

London

In Lambeth, significant areas of employment change (both number of jobs and growth rate)
are found in the following sectors of activity – figure 14.


15

2014

Accommodation and food and beverage services have added 6,750 jobs between
2009 – 2018, a growth rate of 73 per cent.
Health and social care have added 7,500 jobs over the period, a growth rate of 25.9
per cent.

ONS (2019) Business Register and Employment Survey
ONS Business Register and Employment Survey, 2019

- 22 -

Page 37




4.8

Professional services including architecture, head offices and technical services have
seen some growth (from a relatively small base) over the period of some 2,600 jobs
and a rate of 27.7 per cent. While above the borough average, they are significantly
below the rate for London (35.6 per cent). These areas of high skill employment are
forecast to grow rapidly in London over the next 20 years and should be a key target
for Lambeth.
Civil engineering shows a significant growth rate, albeit from a low employment base.
Employment has grown from 225 in 2009 to 1,250 in 2018 a rate of 455 per cent.

Change by sector compared to London shows a number of issues. The most significant is the
information and communications sector – a key area of growth for London over the next
decade. This sector shows a total decline in 1,450 jobs (-18.2 per cent), notable as this sector
has grown significantly in London (40.2 per cent).

Figure 14: Employment Change Lambeth and London 2009 – 2018 by Sector17

Arts & entertainment

Health

Education

Public administration & defence

London

Business administration & support
services

Professional, scientific & technical

Property

Financial & insurance

Information & communication

Accommodation & food services

Transport & storage

Retail

Wholesale

Motor trades

Construction

Manufacturing

Mining, quarrying & utilities

Lambeth

Agriculture

%

160.0
140.0
120.0
100.0
80.0
60.0
40.0
20.0
0.0
-20.0
-40.0

Economic Structure – Enterprises
4.9

17

Lambeth has a stock of 13,960 enterprises based in the borough. The number of enterprises
in Lambeth (2019) has grown from a baseline of 10,035 in 2012 – some 40.1 per cent – as
shown in figure 16.

ONS (2019) Business Register and Employment Survey

- 23 -

Page 38

Figure 16: Enterprises in Lambeth, 2012 – 201918

4.10

Sectoral distribution shows the largest numbers of enterprises form part of professional and
technical sector (25.9 per cent), information and communications (16.3 per cent) and
administrative and business support services (10.7 per cent). Together these represent over
half (52.9 per cent) of enterprises in the borough.

4.11

The sectoral profile of enterprises in Lambeth is similar to that seen in London (figure 17).
There are marginally greater proportions of enterprises in information and communications
and professional services sectors.
Figure 17: Enterprises by Sector, Lambeth and London, 201919
%

30.0
25.0
20.0

Lambeth

London

15.0
10.0
5.0
0.0

18
19

ONS (2019) UK Business Counts
Ibid

- 24 -

Page 39

4.12

In common with London (figure 18), the vast majority of enterprises in Lambeth are very small:
employing between 0 – 9 staff. Over 90 per cent of enterprises in the borough fall into this
size category.
Figure 18: Enterprises by Size Band, Lambeth and London, 201920

%

100.0

90.9 90.7

90.0
80.0
70.0
60.0
50.0
Lambeth

40.0

London

30.0
20.0
7.5

10.0

7.4
1.2

1.5

0.4

0.4

0.0
Micro (0 to 9)

4.13

Small (10 to 49)

Medium-sized (50
to 249)

Large (250+)

Over the period 2012 – 2019, overall growth in the number of enterprises shows an increase
of 40.1 per cent. Broken down by size bands, as shown in figure 19, the largest growth in
Lambeth has been among enterprises 10 to 49 employees (46.2 per cent). The rate of growth
has been significantly higher than the average for London, over the same period (26.9 per
cent).
Figure 19: Change in Enterprises by Size Band, Lambeth and London, 2012 – 201921

%

50.0
45.0

47.3

46.2

40.1

40.0

Lambeth

London

35.0
30.0

27.3

26.9

25.0

25.0

22.6

17.9

20.0
15.0
10.0
5.0
0.0
0 to 9

20
21

10 to 49

50 to 249

ONS (2019) UK Business Counts
Ibid

- 25 -

250+

Page 40

5.

Employment and Skills Demand
Employment Demand – London

5.1

Forecasts for London suggest steady growth of employment in the Capital over the period
2016 to 2050, with some 1.5 million new jobs, bringing total employment to over 7.1 million.
Growth of demand in London is highly significant for Lambeth because a majority of residents
travel outside of the borough to work and because expansion of employment in central
London is likely to lead to additional demand for space, supply and in auxiliary functions in
Lambeth.

5.2

GLA forecasts also indicate continuing employment growth in Lambeth, with an additional
27,000 jobs over the period 2016-2050.

5.3

Analysis of sectoral forecasts for London are positive for Lambeth residents. Figure 24 below
provides an indication of firstly forecast employment change in London by sector and secondly
sectoral employment by Lambeth residents. The data indicates that those industries that are
important for Lambeth residents including banking, finance and insurance; transport and
communication; and arts and other services (together 52.4 per cent of employment) are
expected to grow.

5.4

Within these broad sectors there are some variations, with London forecasts indicating
particular growth in professional and technical services of 61.2 per cent, information and
communication at 48.8 per cent, education at 45.8 per cent, arts and entertainment of 44.1
per cent. All areas important for the employment of Lambeth residents.
Figure 24: Employment Change for London and Sectors of Employment for Lambeth
Residents22

22

GLA (2017) Employment projections for London by sector and APS (2018) resident employment by sector.

- 26 -

Page 41

5.5

While forecasts should be treated with caution, the data indicates growth in higher skilled and
higher value business sectors over the period to 2050. Lambeth residents are currently well
placed to access these new opportunities, however continued investment in skills and
qualifications is important. Close attention to the demands of employers in growth sectors,
including the development of targeted skills training and employer engagement in education
are key to sustaining pathways into the opportunities being created in the Capital.

5.6

Employment in the public sector, education, health and administration follows recent trends
with reduced numbers of jobs in administration and growth in education and healthcare.
These sectors are important to understand as they have complex occupational structures,
with requirements at all levels of qualifications. The highest volume jobs, are likely to be in
health and social care requiring basic and intermediate skill levels. As well as overall
anticipated growth (linked to ageing populations) labour supply will be squeezed due to
changes in immigration rules.

5.7

Of greater significance is meeting replacement demand, as workers leave, retire or move
between jobs. It is estimated for London that replacement represents around 83 percent of
overall labour requirements.23 Around 79 per cent of replacement demand is met by ‘internal
supply’ that is people in the labour market moving between jobs. The remaining 21 per cent
can be considered as new entrants coming from education or as migrants into the London
labour market. While tracking the flow of workers in to and out of occupations is problematic,
GLA estimated over the period of a year around half a million people leave their occupations.
As shown in figure 25, the rates vary considerably occupation.

5.8

Variation can be affected by a wide range of factors such as the average age of workers within
particular industries and the supply of external labour, a factor that will be influenced by
reduced inflow of foreign workers into the London labour market. The key issue is the
continual demand for skills, even in industries and occupations that are overall in decline.
Figure 25: Summary of Estimated Average Outflows from Occupations, London 201224
Occupation

Managers and administrators
Professional
Associate professional and technical
Clerical and secretarial
Craft and related
Personal and protective services and sales
Plant and machine operatives and elementary
Total
5.9

Percentage
outflow from
Occupations (%)
9.1
6.7
9.8
11.8
8.9
13.9
13.8
10.4

Absolute numbers
leaving the
occupation
59,800
83,100
91,900
56,500
30,900
87,500
103,300
512,900

London analysis by IPPR25 points to demand for mid-skilled occupations, which in 2014
accounted for 27 per cent of entry level vacancies. Particular demand is found in the road

23

UKCES (2012) Working Futures 2012 – 22. Available:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/298512/
working-futures-2012-2022-annexes-bound.pdf
24
GLA (2013) London Labour Market Projections. Page 30. Available:
https://lep.london/sites/default/files/documents/publication/London%20Labour%20Market%20Projections_r
educed_filesize.pdf
25
IPPR (2016) Jobs and Skills In London. IPPR. Available: http://www.ippr.org/files/publications/pdf/londonskills_Apr2016.pdf

- 27 -

Page 42

transport sector, care and personal services sector, childcare and administrative sector. The
skills demand of mid-range occupations is more attainable through training, such as
apprenticeships, and therefore accessible to people currently unemployed or in unstable
areas of work.
Employment Demand – Lambeth
5.10

Based on recent trends, it is possible to extrapolate jobs growth assuming that recent patterns
of change continue into the medium term. As set out in figure 26, data allows for two
trajectories to be defined. The first takes the average annual growth rate for Lambeth used by
the GLA in their employment forecasts. The second is the average growth calculated using the
BRES employment data. While an approximation, they provide an indication of potential job
growth outcomes for Lambeth over the period 2018 – 2027.

5.11

Figure 26 shows for Lambeth the employment level change between 2009 and 2018 using
published BRES data for the borough. The trend is then extended, using the average annual
growth rate, from 2009 to 2027. Two lines are shown, the bold line being the continuation of
growth based on the BRES rate and the dotted line being the trajectory based on annual
average growth from the GLA projections. They suggest employment growth of between
14,802 (based on the GLA rate) and 36,565 jobs (extrapolating the BRES annual rate) to 2027.

5.12

It is important to remember that these figures are estimates and provide an indication of the
potential for Lambeth. They are dependent on a range of factors, that have not been
accounted for in these calculations.
Figure 26: Jobs Growth Trend, Lambeth 2009 – 202726
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000
50,000
0

BRES Rate

5.13

26

GLA Rate

Using this data it is also possible to break down projections to focus on sectors where there
are high concentrations of employment in Lambeth. As set out in figure 27 and figures 28,
there is significant potential for increased concentration of employment.

ONS BRES, 2019; GLA Employment Projections 2018 and author calculations

- 28 -

Page 43

Figure 27: Estimated Jobs Growth in Lambeth Key Sectors, 2018 – 202727
Sector

27

Hospitality sector

London Growth
(%) p/a
0.9

Lambeth Growth
(%) p/a
4.5

Range of new jobs
created
1,813 – 7,778

Creative and arts

1.4

2.2

1,293 – 2,099

Health and social care

1.1

2.9

3,777 – 10,710

Professional services

1.7

3.4

2,470 – 5,417

Sustainable construction

1.0

5.4

486 – 3,027

Total All Sectors

1.0

2.34

14,802 – 36,565

Ibid

- 29 -

Figure 28: Summary of Employment Growth Sectors and Implications
Importance
 Major employment sector –
16,000 jobs in 2018
 Concentration in Lambeth –
LQ 1.2

Creative arts
and
entertainment



Health and
Social Care







Professional
Services





Sustainable
Construction




Minor employment sector:
just 3,000 jobs.
But very high concentration
with LQ of 2.9.
Major employer in the
borough: 36,500 jobs in
2018.
Concentration in Lambeth
with LQ of 2.3
Major employer in the
borough: 15,075 jobs in
2018.
Marginal LQ of 1.04,
supported by LQ of 1.3 and
1.7 in specialist design and
photography.
Minor employer in the
borough: 5,000 jobs.
Overall sector has LQ of
0.9, however there is a
strong subsector in civil
engineering at 1.9.

Employment Demand
 London – strong growth 36.6% 2016 – 2050 (142,000
jobs) average of 0.9% p/a growth over the period
 Trajectory for Lambeth – strong growth 2009 – 18 of
73%, with average of 6.6% p/a. 2017- 18 big increase,
average of 2009 – 17 is 4.5% p/a – generating 7,778
additional jobs 2018 – 27.
 London indicates strong growth of 44.1% 2016 – 2050
(94,000 jobs), an average growth of 1.1%.
 Trajectory for Lambeth – growth 2009 – 18 of 20%
with an average growth of 2.2% p/a. Projected growth
of 2.2% p/a 2018 – 2027 would generate c. 2,099 jobs.
 London indicates strong growth of 28.9 per cent 2016
– 2050 (166,000 jobs) average growth of 0.9% p/a over
the period.
 Trajectory for Lambeth – growth 2009 – 18 of 26%
with an average of 2.9% p/a. Projected growth of 2.9%
p/a 2018 – 2027 would generate up to 10,710 jobs.
 London indicates strong growth of 61.2% 2016 – 50
(560,000 jobs) over the period – largest growth sector
/ opportunity.
 Trajectory for Lambeth – growth 2009 – 18 of 27.8%,
with an average of 3.4% p/a. Projected growth of 3.4%
p/a 2018 – 2027 would generate up to 5,417 jobs.

Demand Implications
 Reduced availability of foreign labour – creating
supply constraints and shortage particularly in
language skills.
 Increased emphasis on customer service,
supervision and management skills.
 Pressure on flexible working and LLW.
 Majority of employment growth among microenterprises and self-employed.
 Increasing requirement for enterprise skills.
 Opportunity for new employment in converging
sectors – i.e. digital and health.
 Reduced availability of foreign labour – creating
supply constraints for care workers.
 Increased emphasis on customer service and
maintaining rising quality standards.







London indicates strong growth of 25.2% over 2016 –
50 (73,000 jobs). Average of 0.7% p/a growth over the
period.
Trajectory for Lambeth – growth 2009 – 18 of 43.9 per
cent with an average 5.4% p/a 2018 – 2027 would
generate up to 3,027 jobs.









High skills and qualifications required across the
sector.
Increased demand for enterprise skills, and
transferability / application of skills to
commercial contexts.
Specialist in Lambeth on visual and digital design.
Within the sector pressure to address ageing
workforce. Some concerns about reduced supply
of labour after Brexit.
Increased demand for multi-skilled workers –
project management and customer relations.
Increased demand for energy fitting /
maintenance trades (incl. air conditioning, micro
generation and efficiency).

Page 44

Sector
Hospitality
and Leisure

Page 45

Replacement Demand – Lambeth
5.14

An additional component of labour demand is the replacement of vacancies created by people
moving out of the labour market. This includes retirements, mortality, family and caring
responsibilities and other situations where people leave employment on a permanent or
temporary basis. Overall, replacement demand forms a much larger part of employers’
requirement for labour than demand created by growth.28

5.15

Replacement varies by sector, but in contrast to long-term trends reflects vacancies that are
being created even in declining sectors of employment. In recruiting replacements, employers
may use the opportunity to revise role descriptions or change qualification requirements to
respond to operational needs. The majority of replacement demand is met by people already
in employment that move between jobs, supplemented by new entrants to the labour market
or those choosing to return to work.29

5.16

The scale and dynamism of the London labour market makes accurate analysis of replacement
demand difficult, due to the mobility of workers within the Capital, but also because of
complex patterns of commuting and migrant labour into London. However, using data with
caution we can estimate possible replacement demand over the next decade to show both
the volume of potential vacancies and the distribution of vacancies across occupational
groups – figure 29.
Figure 29: Estimated Replacement Demand by Broad Occupation, Lambeth 2018 – 202830

Workplace Replacement
Employment
Rate
Occupation
Managers, directors and
senior officials
Professional occupations
Associate prof & tech
occupations
Administrative and
secretarial occupations
Skilled trades occupations
Caring, leisure and other
service occupations
Sales and customer service
occupations
Process, plant and machine
operatives
Elementary occupations
Total
28

Estimate
Replacement
Demand
2018 - 28

% of Total

17,800

0.41

7,353

15.7

28,100

0.41

11,644

24.8

25,400

0.38

9,542

20.3

8,900

0.42

3,702

7.9

10,000

0.33

3,342

7.1

9,300

0.45

4,171

8.9

2,300

0.34

777

1.7

5,100

0.40

2,030

4.3

12,700
119,600

0.37
0.39

4,673
46,979

9.9
100.0

UKCES (2016) Working Futures 2014 – 2024. Available:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/514285/
Working_Futures_Headline_Report_final_for_web__PG.pdf
29
Marsden, J. and Hitchins, H. (2016) Trends in the demand for labour and skills in London and the West Subregion GLA Economics Available: https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/working_paper_76.pdf
30
UKCES (2016) ONS APS (2018) and author calculations

Page 46

5.17

In order to restrict the analysis, figure 29 is calculated based on workplace employment in
Lambeth. While this approach does not reflect the large scale commuting out of the borough
(across all occupations), it does provide a clearer picture of local employer demand to inform
activity to capture vacancies created in the borough.

5.18

The overall level of demand in the context of high employment rate and reduced migrant
labour into London underlines the increasing pressure on supply. There will be a growing
incentive for employers to look at other sources of labour and increased flexibility to secure
quality workers. Where Lambeth partners are able to facilitate access (through preemployment, brokerage and skills training) they are likely improve ability to capture and direct
recruitment.
Employment from New Developments in Lambeth

5.19

Given the scale of new (non-residential) developments coming into the borough, it is useful
to estimate the potential employment impact from new investments. A model has been
developed by Inner Circle Consulting that helps to estimate employment impact, using HCA
employment density multipliers. The calculations have been applied to analyse data on
Lambeth development schemes.

5.20

The analysis shows that over the period, the 251 non-residential schemes will generate a net
additional 784,333 M2 and approximately 24,190 jobs. This can be broken down by use class
– as set out in figure 30.
Figure 30: Direct Job Creation from Live Planning Application, Lambeth 201931

5.21

Retail

Net Additional
Space (M2)
33,441

Net Direct Jobs
(FTE)
935

B1

Office

405,121

18,006

B2-8

Industrial / distribution

167,571

3,048

C

Hotels and care facilities

11,605

868

D

Leisure and culture

44,976

361

Sui Generis

HE / Laboratories

121,619

973

Total

784,333

24,190

Use Class

Description

A

Based on the use class and supporting descriptions we can make some assumptions about the
types of jobs that can be expected to be created – as set out in figure 31.
Figure 31: Assumed Job Types from Development Schemes, Lambeth 2019

31

Estimated
Jobs

Work Area

Job Types

Financial services

Retail / customer facing finance and
professional services

227

Analysis based on LBL Planning data and HCA Employment Densities Guide, plus author calculations.

- 32 -

Page 47

Restaurants & bars
Retail warehouse
Offices / public
sector
Light industry
Mixed workspace
Budget / mid-range
hotels
Care Facilities

Customer services, catering and leisure
management roles.
Retail, logistics and customer services roles.
Office based administration, clerical roles plus
managerial and professional occupations.
Skilled and semi-skilled occupations.
Enterprise and start-up plus creative and
digital technical and professional occupations.
Customer services, cleaning and catering
roles.
Care workers, healthcare professionals and
administrators.

580
128
18,006
22
3,289
638
230

Leisure

Customer service roles.

361

Laboratory

Professional and associate professional
scientific and health roles.

973

Loss of heavy
industry &
distribution

Elementary and semi-skilled occupations.

-262

Total

24,190

Occupational Profile of Employment
5.22

Lambeth has a similar mix of occupations as found in London. In the borough some 58 per
cent of jobs are in higher skilled managerial, professional and associate professional roles. This
compares to 59.5 per cent of jobs in London. Reflecting the high proportion of employment
health, care and public sectors in Lambeth, the borough has a higher proportion of jobs in
caring and leisure occupations and in elementary occupations than the average for the Capital
– figure 32.
Figure 32: Occupational Profile of Employment, Lambeth and London 201832
30.0
25.0
20.0

Lambeth

London

15.0
10.0
5.0

32

ONS Annual Population Survey (2018)

- 33 -

Elementary
occupations

Process, plant and
machine operatives

Sales and customer
service occupations

Caring, leisure and
other service
occupations

Skilled trades
occupations

Administrative and
secretarial occupations

Associate prof & tech
occupations

Professional
occupations

Managers, directors
and senior officials

0.0

Page 48

5.23

Employment in the Capital has become increasingly concentrated in high skilled occupations
over the last decade. Between 2009 and 2018 London created around 800,000 additional
higher skilled jobs, a growth of 34 per cent in managerial, professional and associate
professional posts. Lambeth has also seen growth in these occupations, at around half the
rate (18 per cent) over the same period. While higher skilled occupations have grown in
Lambeth, there have been notable increases in intermediate skilled (administrative, craft and
caring) roles and also growth of lower skilled process and elementary occupations.

5.24

It is expected that London will continue to concentrate employment in higher skilled
occupations, however there will be continued pressure on lower skilled occupations in care,
leisure and hospitality sectors. Changing immigration rules post Brexit are likely to affect the
supply of labour that may lead to tightening in sectors such as construction.

5.25

While there is a strong supply of skills in London, 13 per cent of employers report a skills gap
or a skills shortage vacancy. There is significant variation by sector, with employers most likely
to encounter difficulties in skills trade roles such as chefs and electricians and in caring and
leisure roles. At the same time employers report that one in ten employees are under-utilised
– a figure that rises among smaller businesses. These factors indicate a mismatch in skills
supply and demand and suggest the need for interventions that develop and fully utilise the
skills of employees in the workplace.33

5.26

The increased application of digital technologies in the workplace are changing the nature of
employment and transforming the demand for skills across all sectors. Estimates suggest that
around 35 per cent of jobs in the UK economy are at risk of being automated within the next
10 to 20 years.34 Automation is likely to result in the disappearance of a small range of job
roles, but more significant changes across the workforce as routine tasks are reshaped to take
account of the use of digital technology.35 Future employer requirements are expected to
emphasise high level cognitive skills of planning, creating, managing and communicating as
essential to a wide range of employment.

5.27

While the impacts have, to date, been most evident in manufacturing and logistics sectors,
there are growing levels of automation in administrative, financial and business services that
are likely to have a significant effect on London employment and demand for skills. Centre
for London indicate that 33 per cent of jobs in London have high automation potential. At an
occupational level, the highest potential for automation are in elementary and operative jobs,
sales, administration and secretarial roles,36 significant for London and Lambeth and workers
with intermediate and lower level skills.

5.28

When the Centre for London analysis is applied to the occupational profile of Lambeth,37
(figure 33) 21.3 per cent of jobs have a high potential for automation. This is significantly
below than the London average (33 per cent) due to high proportions of residents in

33

GLA (2019) Developing the Evidence Base for London’s Local Industrial Strategy – Interim Report.
ONS (2019) ‘The probability of automation in England: 2011 and 2017’. Available:
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/article
s/theprobabilityofautomationinengland/2011and2017
35
Arntz, M., Gregory, T., Zierahn, U. (2016) ‘The risk of automation for jobs in OECD countries’. Working paper
189. OECD. Available: http://www.ifuturo.org/sites/default/files/docs/automation.pdf
36
Kulka, B. and Brown, R. (2018) ‘Human capital: disruption, opportunity and resilience in London’s workforce’.
Centre for London. Available: https://www.centreforlondon.org/publication/disruption-workforce/
37
Using ONS Annual Population Survey data (March 2019) - Occupation by sub-major group
34

- 34 -

Page 49

managerial and professional occupational groups in Lambeth. While lower than London
average, occupations with a high potential for automation still account for some 40,000 jobs
held by Lambeth residents. The potential impact of automation has a strong gender bias, with
round 82 per cent of administrative and secretarial roles held by women and 64 per cent of
elementary jobs held by men. National data also indicates that people in part-time
employment, account for 69.9 per cent of employees in jobs with a high potential for
automation.38
5.29

The potential for automation of work tasks highlights a number of key issues important for
the design of employment and skills policy.


The growth of high level and non-routine work tasks will continue – it is essential that all
sections of the community are able to access higher level training and qualifications. The
loss of elementary occupations, particularly in administrative roles, reduces the points of
entry into the London labour market. This is likely to have a disproportionate effect on
young people and women.



The nature of skills and the requirements of employers are changing across all jobs – a key
effect of automation is the reshaping of work tasks. There will be increasing requirement
for creative, problem solving, management and customer service skills across all job roles.
It is vital that education and training curricula help to cultivate these skills and, through
practical work experience, the competences needed by employers.



Responsive skills systems create an advantage in attracting investment – education and
training, at all levels that build creativity and problem-solving skills, deepens the quality
of the labour market and enhances the attractiveness of areas to higher value
employment.

Figure 33: Automation potential for occupational groups, Lambeth39
Occupation

Lambeth
Residents’
Employment
(n)

Lambeth
Residents’
Employment
(%)

Automation
Potential

Corporate managers and directors
Other managers and proprietors

18,400
6,500

9.8
3.5

Low
Low

Science, research, engineering and tech profs
Health professionals
Teaching and educational professionals
Business, media and public service professionals
Science, engineering and tech associate profs
Health & social care assoc. professionals

21,500
10,400
8,200
23,300
5,300
3,900

11.5
5.5
4.4
12.4
2.8
2.1

Low
Low
Low
Low
Medium
Low

Protective service occupations
Culture, media and sports occupations

n/a
9,200

4.9

Low
Low

38

ONS (2019) ‘The probability of automation in England: 2011 and 2017’. Available:
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/article
s/theprobabilityofautomationinengland/2011and2017
39

Author calculations based on analysis by Kulka and Brown (2018) using ONS APS data for Lambeth.

- 35 -

Page 50

Business & public service assoc. professionals
Administrative occupations
Secretarial and related occupations
Skilled agricultural and related trades

15,000
11,800
1,500
n/a

8.0
6.3
0.8
-

Medium
High
High
Low

Skilled metal, electrical and electronic trades
Skilled construction and building trades
Textiles, printing and other skilled trades
Caring personal service occupations
Leisure, travel and related personal service occs
Sales occupations

2,200
n/a
6,300
8,100
5,000
3,400

1.2
3.4
4.3
2.7
1.8

Low
Medium
Medium
Low
Medium
High

Customer service occupations
Process, plant and machines operatives
Transport & mobile machine drivers/operatives
Elementary trades and related occupations
Elementary administration & service occs

4,500
n/a
5,600
n/a
17,600

2.4
3.0
9.4

Medium
High
High
High
High

- 36 -

Page 51

6.

Labour and Skills Supply
Employment Rate

6.1

Lambeth has a high employment rate of 78 per cent in March 2019. As shown in figure 34,
over the last decade the employment rate for male and female residents of the borough has
risen by more than 10 percentage points. The levels of employment vary by sex, with a male
rate of 82.2 per cent and female rate of 73.8 per cent, the trajectory female employment is
faster than male. Female employment rates may relate to pressure on household earnings,
with all adults needing to work to meet the high cost of living in the Capital.
Figure 34: Employment Rate in Lambeth, Male and Female April 2009 – March 201940

%

90
85
80
75
70
65
All

Male

Female

60
55
50
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

6.2

Change in employment rates in Lambeth compared to London, over the same period, show a
rate higher than the average for the Capital and a faster rising trajectory. This may be due in
part to pressure on household earnings, but also the demographics of Lambeth, with higher
proportion of working age residents.
Figure 35: Employment Rate in Lambeth and London April 2009 – March 201941
85

%

80
75
70
65

Lambeth

London

60
55
50
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

40
41

ONS APS Working Age Resident (16 – 64) Employment Rate, 2019
ONS APS Working Age Resident (16 – 64) Employment Rate, 2019

- 37 -

Page 52

6.3

While a high level of employment is overall positive, it does not indicate the quality of work
or distribution of opportunity across the resident population. In Lambeth there is a marked
gap between the average employment rate for all residents and the rate for BAME
communities. As shown in figure 36, there has been a significant gap in employment rates
over the last decade. While the gap has been closing over the last five years, the pattern
indicates structural disadvantage for minority communities in the borough.
Figure 36: Employment Rate for All and BAME Residents Lambeth April 2009 – March
201942
85
80
75

% 70
65
60
55
Lambeth All

Lambeth BAME

50
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Note: dotted line indicates an estimate due to missing data.

6.4

42

As in figure 37, this is most notably true for Black and Black British residents who have
significantly lower employment rates– 12.4 percentage points lower than White residents.
Indian, Pakistani and Bangladeshi residents appear to have higher employment rates,
although the margin of error for that data is significant.

ONS APS Working Age Resident (16 – 64) Employment Rate, 2019

- 38 -

Page 53

Figure 37: Employment Rate by Ethnic Group Lambeth 202043

Qualification of Residents
6.5

Lambeth has a highly qualified working age resident population. At the end of 2018, some
61.7 per cent of residents had qualifications at level 4 or above, significantly ahead of the
London rate of 53.1 per cent. The comparison continues across all qualification levels, as
shown in figure 38, with fewer low level and residents with no qualifications.
Figure 38: Qualification Levels, Lambeth and London 201844
70.0

%

60.0
50.0
40.0
30.0
Lambeth

20.0

London

10.0
0.0
NVQ 4+

6.6

43
44

NVQ 3

NVQ 2

NVQ 1

No Qualifications

As shown in figure 39 the level of qualifications among residents has improved significantly
over the last decade with the proportion of NVQ 4+ in Lambeth rising from 42.6 per cent in
2008 to 61.7 per cent in 2018. Similar patterns have been seen in London, albeit at a marginally
slower rate (figure 39).

ONS APS Working Age Resident (16 – 64) Employment Rate, 2019
ONS APS qualifications levels 2018

- 39 -

Page 54

Figure 39: Qualifications Change, Lambeth and London 2008 - 201845

Figure 40: Qualification Change High and No Qualification, Lambeth and London 2008 – 18

6.7

45

Qualifications are an important indicator of labour market mobility and earnings and are
particularly important within London’s ‘professionalised’ economy. The overall trend for
residents of the borough is positive, however there are significant differences across
Lambeth’s population – figure 41.

Ibid

- 40 -

Page 55

Figure 41: Qualification by Ethnic Group, Lambeth 2011

6.8

There is also a strong relationship between qualification level and the employment rate. As
shown in figure 42, the employment rate is three times higher for people with Level 4+
qualifications compared to those with level 1 or no qualifications.

Figure 42: Employment Rate by Highest Qualification, Lambeth 2016

- 41 -

Page 56

Occupation of Residents
6.9

The occupation profile of Lambeth residents shows that 59 per cent have high skilled
(managers, professionals and associate professionals) jobs, a figure marginally higher than the
London average. Compared to the Capital, Lambeth has a higher proportion of professionals
and in lower occupational orders has a greater share of residents in elementary occupations.
Figure 43: Occupational Profile Residents, Lambeth and London 201846

6.10

Patterns of change in the occupation profile of residents in Lambeth and London over the last
decade suggest a concentration of higher skilled and higher paid occupations within the
borough. As show in figure 44, compared to London there has been higher growth of high
skilled occupations and greater reduction in intermediate and low skilled occupations. When
contrasted with other factors, such as educational attainment, house prices and demographic
change, the occupational profile reinforces the shift towards higher income household’s
resident in the borough.

6.11

As shown below this overall positive picture can also mask a degree of polarisation of
communities, with few opportunities being available to lower skilled residents and a dilution
of the mix of populations within the borough.

46

Source: ONS APS 2018 Occupational Profile (Residents)

- 42 -

Page 57

Figure 44: Resident Occupations, Percentage Point Change in Lambeth and London 2008 –
2018

6.12

The occupational profile is also helpful to understand the balance of jobs in the borough in
relation to the occupations of residents. The degree of ‘fit’ provides an explanation of travel
to work patterns and also an indication of the opportunity to reduce travel by increasing the
numbers of jobs in the borough. As shown in figure 45 there is broadly a match of the
occupations held by residents and the occupational profile of jobs in the borough. A higher
proportion of residents are in professional occupations compared with workplaces in the
borough and also in sales and customer services.
Figure 45: Occupations for Lambeth Resident and Workplace

- 43 -

Page 58

6.13

There is significant variation in occupational profile by ethnic group, as shown in figure 46. All
non-White groups have lower proportions of residents in higher skilled occupations, with
Black residents around half of the level of White residents.
Figure 46: Resident Occupation by Ethnic Group

Earnings and Insecure Employment
6.14

ASHE data shows that Lambeth residents have annual gross median earnings, in 2018, above
the London average, at £38,009 compared to £35,716. Since 2013, earnings have increased in
Lambeth by 13.4 per cent and at a faster rate than seen in London (9.1 per cent). As shown in
figure 47, earnings have been on an accelerating trend, compared to London, since 2014.

- 44 -

Page 59

Figure 47: Annual Gross Median Earnings, Lambeth and London 2013 - 201847

6.15

While this is positive at a borough level, there are a number of disparities in earnings and
income that are important for Lambeth. GLA analysis on the London Living Wage indicates a
weakening position compared to London. As shown in figure 48, an increasing proportion of
jobs in the borough have failed to keep pace with the London Living Wage, Between 2011 and
2018 the number of jobs below LLW increased by some 12,000 – closing the gap on the London
average.
Figure 48: Jobs Paid Below London Living Wage, Lambeth and London 2011- 201848

6.16

47
48

Earnings also vary considerably by ethnic group in London, with GLA analysis showing
significant differences in median pay rates compared to White workers in the Capital. Data
tracked since 2004 indcates variable pay disparities, but little significant change in closing the
gap.

ONS (2019) ASHE data by borough
Source: GLA (2019) London Datastore - https://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/earning-below-llw

- 45 -

Page 60

Figure 49: Pay Gaps by Ethnicity, London, 201749
Ethnicity
BAME
Asian
Black
Mixed
Other
White

Median (£)
13.55
14.43
12.83
13.37
10.95
17.44

Median pay gap
22%
17%
26%
23%
37%

Figure 50: Low Pay by Ethnicity50

6.17

Pay gaps also exist by gender and for people with disabilities in London.




6.18

Gender – on average female employees are paid 16.7 per cent less per hour (median
hourly pay) in London. However, women working part-time are likely to earn more than
men working part-time. Men working full-time earn more than men. The pay gap for all
workers has fallen from 22.4 per cent in 1997 to 16.7 per cent in 2017. Trust for London
show that 55 per cent of low paid jobs in London are held by women.51
Disability – while not clear cut, data indicates disparity in pay for disabled and nondisabled workers in London.52 There is a gap of between 7 and 13 per cent (median and
mean pay).

The distribution of low pay varies considerably by sector (figure 51), with leisure and retail
sectors showing the highest number and share of low paid jobs. In respect to improving good

49

GLA (2019) London Datastore https://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/ethnicity-pay-gaps
Trust for London (2018) London’s Poverty Profile 2017 https://www.trustforlondon.org.uk/publications/londons-poverty-profile-2017/ (page 103)
51
Trust for London (2018) London’s Poverty Profile 2017 https://www.trustforlondon.org.uk/publications/londons-poverty-profile-2017/
52
GLA (2019) London Datastore - https://data.london.gov.uk/economic-fairness/labour-market/disability-paygap/
50

- 46 -

Page 61

quality employment in the borough, this data provides an indication of where to focus activity
and interventions.
Figure 51: Low pay by Industry53

6.19

Low pay is also related to qualification level, across all groups with Trust for London analysis
showing huge disparity in the risk of low pay by qualification level – figure 52. In 2016, 13 per
cent of employees with a degree or equivalent were low paid, compared with 43 per cent of
those whose highest qualification is at GCSE level and 71 per cent for those with no
qualification at all.

6.20

In London wage growth was notably lower than the UK average across a range of relatively
low paying occupations, including care and leisure, administrative and secretarial occupations
and elementary occupations. Among those living in social housing in London that are in work,
a significant proportion are employed in industries and occupations where pay growth has
been subdued in recent years. Some 16.5 per cent of employment is in caring and leisure
occupations (2018), compared with just 6.2 per cent of non-social housing tenants in London.
This is the occupational category that’s seen the slowest wage growth in recent years.54

53

Trust for London (2018) London’s Poverty Profile 2017 https://www.trustforlondon.org.uk/publications/londons-poverty-profile-2017/ (page 104)
54
Social Market Foundation (2019) London: Working for Everyone? SMF Available: http://www.smf.co.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2019/02/Peabody-Index-2.pdf

- 47 -

Page 62

Figure 52: Low Pay by Qualification55

Job Insecurity
6.21

In addition to earnings there is a growing pattern of job insecurity in London that is having
wide ranging impacts on the wellbeing of Lambeth residents. The GLA estimate that around
10 per cent of employment in the Capital is insecure: people employed on a temporary
contract, working through an employment agency or in a threatened occupation. Between
2006 and 2017 the number of insecure jobs in London has risen by 59.7 per cent, more than
double the rate of increase in the UK (26.2 per cent).

6.22

As part of this pattern the GLA has identified a large scale increased in zero hours contracts,
the number of people in employment rising from 14,000 in 2010 to 121,000 in 2017. This
represents around 2.6 per cent of people in employment.56

6.23

Insecurity disproportionately affects lower income workers, young people, ethnic minorities
and workers with the fewest qualifications.




Some 7.5 per cent of employed London residents aged between 18 and 24 are on zero
hours contracts.57
Uncertainty in working hours, unstable income and a lack of rights and protections in the
workplace can contribute to household poverty, ill-health and periods of
unemployment.58
Evidence published by the TUC shows that women and Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic
communities are disproportionately affected by insecure work, with for example BAME

55

Trust for London (2018) London’s Poverty Profile 2017 https://www.trustforlondon.org.uk/publications/londons-poverty-profile-2017/ (page 106)
56
GLA (2019) London Datastore - https://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/workers-on-zero-hours-contracts
57
Ibid
58
TUC (2018) Living on the Edge: Experiencing Workplace Insecurity in the UK. TUC. London. Available:
https://www.tuc.org.uk/sites/default/files/insecure%20work%20report%20final%20final.pdf

- 48 -

Page 63

6.24

workers more than a third more likely than White workers to be in temporary or zerohours contract work.59
Improving pay and hours through moving jobs or by securing higher earnings or conditions
are strongly associated with exiting in-work poverty.60 Evidence also shows that in-work
poverty is more transitory than poverty generally – implications that getting people into
employment and supporting people in work is likely to provide opportunities to address
poverty. But the Social Mobility Commission also shows the difficulty of ‘escaping’ in-work
poverty – longitudinal study shows that people remain stuck in low skilled work. This indicated
the importance of a push and pull interventions that work with employers to make jobs more
attractive (and productive) and also work with individuals to improve their mobility within the
labour market.61
Unemployment in Lambeth

6.25

In March 2020 there were 1,155 residents of Lambeth registered as claiming Jobseekers
Allowance. The borough had an official rate of 0.5 per cent of working age residents (aged 16
– 64) in receipt of JSA. This nearly matches the rate of 0.4 per cent for London. In line with
London and national trends (figure 53) Lambeth has seen steady reduction in the overall levels
of unemployment in the borough. Partly this is consistent with rising employment rates but
also due to the transfer of claimants in Lambeth onto Universal Credit (see below). However,
and due to covid-19 lockdown restrictions, this number started to raise from April and reach
to 2,516 residents of Lambeth registered as claiming Jobseekers Allowance, which
corresponds to 1.0 per cent of working age resident. A similar pattern emerged on London
level with 0.9 per cent of working age residents in receipt of JSA.
Figure 53: JSA Claimant Rate, Lambeth and London 2014 – 202062

59

TUC (2017) The Gig is Up: Trade Unions Tackling Insecure Work. TUC. London. Available:
https://www.tuc.org.uk/sites/default/files/the-gig-is-up.pdf
60
Office for National Statistics (2015) Poverty and employment transitions in the UK and EU, 2007–2012
[online]. Newport: Office for National Statistics. Available at:
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20160106103141/http:/www.ons.gov.uk/ons/dcp171776_395768.
pdf
61
Findlay, P., Lindsay, C., Watson, A., Young, D. (2018) Influencing employers so more people break free from
poverty through work. Joseph Rountree Trust. Available: https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/influencingemployers-so-more-people-break-free-poverty-through-work
62
DWP (2020) Jobseekers Allowance Data for Lambeth

- 49 -

Page 64

6.26

Jobseekers Allowance count by duration shows a marked difference between Lambeth and
London performance, with older workers aged 50 – 64 in Lambeth experiencing significantly
longer durations of unemployment compared to the average for London – figure 54.

Figure 54: JSA Claimant Rate by Duration, Lambeth and London, July 202063

6.27

Universal Credit was introduced into Lambeth in 2017. Since January 2017, there was a steady
increase in the numbers of people transferred onto the single benefit regime until March 2020
where numbers increased dramatically due to covid-19 lockdown businesses closure. In June
2020, Lambeth had a total of 34,937 people in receipt of Universal Credit (nearly 100%
increase of February’s figure 17,541) – figure 55. Of these 22,853 were not in work and 12,083
were employed.
Figure 55: Universal Credit Claimants, Unemployed and Employed January 2017 June
202064

63
64

DWP (2020) Jobseekers Allowance Data for Lambeth
DWP (2020) Universal Credit data – Stats Xplore data

- 50 -

Page 65

6.28

The transfer of people from Child Tax Credit, Housing Benefit, Income Support, income-based
Jobseeker’s Allowance (JSA), income-related Employment and Support Allowance (ESA) and
Working Tax Credit makes assessing change in claimant levels problematic. Figure 56 shows
the process of transfer between JSA and Universal Credit over the 2017 – 2020 period.
Figure 56: Unemployed JSA and Universal Credit Claimants January 2017 – June 202065

6.29

Data on duration of claim, among unemployed recipients of Universal Credit, shows a small
difference with London in the proportion of people unemployed for 2-3 years. For all people
long-term unemployed (12 months +), Lambeth shows a higher rate than London overall at
32.8% of claimants compared to 28.6% for London. Note that this data seems to be skewed
by the most recent peak of claimants (less than 3 months) due to the impact of Covid-19.
Figure 57: Universal Credit Claimants by Duration, June 202066

65
66

DWP (2020) Universal Credit and JSA data
DWP (2020) Universal Credit data – Stats Xplore data

- 51 -

Page 66

6.30

Using the wider Annual Population Survey definition of unemployment, the rate in Lambeth
by March 2020 was 5.7per cent, higher than the London average of 4.7 per cent. The definition
used by ONS for the Annual Population Survey relies on self-categorisation of people and will
include those who are not claiming benefits, but consider themselves as unemployed and
available for work. The overall trend, as shown in figure 58, for working age populations (aged
16- 64) shows a close tracking of performance in Lambeth and London.
Figure 58: APS Definition of Unemployment, Lambeth and London 2009 – 202067

6.31

The unemployment rate for young people (aged 16 – 24) is significantly higher than the
aggregate for the whole working age population at 21.1 per cent in Lambeth and 16.1 per cent
in London. In both locations there is a falling trend between 2009 and 2018, and despite the
more volatile performance of Lambeth data, the rate of decline is similar over the period.

6.32

There is limited detailed data available at a local level provides a breakdown of unemployment
by ethnicity group. In London the GLA68 points to lower levels of employment among ethnic
minority groups. Approximate data is also available for (historic) unemployment data – Job
Seekers Allowance and Employment Support Allowance. While these benefits gave been
replaced by Universal Credit, the distribution by ethnic group provide some indication of
differences in Lambeth.

6.33

There are key differences in the incidence of unemployment by ethnic group, with BAME
communities in Lambeth estimated to have an unemployment rate more than three times
that of White working age populations (10.5 per cent compared to 3.3 per cent). BAME
communities therefore overrepresented, as a proportion of their population, as benefit
claimants. There is some variation between benefit types, as shown in figure 59, with higher
proportions of Black claimants in receipt of JSA compared to White claimants. There are higher
proportions of White claimants in receipt of ESA.

67
68

Source: ONS Annual Population Survey (residents)
GLA (2019) The Mayors Economic Development Strategy

- 52 -

Page 67

Figure 59: Ethnicity of ESA and JSA Claimants, Lambeth February 202069

Apprenticeships
6.34

Apprenticeships provide an important means of improving skills and productivity in the
London labour market and a key source of funding to establish pathways into training and
employment. The potential for apprenticeships in London is significant: to meet growing skills
demand at a time where there are risks to labour supply; to provide pathways into higher skill
careers present in the Capital; and to create opportunities and alternatives to undergraduate
entry, for disadvantaged communities.

6.44

While there is strong governmental and business support for the apprenticeship programme,
take up has been undermined by the complex funding method, limited flexibility, low
employer confidence in the product and gaps in training frameworks. For apprentices, issues
including a lack of support, pre-entry training and information on career development
opportunities have not been consistently available. In the public sector, budget and staffing
cuts have reduced capacity to recruit and adequately supervise apprentices contributing to
incompletion of training courses.

6.45

DfE data compiled by the GLA shows that Lambeth had 1,570 apprenticeship starts, at all
levels, during 2016/17. Compared to other London boroughs, Lambeth’s performance is midrange and by volume is ranked 14th out of 33 local authorities. 70

6.46

Similarly, starts as a proportion of working age population (aged 16 – 64) are relatively low at
7 per 1,000. While this is the similar rate as the average for the Capital, London Councils points
to the collective underperformance compared to other English regions and a national average
of 15 starts per 1,000 working age adults.71 As illustrated in figure 60, to match the national
rate, Lambeth would need to boost starts by 2,041, based on 2016/17 levels.

69

DWP (2019 Data for Lambeth – Stat-Xplore
DfE (2019) Apprenticeships Data.
71
See https://www.londoncouncils.gov.uk/our-key-themes/economic-development/apprenticeships0/improving-apprenticeship-delivery-london
70

- 53 -

Page 68

Figure 60: Additional Starts in Lambeth to Match National Start Rate72

Apprenticeship Starts

4,000
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000

+ 2041

3,611

1,500
1,000

1,570

500
0
7/1,000

6.47

The distribution of starts by level and age group, as shown in figure 61, indicates a majority of
provision at intermediate and advanced level - a total of 88 per cent of starts and a majority,
overall 62 per cent, of apprentices being aged 25+ (figure 62). Compared to London averages,
the split of level of qualification is consistent with the pattern seen across the Capital. By age
group Lambeth has a lower level of engagement of younger people, with London average
showing 21.1 per cent of apprentices aged under 19 and 27.2 per cent aged 19 – 24 years.

Figure 61: Apprenticeship Starts in Lambeth by Level, 2016/1773

72
73

15/1,000

DfE Apprenticeship data with author calculations.
DfE Apprenticeship data

- 54 -

Page 69

Figure 62: Apprenticeship Starts in Lambeth by Age Band, 2016/1774

6.48

The distribution of starts raises a number of critical questions about the targeting and use of
apprenticeships in Lambeth. Specifically, whether sufficient use is being made of higher-level
frameworks to create work-based pathways into degree level qualifications and professional
training. While Lambeth has one of the highest proportions of starts at a higher level, it is
important to ensure alignment of training with labour market need.

6.49

Perhaps more significantly, Lambeth has one of the lowest levels of starts for apprentices
under 19 years. The level of apprenticeship funding in Lambeth targeted at aged 25+ could be
viewed as problematic if it is substituting for investment by employers. While there is
important value in in-skilling workers, greater emphasis could be given to use of
apprenticeships for the creation of skills pathways.


Given the travel to work (and travel to learn) patterns for Lambeth residents, it is
important to connect planning at a borough level with that regionally, and for the CLF area
in particular. This means a dual strategy of planning and lobbying to increase the number
of apprenticeships (at all levels) available in London as well as focusing strategically on
how apprenticeships could be used effectively to meet skills demand in Lambeth. The
funding attached to Apprenticeships creates a unique opportunity to create pathways into
high level learning in the sectors most important for the borough - such as creative sector,
care, higher level construction and engineering, digital and health.



A major obstacle (and opportunity) to fully utilising apprenticeships is the ineffective
operation of the levy. There is a significant underspend on levy funds, with London
Council’s survey showing that 42 per cent of employers not expecting to use any of their
funds in the following year and 40 per cent expecting to spend less than half of their levy
fund.75 This issue is also important for Lambeth, with the risk of loss of underspent
funding. Policy implication to work with London Councils and the GLA76 to lobby for the

74

DfE Apprenticeship data
London Councils (2018) London business 1000: assessing the Capital’s skills challenge. Available:
https://www.londonchamber.co.uk/getattachment/f5f144c3-f18a-4fe1-925f-e0dfffca8a53/LondonBusiness1000-(July-2018)-Assessing-the-capital-s-skills-challenge.pdf?lang=en-GB&ext=.pdf
76
Mayor of London (2018) Skills for Londoners: A skills and adult education strategy for London.
75

- 55 -

Page 70

ringfencing and the devolution of decision making on levy funds and action within
Lambeth to work around the regulation to improve spend and performance.77
6.50

The breakdown of apprenticeships by sector skill area provides an indication of the spread of
apprenticeships and a basis for comparison with the occupational mix of residents. As figure
63, the data is limited in that the skill area of training does not easily correspond with either
sector or occupational data, however an approximation can be made. Additionally,
frameworks can be used across a range of employment settings, with business administration
common applicable to construction sector as professional services.

6.51

Nonetheless, the data does provide some insight into the profile of training being delivered
through the apprenticeship programme. As shown in figure 63, nearly two thirds (63.8 per
cent) of all apprenticeships are in two sector skill areas, business administration and law (32.9
per cent) and health, public services and care (30.9 per cent).
Figure 63: Apprenticeship Starts by Sector Skill Area, Lambeth and London 2016/1778

6.52

77
78

When compared with the occupational profile of Lambeth residents (c. levels 1 – 3), based on
an approximate fit, figure 64 indicates some notable disparities in arts and media where there
is an apparent underutilisation of apprenticeships and in public services and care that
indicates an over concentration compared to the share of occupations. Occupational data is
unavailable for construction and for education and training occupations. As indicated above
the sector skill area can be misleading when compared to industrial and occupational profiles,
but does suggest a need for further investigation.

See September 2019 LBL Growth Board Report
DfE Apprenticeship data

- 56 -

Page 71

Figure 64: Apprenticeship Starts by Sector Skill Area and Occupational Profile, Lambeth
2016/1779

6.53

Analysis of the take up of apprenticeships by ethnicity shows that starts are split almost
evenly between White and BAME participants – a higher rate of participation among BAME
that present in the whole population – 45 per cent BAME compared to 55 per White. As
shown in figure 65, the distribution of starts by level and ethnicity highlights a degree of
polarisation. BAME participants have a significantly higher rate of participation compared to
White apprentices at intermediate level (Level 2) whereas White apprentices have double
the participation rate at higher level qualifications (level 4+).
Figure 65: Apprenticeship Starts in Lambeth by Level and Ethnicity, 2016/1780
70

%

67

61

60
50
40

48

52

39
33

30
20
10
0
Intermediate

79
80

Advanced
BAME
White

DfE Apprenticeship data
DfE Apprenticeship data

- 57 -

Higher

Page 72

6.54

While there is insufficient data to indicate a cause for this disparity, it does indicate a need to
investigate pathways into apprenticeships, structural / discriminatory barriers to participation
and aspirations of BAME learners in relation to apprenticeship starts.
Youth Transitions

6.56

Evidence from the Children’s Commissioner81 shows an increase in the percentage of children
leaving school without 5 GCSEs (grade A*- C). Reversing a trend since 2005, from 2015 the
number of children leaving at 18 without a substantive qualification has increased by 28%.
Children in receipt of free school meals are over twice as likely as non-FSM students to leave
education age 19 without any substantive qualification, at 37% vs. 15%. This gap is increasing.
Education reforms appear to have penalised disadvantaged and special educational needs
pupils.

6.57

Nationally, in 2018 18% of students (98,779 children) left education without achieving the
standard, up from 14% in 2015. This is despite the compulsory education age in England
extending to 18 during this period and children therefore being in education for longer.

6.58

There has been a long-standing attainment gap between FSM pupils and their peers. This fell
between 2005 and 2015 from 28 to 17 percentage points. The latest data however shows that
the gap has been widening since 2015, reversing a positive trend for children on free school
meals. There has also been a worsening situation for children with special educational needs
(SEN) and children living in areas of deprivation, for whom attainment gaps are also getting
bigger. Vulnerable children who need the highest levels of support are at increasing risk of
leaving education with nothing.

6.59

As shown in figure 66, Lambeth has an attainment gap of some 16.4 percentage points, a level
significantly higher than the London average. This suggests a major challenge in supporting
young people and their families, from lower income households to attain minimum standards
of qualifications. This data forms part of a wider set of indications, along with youth
unemployment, access to higher level apprenticeships and reliance on insecure employment
that constrain the achievement of young people from lower income households.
Figure 66: Percentage of 19-year olds qualified to Level 2, by FSM eligibility and Local
Authority
Local Authority
Lambeth
London
England

6.60

All (%)
83.3
85.5
82.2

Not eligible
for FSM (%)
87.9
87.9
85.2

Eligible for
FSM (%)
71.5
76.0
63.3

Attainment
gap (ppts)
16.4
11.9
21.9

The number of NEET young people in Lambeth (16 – 17-year olds) is a key indicator of
transitions into work and training. Data collected for Lambeth indicate an increasing trend of
NEET young people and unknown destinations between 2015/16 and 2018/19 – as figure 67

81

Children’s Commissioner (2019) 81 https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2019/09/cco-briefing-children-leaving-school-with-nothing.pdf

- 58 -

Page 73

below. Combined NEET and unknown over the period show an increase of 3.2 percentage
points. In contrast the average for London shows declines in both NEET and unknown
destinations.
Figure 67: NEET and Unknown for Lambeth and London 2015/16 – 2018/1982
2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

2015/16

1.9%

1.4%

1.2%

1.3%

Unknown*

8.1%

8.7%

5.2%

5.5%

London NEET

1.7%

1.8%

1.8%

2.0%

London
Unknown

3.0%

3.2%

3.5%

4.3%

NEET* 16-17yr
olds

6.61

82
83

Improving information on destinations of young people at key transition points at 16 – 19 is
vitally important to effectively target services. As is focused efforts to improve the pathways
into training and work for all young people in Lambeth. Extending successful Lambeth
programmes such as Raising the Game83 and mainstream funding the Lambeth Careers Cluster
are key to both improving access to opportunity and reducing risk of young people becoming
involved in violence.

Provided by London Borough of Lambeth Education.
See http://lambethschoolspartnership.uk/Article/63614

- 59 -

Page 74

Appendix 1
To avoid overly cluttering the data annex with weblinks to data sources, the following table provide
a link to the key data used in the paper. All other sources are otherwise indicated as footnotes in the
text.
Data Set
Population
Deprivation Indices

Source
ONS Population Estimates – Local
Authority
MHCLG IMD Data

GVA

ONS Regional Accounts

Employment data

ONS Business Register and
Employment Survey
ONS Business Counts
ONS Business Demography

Business Stock
Business Births and
Deaths

Occupational data
Employment Rate
Qualifications
Earnings
Unemployment –
JSA
Universal Credit

Unemployment APS
Apprenticeships

ONS Annual Population Survey
(resident and workplace datasets)
ONS Annual Population Survey
(resident dataset)
ONS Annual Population Survey
(resident dataset)
Annual Survey of Hours and
Earnings
DWP JSA claimant count
DWP Universal Credit database

ONS Annual Population Survey
(resident dataset)
DfE

- 60 -

Access
www.nomisweb.co.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/stat
istics/english-indices-of-deprivation2019
https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/re
gionalaccounts
www.nomisweb.co.uk/
www.nomisweb.co.uk/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessind
ustryandtrade/business/activitysizean
dlocation/bulletins/businessdemogra
phy/previousReleases
www.nomisweb.co.uk/
www.nomisweb.co.uk/
www.nomisweb.co.uk/
www.nomisweb.co.uk/
www.nomisweb.co.uk/
https://statxplore.dwp.gov.uk/webapi/jsf/login.x
html
www.nomisweb.co.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/stat
istical-data-sets/fe-data-libraryapprenticeships

London Borough of Lambeth
Skills and Employment Strategy
2020 - 2023
Page 75
-1-

Contents
Page
Foreword .................................................................................................................................................................. 3
Our Vision ................................................................................................................................................................. 4
Our Strategy ............................................................................................................................................................. 4
The Lambeth context: building on our strengths ....................................................................................................... 5
Our approach............................................................................................................................................................ 7
Objective One: Create a skills and employment support system responsive to changes in the economy,
employer demand and the growth sectors of the future ........................................................................................ 8

Page 76

Objective Two: Enable our residents to be more resilient and unlock their potential through upskilling,
reskilling, training provision and apprenticeships ................................................................................................ 11
Objective Three: Support our residents into employment pathways and entrepreneurial activity, with a
particular focus on our Black, young and disabled residents .............................................................................. 14
Objective Four: Encourage our businesses to be inclusive and resilient, by tackling low pay, in-work
poverty and to reduce their carbon emissions..................................................................................................... 19
Objective Five: Work with our anchor institutions and major employers to utilise our supply chains and
increase spend with local businesses ................................................................................................................. 19
Making it happen .................................................................................................................................................... 22
The roles we want to play ................................................................................................................................... 22
The tools at our disposal ..................................................................................................................................... 22
Measuring Success ............................................................................................................................................. 23

-2-

Foreword
Lambeth is always changing - both in terms of our population and the local economy. This has been brought into sharp relief by the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on lives and the economy. For decades, Lambeth has been a byword for opportunity – a place where people from all around
the world, have travelled to with the intent of pursuing their dreams.
We had witnessed steady economic growth over the last decade, with rising employment, business investment into the borough and fast
improving skill levels. As a key part of the central London economy, we have contributed to and benefited from the continuing success of the
Capital as a world city. Whilst there are always unknowns about the future we are now in a period of rapid change and very little certainty about
the future. This strategy is being published during the COVID-19 pandemic, so our local priorities are responding to a combination of the short
term economic shock and some of our longer term challenges. More than ever, we will need to be resilient, creative, dynamic and able to adapt to
tackle challenges and make the most of opportunities.

In Lambeth our Equality Commission highlighted the severe consequences of exclusion among our Black Caribbean, Portuguese and Somali
communities and the additional difficulties faced by residents with disabilities, long term health issues, care leavers and homeless people to
obtaining and staying in work.
We can make a significant difference by working collectively. Through this Strategy we will improve access to opportunities and tackle the
structural barriers that prevent our residents from thriving in their skills development and employment progression.
All this means we must aim, as a matter of urgency, to increase the supply and quality of skills training to our residents of all ages and
backgrounds, working with our schools, colleges, higher education institutions, neighbouring boroughs and other providers. We will do this as a
community of public agencies, employers, local groups and residents, through shared goals, joint planning and service delivery. Lambeth has the
assets to transform the life prospects of many of our residents excluded from work and learning, but only where we collaborate as a strong
partnership, focused on realising the benefits of inclusive growth.
We have much to do. This strategy sharpens the focus for us to realise our shared vision.
Cllr Jacqui Dyer
Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Community Safety
-3-

Page 77

With this backdrop, it’s even more important than ever that our support around skills, employment and training is of the highest quality and
accessible. We already knew that large sections of our communities had been excluded from the opportunities created by economic growth and
that wider labour market changes have seen many have to rely on low quality or insecure work, juggling multiple jobs to meet the high costs of
housing and raising a family in the borough. Many of those communities have been disproportionately impacted by COVID-19. Too many children
in our borough are still leaving school lacking basic skills and qualifications, hampering their chances of getting a decent job or building a
successful career in the future. For others the situation can be much worse, with opportunities to acquire new skills later in life even harder to
come by. This leaves many of our residents stuck in low-paid jobs with little chance of improving their prospects or those of their family.

Our Vision
Lambeth is a place where industry, educational and cultural institutions, the voluntary and public sectors come together to deliver a
world class skills system and agile employment support that provide opportunities for good quality work – responding to systemic
inequities, the aspirations of our residents and the needs of the economy.

Our Strategy
We know that Lambeth is a place of huge ambition, energy and opportunity. We have long been home to radicals and reformers,
social entrepreneurs and innovators, those who work together to help change the lives of others and their own. We have a history of
openness and diversity which is reflected in the range of languages spoken in our schools and communities.

Skills and employment, access to good jobs, fair pay and resilience are key to achieving the ambitions we have set in the Borough
Plan and our Economic Resilience Strategy. We have analysed labour market data and trends and tested this alongside local insight
and intelligence about the impact of COVID-19 on the economy and jobs. We have also listened to feedback from our key
stakeholders and residents, which has led us to identify three key challenges. We need to:




Overcome the long-term skills and employment inequalities faced by many of our residents
Tackle the current and lasting impact of COVID-19 on livelihoods
Ensure our skills system is responsive to the rapidly changing needs of the economy and residents now and in the future

This can only be done through working in partnership with our strong foundation of talented communities, committed employers and
the existing capacity within our skills and employment system to deliver quality learning, support and jobs to residents.

-4-

Page 78

We also know that we are living and working in a volatile and uncertain world, with increasing and changing need for support, an
unstable economy due to COVID-19 and the looming threats of the UK’s exit from the European Union and climate change. We
cannot solely rely on national government for solutions so local areas will need to work even stronger in partnership to harness the
creativity and drive that enables places and communities to meet these shared challenges and continued improvement of our public
services. With its capacity for growth and change, its diverse and dynamic population, and its world-class partnership potential,
Lambeth is well-placed to make this a reality.

The Lambeth context: building on our strengths
We want our economy to grow in a way which works better for all our residents, and in which no one finds themselves excluded from
opportunity.
We have many opportunities from our diverse business and employment base that benefits from being situated at the heart of one of
the world's greatest cities. Our employers rely on access to a talented and skilled workforce and they share our ambition to provide
opportunity for those most in need. Lambeth is home to fantastic schools, further and higher education provision and a thriving,
committed voluntary, cultural and community sector that all play an essential role in the growth of the borough.
The future of Lambeth’s economy will be determined by the people who live, study and work here – whether they are established
business owners, aspiring entrepreneurs, students or one of our 326,000 residents. The more our residents have the opportunity to
make the most of their talents, the more resilient we can make our everyday economy – sectors such as health & social care and
hospitality & retail form the backbone of our local economy. It also means the faster our growth sectors, like the creative and tech
sector; life sciences; and low carbon and environmental goods & services can grow and prosper.

The use and scope of digital tools and platforms has accelerated in new and innovative ways through the COVID-19 pandemic,
enabling partnerships, connections and community engagement. This learning and experience can be continued in the future, whilst
maintaining a focus on those who face digital exclusion and providing the support they need.

Challenging economic times and a changing London economy
At the time of publication of this strategy, the UK and London are entering an unprecedented period of economic uncertainty. The
COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant economic impact. Unemployment has risen sharply and may rise further once support such
as the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme comes to an end. The number of Lambeth residents furloughed has more than halved
since the peak of 56,300 in July 2020 but those still furloughed face a risk to their continued employment. The number of residents
claiming unemployment benefits has risen significantly since the start of the pandemic - those who had to rely on Universal Credit
rose by almost 19,000 between March and August 2020.

-5-

Page 79

This improvement will not happen on its own. We want to establish a more integrated and inspiring skills and employment system to
enable more seamless transitions as people move through different stages of learning and work towards the excellent opportunities in
our local and the wider London economy. We will do this in a way that recognises and addresses the biases and barriers to inclusivity
faced by our communities that are often excluded from opportunity.

We need to assess and respond to a range of more structural changes that stem from a combination of COVID-19 and Brexit.
Developing economic scenarios and planning for sustainable and inclusive growth is difficult given the uncertainty about the future
health situation. Available projections suggest that it may take at least two to three years for the London economy to recover from the
current economic shock and we know that we will need to continue to support for our residents and businesses over that period.
However, the negative economic impact of Brexit may be less stark immediately but could damage the economy over a 10-15 year
period.
Some sectors could shrink as a result of these changes due to demand shocks that could mean the economy simply no longer retains
the same level of need for human labour. If tourist numbers remain lower this will have a lasting impact on the hospitality sector. And
the picture is still emerging around whether office workers will make a long-term switch to a mix of home and office based working
which could affect retail and support services, especially in the Central Activities Zone (CAZ). Lambeth is better placed compared to
some other areas due to the excellent transport links and high-quality, flexible office space found in the borough.

The last ten years has also seen an important shift in the occupations of Lambeth residents. The shift has been away from lower
skilled occupations such as administration, sales and customer service towards managerial, professional and skilled occupations.
This means that many residents will be less exposed to the threats to lower skilled roles and the economic challenges emanating from
COVID-19 and Brexit that will sit alongside higher skills requirements in the London workforce in the form of higher qualification levels,
digital skills and versatility.
However, there are significant groups of our residents who face longer term economic inequities. Our Black residents have a lower
employment rate than other ethnic groups and there are similar disparities between these groups in terms of highest level of
qualifications achieved. Young people (aged 16-24) in Lambeth have a higher unemployment rate than compared to the London
average and whilst the trend had been falling up to January 2020 this group is at significant risk from the economic challenges
triggered by COVID-19.
Our large network of quality education and skills providers will need to be able to support our residents to upskill, reskill and secure
quality jobs in sectors that we expect to recover and grow both in Lambeth and central London. In Lambeth these sectors are
expected to be health and social care (+10,700 jobs by 2027) and professional services (+5,400 jobs by 2027) with some potential for
hospitality and leisure (+7,700 jobs by 2027) depending on wider economic factors plus the growing creative and digital sectors.

-6-

Page 80

Whilst the economic threats are not yet fully clear, Lambeth is well positioned to weather the storm and recover well. New businesses
grew by 40% between 2012 and 2019 to a total of around 16,000 with economic output of £12 billion per year and 156,000 jobs in the
borough. Economic growth in Lambeth over the last ten years has been the fifth highest in London.

Our approach
This document sits behind the Economic Resilience Strategy.
We know that we will need to create a responsive and agile
skills and employment ecosystem to equip our residents to
thrive in the ever-changing London economy at the same time
as addressing the systemic barriers that many of them face.

Through the LSEB we will need to deepen our collaboration
with partners but also focus on systems change to address
barriers whilst always capturing learning so we can adapt and
improve as we progress.

We have developed a set of indicators to measure our positive
impact but we will also capture our learning about the changes
we will need to make to deliver that positive impact.
Our evidence base will be available on our website, and we will
continue to add to this as our understanding develops. Frequent
reviews of our data and delivery activity will help us to highlight
and respond where we don’t see the change we’re looking for.

Page 81

A partnership approach is essential to delivering sustainable
employment and skills interventions. The Lambeth Skills and
Employment Board (LSEB) consists of key local education
providers, public sector organisations, private sector
businesses and representatives of community level delivery
organisations. This Board will own this strategy and contribute
to its delivery.

Given the current economic uncertainty, this strategy is
designed to be adaptable so that we can learn from our delivery
and respond quickly to any changes in the wider economy. We
will also ensure we have the representatives we need on the
LSEB to reflect the strategic input we need to deliver this
strategy.

Our strategic goals for skills and employment are supported by
specific objectives, headline actions over the short, medium and
long term then detailed activities. Our objectives are clear:

1. Create a skills and employment support system responsive to changes in the economy, employer demand and the growth
sectors of the future
2. Enable our residents to be more resilient and unlock their potential through upskilling, reskilling, training provision and
apprenticeships
3. Support our residents into employment pathways and entrepreneurial activity, with a particular focus on our Black, young
and disabled residents
4. Encourage our businesses to be inclusive and resilient, by tackling low pay, in-work poverty and to reduce their carbon
emissions.
5. Work with our anchor institutions and major employers to utilise our supply chains and increase spend with local
businesses

-7-

Objective One: Create a skills and employment support system responsive to changes in the
economy, employer demand and the growth sectors of the future
Context
Lambeth has a large and responsive institutional and provider network, delivering education and a wide range of vocational training
and employment support services. Alongside the borough’s vastly improved school performance, Lambeth has a major higher
education presence in Kings College London, London South Bank University and the Academy of Contemporary Music all calling
Lambeth home. Many other prestigious academic institutions are located in neighbouring boroughs. As well as attracting talent from
around the world, all of these institutions are committed to widening participation and community engagement.
Lambeth has two major further education institutions: Lambeth College and Morley College. Together, each year they serve around
10,000 learners, of all ages, undertaking courses from basic skills through to degree level qualifications.

We already have more skills and employment provision emerging in response to the economy shifting towards more digital industries
and the increased use of digital in traditional sectors. Increasingly, our provision is focussed on our younger residents looking to gain
work experience and entry level roles. The borough’s cultural organisations, largely funded by Arts Council England, also provide
significant education and training. Much is undertaken in partnership with ELEVATE, Lambeth’s mission to open up the creative and
cultural sector to all young people in the borough, and our local Cultural Education partnership.
Economic change has become more rapid, particularly as sectors adopt new technologies and we see increasing levels of
automation. The economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has shown us that the skills and employment support system needs to
be able to respond in an integrated and rapid way to both short term shocks or long term structural changes such as automation,
sector growth and employment demand. Fragmentation of funding and planning arrangements limit our ability to focus on and expand
good practice or to invest in new areas of learning that reflect changes in the labour market.
An aligned education, training, pre-employment support and co-ordinated recruitment activity is essential to multiply the opportunities
for our residents to get the best from economic opportunities in Lambeth and more widely in London. In the context of the triple
economic threats from COVID-19, a slow drift towards automation and the UK’s exit from the EU our ability to respond and adapt will
be critical.
-8-

Page 82

The borough’s vital network of community employment and training providers has deep roots across Lambeth’s neighbourhoods. Over
150 organisations in the borough play a role in supporting employment and skills. Our community-based providers are key to
engaging and supporting residents from all backgrounds and all ages. Our network of Lambeth Adult Learning adult community
learning providers and partners work together to upskill and reskill adults aged over 19, including supporting our residents into work
and to progress at work.

Objective One: what we will do
Headline actions
Short term (by June 2021)

Medium term (by June 2022)

Long term (by March 2024)

Embed a partnership approach
to the understanding and
delivery of skills and
employment provision in
Lambeth

Establish a Skills and
Employment Board with a
focus on improving the
strategic coordination of local
employment and skills
activities

Create a Knowledge Hub for the LSEB to
gather and share insights from providers,
employers, residents and wider sources,
including specific evidence on:
a. what works in terms of supporting our
most marginalised communities such
as Black residents
b. the detailed skills requirements, jobs
and career pathways in key growth
sectors including the green economy,
creative & digital industries and health
& social care

Coordinate learning pathways
for vocational routes, including
apprenticeships, to higher level
qualifications and careers
focusing on key growth sectors
in the Lambeth and London
economies

Drive continual improvement in
quality and standards across
skills and employment
activities across the borough

Co-produce a local quality
standard for employment
support and clear service
commitments on standards
that are appropriate to our
residents and employers

Identify local providers whose Ofsted
rating requires improvement and provide
targeted advice to help improve their
rating
Build a network of employment and
training providers to share practice and
perspectives and better integrate
learning pathways

All Lambeth providers meet the
service commitments and
standards with providers
working collectively to provide
mutual support and challenge

Improve the breadth and scale
of relevant learning, skills and
training providers, their
provision and employment,
including building the capacity
of local providers

Establish capacity building
and organisational support to
develop the quality and
resilience of our local
providers through, for
example, peer-to-peer
support and action learning

Lobby for the devolution of national skills
and employment funding (including
apprenticeship levy), to the regional and
local level
Support new and existing consortia of
local providers such as Building Young
Brixton to enable increased provision in
neighbourhoods and more seamless
services for residents

Lobby for outcomes-based
commissioning in the Adult
Education Budget to help
broaden learning outcomes to
cover health, wellbeing and
employment

-9-

Page 83

Priorities

Headline actions
Short term (by June 2021)

Medium term (by June 2022)

Long term (by March 2024)

Ensure that the local skills offer
is flexible, able to support more
disadvantaged residents and
linked to the needs of the local
economy

Deliver sector-based work
academies, providing short
and intensive training for
unemployed residents
directly linked to upcoming
job vacancies

Use the LSEB insight on skills needs to
identify the skills and qualifications
required in our key sectors, especially
those with skills shortages, and
collectively ensure that local provision
can meet these needs – either through
existing funding streams or through
supporting bids and fundraising by local
providers

Agree an outcomes framework
for health and social care,
developed with sub-regional
partners, which sets out a joint
approach between training
providers, employers and
boroughs to drive a systematic
change in the provision of local
training and recruitment,
supporting more local people
to secure work and progress in
this sector

- 10 -

Page 84

Priorities

Objective Two: Enable our residents to be more resilient and unlock their potential through
upskilling, reskilling, training provision and apprenticeships
Context
The negative economic impact of COVID-19 has been more severe than the global financial crisis of 2008. Some of our residents are
still affected now by that crisis, making our current task more urgent. Additionally, the expectation is that the UK’s exit from the
European Union will change the dynamics of skills needs and employment demand in the London economy. These economic shocks
sit alongside general trends in economic change as important reasons to support our residents to be resilient in the labour market.
They need options for alternative pathways in their work and careers. In the short-term we will need to focus our provision on
immediate support for the large numbers of our residents that have lost their jobs. That support will need to be a mix of skills, training
and employment support that fits their circumstances.

In Lambeth we have a significant number of jobs in our education and health sectors. We do not expect these to be significantly
affected by structural changes in the economy and there are a variety of jobs and careers in these organisations. With more alignment
of training provision and knowledge of career pathways we believe this is an excellent opportunity for our residents to thrive.
Apprenticeships represent an excellent option for our residents to develop their skills whilst working. Despite the opportunities for
structured in-work training and vocational qualifications presented by apprenticeships, the take-up by young people and adults has
been low. The number of apprenticeships offered by employers, especially SMEs, has also been low. The impact of COVID-19 has
also seen apprenticeship numbers fall further. This is a problem in Lambeth just as it is the rest of the country.
We believe that the opportunities presented by good apprenticeships are not fully understood and they are an important way of
making sure our residents have the right skills for future career opportunities. We will work with our partners to better align the right
kind of apprenticeships with job opportunities and viable careers pathways. Through this approach we will also seek to expand both
the quality and number of apprenticeship opportunities and promote those opportunities in more engaging ways that resonate with our
residents. We will ensure that access to these opportunities are promoted deep and wide across the borough.

- 11 -

Page 85

Alongside our immediate challenges, we are seeing the increased adoption of technology in the workplace with the corresponding
need for digital skills for almost all jobs. NESTA’s report “The Future of Skills. Employment in 2030” states there will also be
opportunities and threats from automation and digital advances. These changes will bring different skills requirements for our
residents and require more flexible options to obtain new skills such as on-the-job or through online learning. We also have to accept
that these advances will reduce the number of entry roles in office-based sectors.

Objective Two: what we will do
Headline actions
Short term (by June 2021)

Medium term (by June 2022)

Long term (by March 2024)

Ensure all young people have
high aspirations, are well
informed and have access to
high quality careers support,
training and opportunities
with employers through the
Lambeth Made programme
and Youth Promise

Build on the work of the successful
Careers Cluster programme to increase
engagement between local schools and
employers to deliver careers education
and employability support to young
people and their parents/carers
Target intensive support through a
“Youth Promise Plus”, including work
experience and vocational training, for
care leavers, young people who are not
in education employment or training
(NEET) or at risk of NEET and
involvement in serious youth violence

Improve the coordination and
breadth of delivery of careers advice,
work experience and vocational
training for young people using
approaches they can relate to and
which encourage ambition and
personal growth
Pilot a sector specific intervention
through ELEVATE that supports
schools, young people and their
parents/carers to understand and
access pathways in the cultural
industries, promoting potential
careers and the local providers who
can provide training and support

Broaden the employment and
training support offer for our
young people facing the most
barriers, including those with
special educational needs,
disabilities, care leavers, etc
Connect young people with
role models and mentors who
represent their lived
experience

Enable adults to reskill or
upskill to support access,
resilience and progression in
the labour market

Provide training and support to people
who have recently lost their jobs,
providing short and intensive courses
which will retain their motivation and help
them secure employment as the
economy recovers

Reskill people from sectors affected
by COVID-19 structural changes into
sectors that are more resilient and
likely to grow in the future such as
Creative & Digital; Health & Social
Care; and the Green Economy

Upskill low paid and low skilled
employees in the borough through the
‘Progress at Work’ programme

Support residents engaged in nonaccredited community-based adult
learning to progress into accredited
learning or employment

Develop and deliver an in-work
progression advice and
training offer, supporting
people to move out of low paid
roles
Ensure the local training offer
is accessible for people who
may not be able to study
during normal office hours e.g.
parents, people in work

Coordinate the transfer of unused
apprenticeship levy from larger
organisations to support SMEs increase
apprenticeship opportunities

Identify relevant apprenticeships in
the creative and digital; health and
care; hospitality; and construction
sectors then promote those

The Council and large local
anchor organisations will
maintain a minimum number of
active apprentices each year

Improve the choice and
relevance of available
apprenticeships and increase

- 12 -

Page 86

Priorities

Headline actions
Priorities
the number of residents that
benefit from apprenticeships

Short term (by June 2021)

Medium term (by June 2022)

Long term (by March 2024)

Develop and deliver a pre-apprenticeship
programme to improve access to and
sustainment of apprenticeships
Deliver pre-apprenticeship training and
support programmes, ensuring people
are prepared and motivated for upcoming
apprenticeship opportunities, in both
Lambeth and beyond, including
engagement with hiring managers and
work experience

opportunities specifically targeting
both levy payers and SMEs

Apprenticeship learning
provision and opportunities are
aligned with the future skills
and trade needs from major
employers in Lambeth

Coordinate promotion of
apprenticeships as a positive
opportunity to young people, families
and teachers
Improve the accessibility of local
apprenticeships by drawing together
all of the local opportunities into a
more coordinated offer, for example
through a dedicated website or hub

Page 87
- 13 -

Objective Three: Support our residents into employment pathways and entrepreneurial
activity, with a particular focus on our Black, young and disabled residents
Context
Central to delivering our vision of an inclusive and resilient recovery in Lambeth is addressing the long-term exclusion and
disadvantage experienced by a significant proportion of our communities. These very same communities have been
disproportionately affected by the economic challenges triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic.

Our focus is on interventions that support those most likely to be disproportionately affected by unemployment, insecure work and low
skills. Groups facing these challenges will be prioritised in the design and commissioning of services by the Council and partners:
● Residents from Black and Minority Ethnic backgrounds
● Young people who are care leavers, not in education, employment or training (NEET), or at risk of becoming NEET such as
those known to the criminal justice system
● People who are homeless or at risk of homelessness
● People with health conditions and disabilities, including mental health problems, and their carers
● Parents with young children
● People at risk or victims of domestic violence
● People aged 50 and above
● Groups which are a combination of the above (intersectionalities).
We know that the support to these groups works best if it supports individual choices and is delivered in a range of ways, including
within their neighbourhood, and is responsive to differing circumstances. This is particularly true for young people where making good
choices about future careers and education is a daunting challenge. Often pathways to London’s amazing opportunities are outside
the experiences of a young person’s friends and family. This makes good careers information, community-based mentoring and
advice vital to developing knowledge and networks to overcome these social and practical barriers. The support also needs to
continue whilst people are in work, enabling them to sustain and succeed in employment.
- 14 -

Page 88

Even before the Black Lives Matter Movement increased the media profile of racial bias in society, the work of our Lambeth Equality
Commission had highlighted this issue and the forms of discrimination that shape the life chances of many Lambeth residents. We
know that as the economy recovers, the majority of residents of the borough will be able to thrive in the London labour market. Along
with our partners we are committed to support the sections of our communities that need additional support but we also want to
address the deeper systemic barriers in our organisations and decision-making.

We will use our established community-based organisations, housing associations, children’s centres, the emerging health and
wellbeing hubs and other local organisations to deliver targeted support in those areas within Lambeth where we know our
communities most need it. Part of our commitment to partnership working is a goal to build trust and local capacity where it is needed
and to better co-ordinate the work of public agencies in communities.

Page 89
- 15 -

Objective Three: what we will do
Headline actions
Short term (by June 2021)

Medium term (by June 2022)

Long term (by March 2024)

Provide high quality
employment support at the
local level, with an integrated
service across partners that is
tailored to the needs of
residents and can respond to
economic shocks

Promote Opportunity Lambeth as
a “front door” service to local
residents providing access to
services from a wide range of local
partners which support residents
with enhancing their skills and
improving their employability (e.g.
local and sub-regional
employment support programmes;
Adult Learning courses, local
colleges and universities, National
Careers Service)
Use a wide variety of
communication channels to
promote our local employment and
training offers, recognising the
range of languages spoken in the
borough

Provide a consistent and
accessible employment support
and learning offer which is
delivered through outreach and
co-location in community venues,
including health and wellbeing
hubs and Children’s Centres,
targeting neighbourhoods with the
highest levels of unemployment,
bringing together services from a
range of partners including the
council, JCP work coaches and
training providers

Using funding from within the
partnership, or through bids to
external funders such as the GLA,
central Government and national
agencies, to commission
personalised employment support
for priority groups with complex or
multiple barriers

Ensure that young people in
Lambeth benefit from the Kickstart
scheme through placements from
local employers and wraparound
support for young people to
ensure they can secure and
sustain their placement and
achieve a positive outcome

Set up Youth Hubs across the
borough, working with partners
who are already established in
their neighbourhoods, where
young adults can access advice
about jobs and careers through 11 support, with referrals to
specialist guidance and
programmes where appropriate

Maintain our long-term
commitment through our
Lambeth Made Youth Promise
to all those aged 16-24 so they
can get the support, training
and advice they need to access
jobs and apprenticeships

Deliver employment support
alongside community-based nonaccredited learning or vocational
training to residents with no or low
qualifications as a route into
employment

Improve the integration of the local
employment and training offer so
that residents benefit from a more
seamless and holistic experience
Maintain ongoing evaluation of
local provision which includes
engagement with residents and
service users to ensure that the
local offer is agile and responsive

Create and maintain a connected
network of local support and
advice for young adults, with
common branding, no wrong front
door to support and a seamless
experience for participants as they
move between partners in the
network

- 16 -

Page 90

Priorities

Headline actions
Priorities

Short term (by June 2021)

Medium term (by June 2022)

Long term (by March 2024)

Promote the Youth Promise to
young people through relevant and
targeted marketing, but also
ensure parents, carers and
families are aware of the local
offer

Address the wider barriers to
employment faced by residents
including health, finance and
housing

Provide intensive and
personalised employment support
for target groups such as care
leavers; young people not in
education, employment or training;
those aged over 50; long-term
unemployed residents; people at
risk of homelessness or currently
homeless; people with long-term
health conditions and disabilities,
and their carers; and parents of
young children

Promote information and
programmes that support local
residents with options on self-

Expand the availability of
affordable and/or temporary
workspace in key town centre

Work with partners to increase
awareness of advice and support
on how to access local and
workplace affordable childcare
provision and information on afterschool clubs
Ensure there is a sufficient supply
of ESOL courses and that
residents are aware of the learning
opportunities available

Influence partner employers and
community organisations to
increase the range of work
experience and suitable
volunteering opportunities for
unemployed residents that provide
pathways to paid employment
Encourage larger employers to
establish or expand work-place
based childcare provision
Through the ELEVATE
programme working with our
creative and technology industry
and VCS
sector to open up the creative
workplace and tackle the lack of
diversity in these sectors

Use and improve the borough’s
digital infrastructure assets to offer
free or low cost, and better
- 17 -

Page 91

Empower residents to make
more informed choices, and
access, self-employment

Provide an employment and
training support offer for young
people with special educational
needs and disabilities (SEND) to
help their transition from full-time
education to training, employment
and independence
Ensure regional and sub-regional
employment support programmes
such as Central London Works
provide a quality offer to Lambeth
residents and that local referrals
are maximised
Increase awareness amongst
employment and training providers
of other local services which can
support residents wider barriers
such as advice agencies and
health programmes

Headline actions
Priorities
opportunities or their own
business venture

Short term (by June 2021)

Medium term (by June 2022)

Long term (by March 2024)

employment or to start and grow
their business, such as the London
Business Hub
Deliver further rounds of the
Lambeth Made Unlock programme
and social enterprise academy

locations to provide space for local
people to locate their new or
established business with
appropriate support and advice
also delivered to these locations

connectivity options to community
locations
Provide young people with the
opportunity to be inspired to create
their own businesses through
engagement of employers and
enterprise programmes in local
schools and colleges

Page 92
- 18 -

Objective Four: Encourage our businesses to be inclusive and resilient, by tackling low pay, in-work
poverty and to reduce their carbon emissions.
Objective Five: Work with our anchor institutions and major employers to utilise our supply chains and
increase spend with local businesses
Context
Lambeth remains open for business and to businesses. We have seen significant development in the borough and have a healthy
pipeline for the future. We have also seen significant physical development in the borough and have a healthy pipeline for the future.
We have been successful in using our planning powers and procurement processes to encourage developers and suppliers to employ
local people and to invest in training. Through working in partnership with the LSEB we know there is significant scope to expand the
social value aspect of our procurement activities to achieve more local impact on employment and employment pathways.

While this creates a positive outlook, we need to ensure that opportunities are captured for local residents and local employers are
able to meet their requirements for labour and skills, within a tightening London labour market, at the same time as providing quality
job opportunities with fair pay and good conditions. We will need to influence, support and incentivise many smaller employers, who
often have limited administrative capacity in their organisation, to see the benefits of providing quality jobs with opportunities for
development and progression. We will encourage employers to commit to positive employment practices and for those that do then
they will be able to access support, training and incentives to help achieve this.
Lambeth has a strong pipeline of development in the borough over the next decade that could create around 2,500 new office-based
jobs per year. Whilst the current recession may delay some of this development, we are confident about the need for existing
employers to fill vacancies when their staff move jobs, which may create a further 4,000 openings annually. Kings College Hospital
and St Thomas’ Hospital are the two biggest employers in the borough and both struggle to find the staff they need. On top of this,
whilst the public sector has faced over a decade of budget cuts the main public sector organisations in Lambeth spend significant
amounts through their own supply chains which gives us a combination of influence on those suppliers and opportunities to direct that
spend to local businesses.
Improving our strategic coordination to connect the jobs available in the borough with appropriate training and local residents can be
addressed over the long term by aligning local training provision and generating interest in those jobs where there are shortages of
applicants.
- 19 -

Page 93

We see this as a staged process of initially working with our public sector partners to share job demand projections, plan recruitment
and public sector investment in employment support to prepare residents for those jobs. As we develop stronger relationships with
other borough employers, including those in the private sector, then we will expand this approach.

Objectives Four and Five: what we will do
Headline actions
Priorities

Short term (by June 2021)

Medium term (by June 2022)

Long term (by March 2024)

Co-ordinate our
policy and
procurement levers to
create opportunities
for local businesses
and quality jobs for
local residents

Continue to use planning policy to ensure
that new developments provide a target
of 25% of jobs for local people, including
apprenticeships, and offer training linked
to the opportunities created by new
development

Coordinate public sector
procurement strategies to increase
spend with local businesses,
increase local recruitment, use
local training provision and
increase adoption of the London
Living Wage

Coordinate large Lambeth based
organisations, including private
companies to align with the public
sector procurement strategies

Encourage and
support local
employers to provide
employment
opportunities for
residents who face
barriers to
employment

Use the Opportunity Lambeth website to
promote local job vacancies,
apprenticeships and work experience
from local employers, particularly those
which may be suitable for residents from
priority groups

Influence all local
organisations to
provide quality jobs
and training

Lead by example by achieving and
promoting the Mayor of London’s Good
Work Standard, Disability Confident and

Work with the Business Improvement
Districts to provide a recruitment service
for their employers which can support
them to recruit local residents

Promote family-friendly jobs that
enable parents and carers to
achieve a balance between
employment and their caring
responsibilities

Work with employers to better
understand their skills and
recruitment needs, matching this
insight with local people who are
seeking work and brokering roles

Provide practical training and
advice to employers to enable
them to better support residents
who have faced barriers to
employment such as care leavers
and people with disabilities
Develop and provide a menu of
incentives for employers who adopt
positive employment practices
Gain accreditation for Lambeth as
a Living Wage Place, promoting

Create more Living Wage Buildings
through both the Council’s own
property portfolio and with other
building owners
- 20 -

Page 94

Deliver a pilot recruitment
partnership with the NHS to test
pre-employment support and inwork training/development for high
demand occupations

Coordinate public sector workforce
strategies to support local
recruitment with a focus on preemployment support and in-work
training/development for high
demand occupations in Lambeth

Headline actions
Priorities
opportunities to more
local residents

Medium term (by June 2022)

Long term (by March 2024)

London Living Wage as positive
employment practice to local employers

the borough as a place that
encourages fair wages and hours
Promote the benefits of local
employment which allows people to
walk or cycle to work

Use business networks and trade
unions to promote the benefits of
positive employment practices in
sectors with traditionally poor
conditions such as hospitality and
retail

Expand the engagement of
businesses in schools, colleges
and adult learning including
through work experience and
curriculum activity
Improve our knowledge of local
business skills and staff
development needs

Ensure local businesses are aware
of public sector supply chain
opportunities and the requirements
for positive employment practices
Explore use of empty space in
schools to provide local residents
with opportunities for enterprise
incubators and business start-up
space

Encourage employers and anchor
institutions to offer work experience
opportunities which are coordinated and
promoted to local young people and
unemployed residents

Increase the
engagement and
involvement of
businesses in our
employment, skills
and learning activity

Continue to broaden Lambeth’s business
networks, including the Business
Improvement Districts (BIDs) and sectorbased networks

- 21 -

Page 95

Short term (by June 2021)

Making it happen
The roles we want to play
The Lambeth Skills and Employment Board recognises that we need to play a range of different roles to achieve the positive changes
in this strategy. These can be summarised as:






The tools at our disposal
We are confident in the contextual factors around the underlying strength of our local economy, our diverse and talented resident and
business base. In addition to these factors we have a number of tools we will be able to use as part of fulfilling our roles to deliver this
strategy. Our most significant tools are:




Our Council and public sector partner public budgets and commissioning to enable us to fund the delivery of services to cover
the full range of skills, training and employment programmes
Collective local spending power of several billion pounds a year by our anchor institutions with the potential to deliver
significant social value through responsible procurement
As the local planning authority we set the framework and policies to make sure we achieve the local benefits of our strong
development pipeline
- 22 -

Page 96




Advocates for the involvement and leadership of people with lived experience, so that solutions and services are co-designed
wherever possible, and lobbying to get the best deal for the borough
Navigators and coordinators – developing a more integrated system for employment and skills, with clearer pathways across
a range of provision to support people into good jobs based on well managed and maintained relationships with key employers
and sectors
Funders and commissioners – building and sharing an evidence-based approach to funding decisions on programmes and
services
Anchor institutions – ensuring jobs and opportunities are created directly within these employers, and through supply chains
Providers – Lambeth has a large and responsive institutional and provider network, delivering education and a wide range of
vocational training and employment support services
Employers and businesses – providing good jobs and opportunities for local people, benefiting from a committed and skilled
local workforce



Committed partnerships and networks of local employers; schools, colleges and universities; the voluntary and public sectors
who all want to collaborate for the benefit of local people

Measuring Success
The scale of change we want to achieve in this strategy is ambitious and all the partners involved in the LSEB will need to adapt to
different ways of designing and delivering our activities. This complexity means there are a number of different ways we will need to
review and understand our success over time. We see these measures as:




High level outcome measures to understand the positive impact for residents and businesses of achieving our objectives
Monitoring and performance management of outputs from activities, services and programmes to understand if we are
delivering our priorities
Qualitative feedback from residents, employers and providers which reflects people’s experience of whether our services and
interventions are having a positive impact, with a particular focus on equalities and diversity.

Page 97

The diagram below illustrates how the measures and monitoring relate to each element of the strategy.

- 23 -

The LSEB will receive regular reports on the high level outcome measures which will be used to understand whether the vision and
objectives are being agreed. At least twice a year the Board will also consider qualitative feedback from residents, employers and
providers. A variety of engagement methods will be used to source this feedback including workshops, surveys and interviews.
Vision

Objectives

High level outcome measures

Lambeth is a
place where
industry,
educational and
cultural
institutions, the
voluntary and
public sectors
come together
to deliver a
world class
skills system
and agile
employment
support that
provide
opportunities for
good quality
work –
responding to
systemic
inequities, the
aspirations of
our residents
and the needs
of the economy

1. Create a skills system
responsive to changes in the
economy, employer demand and
the growth sectors of the future

 Increase in the employment rate for Black residents

 Reduction in unemployment claimant count for working age residents
 Increase in number of residents starting an apprenticeship
 Increase in number of residents completing an apprenticeship

3. Support our residents into
employment pathways and
entrepreneurial activity, with a
particular focus on our Black,
young and disabled residents

 Increase in proportion of 16-18-year-olds participating in education,
employment or training

4. Encourage our businesses to
be inclusive and resilient, by
tackling low pay, in-work poverty
and to reduce their carbon
emissions

 Reduction in unemployment claimant count for 50+

5. Work with our anchor
institutions and major employers
to utilise our supply chains and
increase spend with local
businesses

Page 98

2. Enable our residents to be
more resilient and unlock their
potential through upskilling,
reskilling, training provision and
apprenticeships

 Increase in the employment rate for disabled residents

 Reduction in unemployment claimant count for 18-24-year olds

 Reduction in proportion of working age residents with NVQ1 or below
 Reduction in employer skills shortages in health; digital and creative;
and low carbon sectors
 Reduction in jobs paying less than London Living Wage
 Higher number of local employers signed up to the Living Wage
accreditation, Mayor’s Good Work Standard and Disability Confident

- 24 -

Page 99

Agenda Item 4

CABINET 30 NOVEMBER 2020
Report title: Direct Labour Organisation (Housing Services)
Wards: All
Portfolio: Deputy Leader (Housing and Homelessness): Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite
Report Authorised by: Bayo Dosunmu: Strategic Director for Resident Services
Contact for enquiries: Neil Euesden, Director of Housing Services, 020 7926 9082,
neuesden@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
Last year, Lambeth Council announced that it was going to radically redesign its repair and maintenance
services in pursuit of its commitment to deliver better quality, socially responsible and digitally-driven
services.
Further to this commitment, this report sets out an exciting proposal that will see Lambeth Council create
a Direct Labour Organisation (“DLO”) whereby Council employees will be undertaking communal repairs
in the community and providing tailored property adaptations for some of the borough’s most vulnerable
residents in need of additional support and care.
This community and care focused DLO will be one of the very few DLOs to be created from scratch in
the last 10 years and will play a key role in the Council’s continued move towards more quality and
socially-driven services.
It will also be embracing some of the most dynamic resource management systems available to ensure it
is efficiently managed, financially viable and residents can access and track their services digitally.

Finance summary
The estimated annual cost of services delivered by the DLO is £4.1m and will be funded by £3m of
existing revenue and £1.1m of existing capital budgets.
In addition, there will also be one-off mobilisation costs of £349,000 which will be funded from the HRA
contingency budget.

Page 100
Recommendations
Resident Services is recommending approval of the following actions that will allow it to deliver
community and care services via a DLO:
1. £349,000 mobilisation cost.
2. £4.1m annual HRA budget allowance (£3m revenue; £1.1m capital).
3. Recruit the necessary competent staff (including apprentices) to create a well-run DLO.
4. Absorb Housing Services’ technical property adaptation function into the DLO.
5. Lease the necessary hybrid/electric vehicles, partner with a digitally advanced builders’ merchant
and procure the necessary dynamic ICT and resource management infrastructure.

Page 101
1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.

2.1

2.2

CONTEXT
Responsive Repairs: Getting it Right
The challenge of getting responsive repairs right continues to perplex many social landlords and
solving the repairs conundrum (quality vs. commercial viability) often requires landlords/authorities
to adopt a more radical approach – often requiring a hybrid solution.
Resident Services’ Commitment
Last year, Resident Services announced that it was prepared to discard the status quo in its
commitment to deliver better quality, socially responsible and digitally-driven services. In the
context of Housing Services, this has resulted in a fairly radical redesign of its repair and
maintenance services to reflect a new era of better quality, socially responsible and digitally driven
services.
Service Redesign
Following delegated approval from the Cabinet Member for Housing to commence service
redesign work, Housing Services’ has completely redesigned its outsourced services working with
residents and cabinet members and is proposing a hybrid solution for repairs.
Hybrid Solution
Resident Services is proposing to take a bold step into the world of directly delivered repairs – with
a community and care focus and initially concentrating on communal repairs and property
adaptations for some of the Council’s most vulnerable residents. This will be supported by two
separate geographical repair contracts focusing on in-dwelling repairs with a right-first-time ethos
driven by an inclusive price-per-property model.
Commitments to the Borough Plan and a net-zero Lambeth
The local employment and training opportunities, improvements to local neighbourhoods and
estates, and equality improvements (including support for some of the Council’s most vulnerable
residents) that will be delivered by the DLO will make a positive contribution the Borough Plan and
its core priorities around equality, growth and sustainable neighbourhoods. It will also contribute
towards the Council’s 2030 net-zero commitment and demonstrate to the wider market that core
services can be successfully delivered in an environmentally responsible way.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS
Commitment to the Direct Delivery of Services
Directly delivering these services through the DLO rather than outsourcing them, delivers on this
administration’s clear commitment in its manifesto to bring services back in house ‘where we can
improve services for residents and deliver better value for money’. An appraisal of the various
delivery options identified that a wholesale repairs DLO would pose a significant risk, but a smaller
and focused DLO (of the size and nature being proposed in this report) would represent a unique
and scalable opportunity to positively address a number of repairing issues identified in a residentbased Task and Finish Group. Subsequent design work has identified further opportunities to
deliver property adaptations for vulnerable residents – creating a DLO that is committed to the
community and care.
Communal Repairs Task and Finish Group
In 2019, a resident Task and Finish Group undertook a detailed review of the Council’s communal
repairs service. The Group felt that contractors often give less priority to communal repairs than in-

Page 102
dwelling repairs and produced a report setting out 21 recommendations for the communal repairs
service. Upon careful review of the report, Resident Services identified that the most effective and
reliable way to deliver the recommendations is through a DLO. The DLO will be entirely focussed
on service quality and customer service – supported by a transparent governance framework and
extensive quality auditing process.

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property Adaptations
Supporting Vulnerable Residents in Maintaining their Independence
Further review identified that the DLO could provide property adaptations to support disabled,
vulnerable and older adults in maintaining their independence and remaining in their homes. The
Council’s property adaptations service (administered via Resident Services’ Home Improvement
Agency) will hugely benefit from the quality and customer service focus of a DLO.
Removing Commercial Barriers and Securing Grant Funding
Adaptations are current undertaken by third party commercial contractors and commercial issues
can often get in the way of service provision – which can manifest itself into a backlog of urgent
adaptations. In addition to adapting council-owned properties, the DLO also proposes to
undertake grant-funded adaptations to non-council homes – providing additional DLO income to
that provided by the HRA.
Taking Ownership and Removing Service Monopolies
A DLO provides the council with a fantastic opportunity to take ownership of repairs and reduce its
reliance on third parties. For the council, this will mean a radical shift from a single borough-wide
commercial contracting group with a service monopoly, to a council controlled direct labour
organisation with a community and care focus, supported by two mutually exclusive geographical
repairs contractors that are forced into a right-first-time culture through an inclusive price per
property model.
Embracing the Latest ICT
Dynamic Software
The proposed DLO will be embracing some of the latest dynamic software and will be a far cry
from the DLOs of old. Repair operative work patterns will be managed by the industry leading
Dynamic Resource Scheduling software using dynamic algorithms to ensure their travel and output
is optimised and managed in the most efficient way – and in real time using handheld/tablet
technology.
Resource Planning and Resident Access
Resource planning officers will also be overseeing this optimisation to ensure systems are up to
date and residents are kept up to date with repair progress. Material supply will be managed
digitally with the appointed builder’s merchant tracking material usage and delivering directly to the
operatives’ van – eliminating most of the unproductive travel typically undertaken to and from
depots. Residents will also be able to see and track the progress of communal repairs digitally on
a GIS-driven map-based application.
Social Responsibility
Underlying Ethos
Social responsibility is at the heart of the proposed DLO. Whilst it will be dynamically driven with a
strong governance and management structure, the underlying ethos is to create a diverse
workforce of council employees and apprentices that will provide much needed local employment
and training opportunities to people who are committed to delivering a quality service to Lambeth
residents.

Page 103
2.9

Improving Equality
The DLO will be committed to improving equality within the borough and will target local people
furthest from the employment market; and forge lasting partnerships with local colleges and
university. Taking apprenticeships as an example, commercial contractors typically employ/train 1
apprentice per £1m turnover. The DLO will double this figure with 6 trade apprentices (NVQ level
2 and 3) and 2 surveying apprentices (Degree level) against a £4m turnover. The council currently
places a lot of social responsibility obligations on its contractors (and rightly so) and the DLO
intends to lead by example.

Environmental Responsibility
2.10 Carbon Neutrality and Equality
The DLO will play its part in helping the council achieve its 2030 net-zero carbon commitment –
primarily through sustainable travel and helping to reduce the inequality of poor air quality and its
effect on the most vulnerable residents (young and elderly).
2.11 Commitment
The DLO will deliver this commitment both in its choice of vehicles and travel management (green
vehicles, reduced travelling requirements) and by leading by example – sending a clear message
to other businesses and contractors: ‘if the Council can deliver services in a green and sustainable
way, then so can you.’ In terms of vehicles, the DLO is committed to using electric vehicles with
dynamic journey management to avoid unnecessary and abortive travel. The DLO may however
be required to run a hybrid-electric fleet for the first three years of operation pending sufficient
maturity of the borough’s charging infrastructure.
Organisational Management and Quality Control
2.12 Organisational Management
It is recognised that the success of the DLO will be dependent on effecting a robust management
structure and quality auditing framework. In this regard, the DLO will work to the same KPIs being
demanded from external contractors and it will also procure materials against a KPI framework. It
will have daily toolbox talks with operatives, surveyors and resource planners, weekly operational
meetings, monthly contract/service management meetings and a quarterly core group meeting with
the independent governance board. There will also be a commercial manager retaining oversight
and management of expenditure, together with a dedicated Health and Safety manager. The DLO
will be headed by a commercially and performance driven manager who can implement an
effective and efficient operating structure/culture (embedding appropriate controls and maintaining
transparency throughout) whilst retaining a focus on community and care.
2.13 Quality Control
Effectively controlling quality is again key to the success of the DLO and the proposed structure
has 6 full time surveyors who will be solely focusing on auditing the quality of completed work
(repairs and adaptations). We have set an ambitious 100% auditing target which will be driven
through the use of mobile working technology that will allow surveyors to spend most of their time
visible on estates and in neighbourhoods.
Governance and Accountability
2.14 The DLO will be accountable to an independent governing board with proposed membership
consisting of the Director of Housing Services, Cabinet Members, Residents and a Cost Manager.
The Board will be the core governing body and independent of the day-to-day operational running
of the DLO. It will meet quarterly to review performance, expenditure, budgets, health and safety,
culture, social and environment commitments and make strategic decisions to support its
sustainability and financial viability.

Page 104

Procurement
2.15 General requirements
This is a service insourcing proposal with the constituent procurement activities primarily consisting
of: (1) contract with a builder’s merchant for the supply and management of materials; (2) ICT
equipment, licences and configuration to achieve the DLO’s digital and dynamic resourcing
commitments; (3) vehicle leasing. The DLO intends where possible to avoid reliance on
subcontractors but if this becomes a requirement (and the requirement cannot be sensibly secured
from the two backup repairs contractors) then these requirements will form the basis of discrete
procurement strategies as and when the need arises.
2.16 Materials
The DLO will enter into a long-term (3 years + option to extend for 1 further year) call-off contract
with an established builders’ merchant that has a local presence and digital material management
capability (with site-based delivery). Having a managed material solution whereby the merchant
digitally monitors material usage remotely and replenishes van-based stock remotely (delivery
direct to the operative’s van), removes the need for a traditional depot and saves the associated
rent and upkeep costs. A managed material solution also allows the operatives to work more
productively in residents’ homes by avoiding continuous visits to builders’ merchants and depot.
2.17 ICT
The ICT requirements primarily fall into two categories: (1) Northgate – building new workstreams
and interfaces; (2) Mobile Job Manager module that dovetails with the Council’s Dynamic
Resource Scheduling Software (“DRS”) to allow operatives to work in a mobile and dynamic way.
The Council purchased a perpetual DRS licence from Advance (formally Kirona) in 2009 and the
Mobile Job Manager module will be a bolt-on module – requiring a separate licence and some
initial configuration work. There will also be a requirement to purchase new laptops, mobile
tablets, phones, printers etc. and again these will be purchased/leased under existing council
arrangements/contracts.
2.18 Vehicles
Vehicles will be leased under the Council’s existing Fleet Management Contract against the DLO’s
commitment to reducing emissions and improving air quality (and equality). This will be hybridelectric for the first three years and switching to fully electric thereafter when the borough’s
charging infrastructure has matured.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

Budgeting and Scope
The ongoing costs of the DLO are a cost neutral proposal as part of a strategic shift in operational
delivery in tandem with a wider set of procurements across Housing Services. The current
Revenue and Capital envelope in scope is shown in Table 1.
Table 1: Revenue and Capital envelope
Annual
Budget
(£’000)
2,000

Revenue
Revenue

Communal repairs (currently delivered via responsive repair contractors)
Estate Improvement Works (contractor costs via Estate Action Plans)

1,000

Capital

Property adaptations (currently delivered via third party contractors)

1,100
4,100

Total

Page 105

3.2

Annual Cost
The principal annual costs of running the proposed DLO relate to staff, materials and vehicles together with the smaller cost headings set out in Table 2 below.
Table 2: DLO Indicative Annual Revenue and Capital Cost
Item
Staff (38 Officers + 8 Apprentices)
Recruitment and Training
Materials and Equipment
Supply Chain (specialist adaptations and work)
Vehicles (incl. insurances and fuel)
PPE, Uniforms, Comms, Branding
ICT
Auditing
Depot
Contingency
Total

3.3

Revenue
Budget
(£’000)
1,480
20
600
400
250
20
45
15
50
120
3,000

Capital
Budget
(£’000)
470
0
300
300
0
0
0
0
0
30
1,100

Total
Annual
Budget
(£’000)
1,950
20
900
700
250
20
45
15
50
150
4,100

Finance and Budgetary Risk Mitigation
The scope of services delivered under the DLO (communal repairs and property adaptations) will
be excluded from the scope of the backup repairs contracts and HIA contracts, thereby removing
the risk of duplication.
To ensure capital costs (property adaptations) are accurately identified, reported and separated
from revenue costs, all property adaptations shall be raised on the Northgate housing management
system on a discrete workstream and using the National Housing Federation’s (NHF) suite of
property adaptation Schedules of Rate (SORs). Similarly, communal repairs will be raised on a
separate discrete workstream using NHF repair SORs. This will allow separate revenue and
capital expenditure reports to be run on a periodic basis (i.e. monthly) and create a clear distinction
between the two budgets.
The scope of revenue and capital budgets in Table 2 may flex in response to service demand, and
this will be covered by the in-year budget monitoring process as well as medium-term financial
planning process - the HRA 30-year Business Plan.

3.4

Mobilisation Cost
There will be an initial mobilisation cost for the project estimated at £349,000 which includes the
items set out in Table 3 below; this will be funded from the HRA contingency budget.

Page 106
Table 3: DLO Mobilisation Cost
Total Cost
(£’000)

DLO Mobilisation Cost
ICT Equipment, Set Up Costs and Licences
Recruitment and Training
Branding, Comms and Livery
PPE and Uniforms
External Consultancy Support
Depot Refurbishment, Furniture and Sundries
Equipment (including vehicle charging)
Total

116
25
10
12
70
45
71
349

3.5

Possible future Grant Funded Work
Subject to dynamic resource scheduling, the DLO can undertake some adaptations to non-tenant
dwellings. In such instances, Disabled Facilities Grant can be utilised to cover applicable
overheads when the DLO team delivers aids and adaptations to non-tenant dwellings thereby
offsetting DLO costs with grant income. Being prudent, this income is not counted in this report as
this is a scalable activity that will enlarge in the future.

3.6

Commercial Model, Benchmarking and Governance
The DLO’s day-to-day work output will be ordered/valued using the latest prices/rates published by
the NHF – also used by the commercial back-up repair contractors. This will allow ongoing
benchmarking with the backup repair contractors and the housing sector generally. In essence,
the actual annual cost of running the DLO (Table 2) should be the equivalent to, or less than, the
annual work output – as valued using the NHF rates (which are priced according to current
material and labour rates). A Cost Manager from the Council’s Commercial Services Team will be
undertaking forensic assessment work and routinely auditing cost and value. The DLO will also be
accountable to an independent board that will provide further governance and financial auditing.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

Cabinet has the authority to approve the recommendations in this report.

4.2

The council has a general power of competence under the Localism Act 2012. As a ‘best value’
authority the council has a statutory duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised,
having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. This duty requires the
council to consult stakeholders and paragraph 5.1 outlines how this was done.

4.3

Under section 74 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 the council, as a local housing
authority, has a duty to keep a Housing Revenue Account of sums falling to be credited or debited
in respect of housing provided under the Housing Act 1985. Under section 41 all expenditure
incurred by a local authority, other than expenditure excluded by section 42 of that act, must be
charged to a revenue account of the authority. Under section 77 a local housing authority may also
keep an account called the Housing Repairs Account, to which it shall carry to the debit of that
account all expenditure incurred by them for the year in connection with the repair or maintenance
of houses or other property within their Housing Revenue Account.

Page 107
4.4

Procurement of the goods and services outlined in Recommendation 5 of this report must comply
with the council’s contract standing orders and, where relevant, the Public Contracts Regulations.

4.5

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 sets out the new public sector equality duty replacing the
previous duties in relation to race, sex and disability and extending the duty to all the protected
characteristics i.e. race, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy or
maternity, marriage or civil partnership and gender reassignment.

4.6

The public sector equality duty requires public authorities to have due regard to the need to:
• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
• Advance equality of opportunity, and;
• Foster good relations between those who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.

4.7

Part of the duty to have “due regard” where there is disproportionate impact will be to take steps to
mitigate the impact and the council must demonstrate that this has been done, and/or justify the
decision, on the basis that it is a proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim. Accordingly,
there is an expectation that a decision maker will explore other means which have less of a
disproportionate impact.

4.8

The Equality Duty must be complied with before and at the time that a particular policy is under
consideration or decision is taken – that is, in the development of policy options, and in making a
final decision. A public body cannot satisfy the Equality Duty by justifying a decision after it has
been taken.

4.9

Section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003 enables the Council to charge for discretionary
services. However, this power is subject to a duty to secure that, taking one financial year with
another, the income from charges does not exceed the costs of provision. Within this framework
the Council may set charges as it sees fit and in particular, charge only some persons for provision
of the services and charge different persons different amounts for the provision of a service.

4.10 This proposed key decision was entered in the Forward Plan on 05 October 2020 and the necessary
28 clear days’ notice has been given. In addition, the Council’s Constitution requires the report to
be published on the website for five clear days before the proposed decision is approved by the
Cabinet Member. Any representations received during this period must be considered by the
decision-maker before the decision is taken. A further period of five clear days - the call-in period –
must then elapse before the decision is enacted. If the decision is called-in during this period, it
cannot be enacted until the call-in has been considered and resolved.

5

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

The creation of a DLO is a coproduced proposal and stems from a truly collaborative journey with
residents, members, officers and independent experts/advisors. It responds to the
recommendations of the communal repairs Task and Finish Group and also some of the priorities
that came out of workshops with the Council’s Resident Procurement Panel (a resident-based
advisory and consultative panel set up to assist the Council design, procure and manage the suite
of new housing repair and maintenance contracts and direct delivery arrangements). Furthermore,
the Council has appointed specialist housing consultants to identify recent insourcing best practice
– which aligns with the hybrid solution being proposed.

Page 108
6

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

The main risks that could impede on the successful delivery of this procurement and contract are:

Table 4: Risk Register
Item
1.
2.
3.

4.

Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Score

3

2

6

2

4

8

2

4

8

1

2

2

Timescale
ICT not in place
for mobilisation
No contract with
builders’
merchant
Material
shortages - no
large depot

5.

Lack of
Governance

2

4

8

6.

Lack of Budget

2

4

8

7.

Financial Viability

2

4

8

8.

Inefficiency

2

2

4

9.

Poor
workmanship

2

2

4

10.

Not recruiting
enough
operatives and
supervisory staff

2

4

8

11.

Lack of
apprenticeships

2

2

4

12.

Not contributing
to carbon
neutrality

2

2

4

Key:
Likelihood
Impact

Very Likely
Major

4
8

Likely
Serious

3
4

Control Measures
Project plan developed and project team in
place to manage critical activities
ICT support and configuration team in place –
with user testing built into the timetable.
Competitive call-off contract opportunities
identified from existing frameworks – full
procurement not required.
Use of digital real time material management
and direct delivery to operatives’ vehicles.
Independent governing board will meet
quarterly to review performance, expenditure,
and make strategic decisions to support its
sustainability and financial viability.
Virements from existing HRA budgets and
further funding via Home Improvement
Grants.
A Cost Manager from the Council’s
Commercial Services Team will be
undertaking forensic assessment work and
routinely auditing cost and value.
Industry leading Dynamic Resource
Scheduling software to ensure travel and
output is optimised.
6 full time surveyors who will focus on
auditing the quality of completed work
(repairs and adaptations) against a 100%
target.
Job descriptions have been developed to
reflect best DLO practice elsewhere and will
be fully evaluated and graded by the Council
– with all recruitment built into the timetable.
Commitment of 8 apprentices (6 trade; 2
surveying) through partnerships with local
college and university.
Vehicles will be hybrid for the first three years
then fully electric thereafter upon maturity of
the borough’s electric charging infrastructure.

Unlikely
Significant

2
2

Very Unlikely
Minor

1
1

Page 109
7

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

An EIA has been produced and approved for the 2020 redesign and re-procurement of housing
services which includes the DLO. The assessment identifies that not only is there no adverse impact
on equality within the borough, but it positively strives to improve the equality amongst borough
citizens and their protected characteristics.

7.2

In the context of the DLO, some of the key areas in which the DLO will positively contribute to the
equality of borough citizens include:









Employment opportunities targeted at local residents – with particular focus on those furthest
from the job market.
Support for those unfamiliar the job application and interview process.
Trade and professional apprenticeship programmes again targeted at local people – including
care leavers.
Working closely with the local colleges and university to provide training.
Career progression opportunities (with support and training) within both the DLO and Council.
Council terms and conditions – including pension.
Reducing the inequality of poor air quality and its effect on the most vulnerable residents (young
and elderly).
Providing property adaptations to support disabled, vulnerable and older adults in maintaining
their independence and remaining in their homes.

7.3

To help achieve the employment and training goals in a holistic way, a dedicated DLO Recruitment
Campaign Group will be formed. The Group will include officers and managers from the following
teams: Skills and Employment, Apprenticeships and Career Pathways, HR, Policy and
Communications, and Housing Services.

8

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

The DLO will be working with the Council’s neighbourhood housing teams in developing and
delivering their Estate Action Plans which, where required, include proposals to mitigate crime and
disorder on estates (including anti-social behaviour) and associated work to improve safety within
neighbourhoods.

9

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

9.2

Environmental
Improving air quality is a priority for the DLO and it will be helping the council achieve its 2030
carbon neutrality commitment through sustainable travel and helping to reduce the inequality of
poor air quality and its effect on the most vulnerable residents (young and elderly). The DLO is
committed to using electric vehicles with dynamic journey management to avoid unnecessary and
abortive travel.
Health
The principal focus of the DLO is community and care: maintaining and improving estates and
neighbourhoods; and providing property adaptations to support disabled, vulnerable and older
adults in maintaining their independence and remaining in their homes. Given the link between

Page 110
and housing and health and wellbeing, the work of the DLO will make a positive impact within the
borough – in addition to the employment and training opportunities generated.
Staffing and accommodation
Having reviewed best practice models and the proposed service scope, the following structure
(Chart 1) is proposed to ensure the DLO is well run and achieves the necessary output. The
incumbent contractor group has advised it has no employees allocated to communal repairs and
those with TUPE rights are all associated with in-dwelling repairs. The council will therefore be
required to recruit to most roles. A traditional large depot is not required and the DLO’s
accommodation requirements consist of an office-based environment (15 hot desks +
meeting/training space) for resource planning, management, auditing, training and toolbox talks.

9.3

Chart 1: Draft DLO Staffing Structure (37 Officers + 8 Apprentices)

Assistant
Director
Independent Governance
Board
Head of DLO

DLO Manager
(North)

DLO Manager
(South)

Commercial
Manager

Supervising
Operative

Supervising
Operative

Resource
Scheduler x 2

Trade Apprentices x 6

HIA Team
Leader

HIA
Surveyors x 3

Communal
Surveyors x 3

Surveying
Apprentices x 2
(Quality Audit)
Apprenticeship
Levy

Head of Compliance











Trade Operatives (22):
Plumber x 5
Painter and Decorator x 2
Drainage Technician x 1
Labourer / Driver x 1
Bricklayer x 1
Groundworker x 5
Electrician x 1
Joiner x 2
Multitrade (plastering and carpentry) x 4

Health & Safety
Manager

Page 111

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

10

Responsible Procurement
Good Quality Jobs with Fair Pay and Decent Working Conditions
The DLO will target local people furthest from the employment market and provide them with
career progression opportunities (with support and training) within both the DLO and Council.
They will also benefit from Council terms and conditions – including pension.
Quality Apprenticeships, targeted Employment for Lambeth residents and Lambeth Priority Group
The DLO will create lasting partnerships with local colleges (Lambeth) and university and double
the number of apprenticeships ((6 trade apprentices (NVQ level 2) and 2 surveying apprentices
(Degree level)) typically offered in the sector (2 apprenticeships per £1m turnover vs. sector
typical 1 apprenticeship per £1m turnover).
Reduce Emissions: Lambeth Council has a commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030
The DLO is committed to using electric vehicles with dynamic journey management to avoid
unnecessary and abortive travel – helping the council achieve its 2030 carbon neutrality
commitment.
Single Use Plastics
The DLO will work with the council to effect and implement a ban on all single use plastics and
plastic will be recycled in accordance with council policy.
Positive Health and Wellbeing
We know that well maintained homes and neighbourhoods have a huge positive impact on the
health and wellbeing of residents – and the DLO is all about achieving this. The DLO will also be
adapting homes for the borough’s most vulnerable residents and positively contributing to their
wellbeing. DLO employees will also benefit from the huge commitment and resources that the
council provide to positively impact on their wellbeing.

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

10.1 The table below details the stages and deadlines for implementing the recommendations:

Activity

Proposed Date

Cabinet

30 November 2020

End of Call-in Period

11 December 2020

Formation of the DLO

11 January 2021

Mobilisation Period for the DLO

3 months

Operational Commencement of the DLO

11 April 2021

Page 112
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name and Position/Title
Councillor Jennifer
Brathwaite
Bayo Dosunmu, Strategic
Director
Neil Euesden, Director of
Housing
Andrew Ramsden,
Assistant Director,
Finance
David Thomas, Legal
Services
Greg Carson, Legal
Services
Maria Burton, Democratic
Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

Deputy Leader (Housing and
Homelessness)

30.10.20

04.11.20

Resident Services

02.03.20

02.03.20

Resident Services

02.03.20

02.03.20

Finance and Property

07.08.20

01.09.20

3

Legal and Governance

30.07.20

31.07.20

4.1 – 4.9

Legal and Governance

16.09.20

22.09.20

4.10

Lambeth Directorate

Comments in
paragraph:

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

June 2019
18.11.20
19.11.20
No
Yes
05 October 2020
Expenditure, income or savings in excess of
£500,000.

Background information

Cabinet Member Delegated Decision 08 July 2019
“Design of Housing Services after 2020”

Appendices

Appendix 1: Equalities Impact Assessment

Page 113

Author : Adelle Pobee
Andrew Jacques
Directorate: Resident Services

Extension: 66951
63749
Department/Division: Housing Repairs
and Capital Investment

Direct Labour Organisation (Housing Services) Equality Impact Assessment
Q1 - What is changing?
Notes: What is the most significant or key change taking place? Can you indicate the type of
change (e.g. policy/decision/strategy/service/procedural/geographic/contractual etc.) in your
response so it is clear what is being assessed? Why is this happening? What do you aim to
achieve? Can you clearly indicate what decision-makers are being asked to take a decision
on?

Resident Services is undergoing a transformational re-designing of its repairs and
maintenance services as it strives to deliver better quality, socially responsible and digitally
advanced services. The re-procurement project for the various repairs and maintenance
workstreams is well underway and a separate EIA was completed. This EIA is an update to
that, specifically for the DLO.
One of the most exciting aspects of Resident Services’ changing landscape is, its ambition
and commitment to create a Direct Labour Organisation (DLO) from scratch, which will
deliver communal repairs and aids and adaptation works.
A Direct Labour Organisation is typically where identified specialist functions are provided inhouse. The case for setting up the DLO has been made in other papers (DLO - Business
Case), it is important to note still, some of the strengths for proposing a DLO here.
A DLO will mean that the council will retain direct ownership and control, no procurement is
necessary as staff will be directly appointed, avoiding high procurement costs. A DLO offers
the potential for greater community spirit / tenant relationship, effective branding,
transparency and no private profit will be paid to a third party either.
The intention of the Lambeth Direct Labour Organisation will see council employees carry
out communal repairs in the local community and provide tailored adaptations in the homes
of the most vulnerable residents in need of additional care and support.
The estimated annual cost of the services delivered by the DLO is £4.1m and will be funded
via existing revenue and capital budget streams. An initial one-off mobilisation cost of
£349,000 will be funded from the HRA contingency budget. The remit of the DLO is to carry
out work to communal and estate areas covering the following trades:






Groundworks
Finishing
Plumbing
Brickwork
Drainage

Page 114









Glazing
Decorating
Electricals
Rubbish Clearance & Bins
Concrete
Inspection/Survey
Fencing

The DLO will also be allocated work for:




Minor Aids & Adaptations
Minor Works team
Estate Improvement Programme

Its remit will not extend to the following work types:






Asbestos works
Carpentry
FRA and Fire related works
Gas/Heating
Roofing & Scaffolding

Operational outlook of the DLO
The DLO will champion digitisation in terms of how each work order is delivered, giving
residents greater tracking ability, efficiency and ensure financial transparency. This will be
made possible through the dynamic resourcing scheduling system (DRS). The system will
match skills of the operative to work order and dynamically schedule an appointment into
their diary and will interface with the main repairs system – Northgate and will accordingly
send text messages to the requester (resident) confirming the following:
o
o
o
o
o

Appointment raised confirmation
Appointment changes confirmation
Appointment reminder (24 hours prior to appointment day)
Operative On-Way (based on when operative accepts the job on mobile
device)
Completion message (this is optional)

This EIA for the DLO not only aims to consider all Protected Characteristics and its likely
impact on Lambeth residents but, it also aims to go beyond the law and assess socioeconomic (education, income level, housing tenure) and other Lambeth impacts too. It will
broadly assert that this is not only transformational and daring, but it also holds the
possibility to eliminate discrimination, advance equality, foster good relations and mitigate
detrimental impacts through these main changes of:
o
o
o
o
o
o

Undertake communal repairs
Aids and adaptation work
Minor Works Team
Estate Improvement Programme
Embrace Latest ICT
Direct Recruitment of Lambeth employees

Page 115

There will also be a change to how the DLO is recruited into. An essential feature of the
proposed DLO is the exciting opportunity to recruit a full workforce through engagement with
the market. A Recruitment Campaign Group (RCG) made up of council officers from HR,
Housing Services and Economic Inclusion is being set up to manage the campaign and
publicity for upcoming opportunities, training and support.
At a time when findings from the Patrick Vernon Report (Race & Diversity in Lambeth
Council 2020 – independent review) has documented structural racism, lack of fairness and
equality of opportunity acutely felt by current BAME staff, concerns around age
discrimination against staff over 50 years old when it comes to training, disability / lack of
support for hidden disabilities, Ex-Offenders feel discrimination because of their criminal
record. Gender discrimination relating to women generally and BAME women specifically, is
significant.
The DLO and its recruitment for council employees to deliver the service is an opportunity to
implement Vernon’s recommendations, making it more positively impactful for all residents
and council workers.

Q1.b - Who will be involved in approving this decision?
Notes: who will be involved in signing-off this decision?


Bayo Dosunmu – Strategic Director (Resident Services) – for noting



Neil Euesden – Delivery Director, Resident Services – for clearance/approval



Procurement Board – for noting and discussion



Corporate EIA Panel – for noting and discussion



David Thomas, Contracts Lawyer, Legal Services – to note

Q2 - What do we know about the people who will be impacted by this change?
Notes: What does your information tell you about the people who will affected by this
change?
Are protected groups impacted? What information do you hold on the protected
characteristics of the people affected by the change? (Age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, health, socioeconomic, language).
Are there any gaps or missing information?
The DLO will change how communal repairs and adaptation works are delivered and will
ensure that they are delivered by directly employed council workers. For that reason, it is
important to firstly set out the demographic profile as far as possible to understand the
numbers (percentages) of people who will be impacted by the change.
This section will then analyse independent survey of resident satisfaction levels with repairs
across the main protected characteristics, to understand the scope of the incoming DLO.

Page 116

Demographic Profile
Lambeth is changing, the population of the borough increased from 280,000 in 2011 to
328,000 in 2017 and this was mainly among the ‘working age’ residents, this rate exceeding
both the London and England averages. It is fair to say that Lambeth is rich and vibrant, but
still high levels of deprivation remain with Lambeth being the ninth amongst the most
deprived boroughs. Up to 31% of its population live in areas of high levels of deprivation,
19% of employees living in Lambeth are paid below London Living Wage and up to 33% of
its older people are living in income deprived households.
The DLO presents a real opportunity to redress some of these very alarming figures by
prioritising a skills analysis for communal repair works, provide opportunities for
employment, offer training and apprenticeships for residents as well as guaranteeing the
London Living Wage as a minimum requirement which is a key commitment of the council.
Housing and homelessness
Over 50% of black Lambeth residents which is about 1,845 are listed for rehousing under the
priority need banding. A significant number of black households that became homeless are
reported to have a physical / mental illness.

Employment
Over the last decade, the number of jobs has grown by 21% (28,000) and the number of
enterprises by 50% (4,655). The borough does have specialisms in the creative and digital
industries and in healthcare, as well as its vibrant town centres. As a population, Lambeth is
highly skilled where 64.4% of 16-64year olds were qualified at NVQ Level 4 or above in 2016
when compared to 52% of working age across London and 37.9% nationally.

The benefits of this economic growth masks the disparities across the borough as these are
not distributed equally. There are still 23,700 Lambeth residents who are qualified at just

Page 117

Working age residents who are not ‘highly’ skilled (i.e NVQ Level 1 or lower) risk being left
behind which makes the likelihood of low pay and unemployment much higher. The skills
analysis for communal works, training and support that would become available through the
creation of the DLO, is an advantage.

Unemployment is disproportionately higher among ethnic minority groups when compared to
white residents; an employment rate gap of over 20% between White and Black residents.

Page 118

Lambeth also has a low take-up of apprenticeships, with around 7 starts per 1,000 working
age population and this will be a top priority for the DLO.

Page 119

Page 120

Health
There is undoubtedly a link between socio-economic status and poor health where Black
and Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities are more likely to have more levels of obesity. This
community is also more likely to be represented in mental health service cases and or
intensive care.

Analysis of Resident Survey of Repairs
Since the primary function of the DLO is to undertake repair works, this part of the EIA will
analyse and reflect upon existing data/resident feedback of their repairs experience for
works carried out in their homes and on estates. This data will be useful in terms of providing
actual stats of feedback amongst Lambeth tenant profile to draw necessary conclusions
which may be useful for the DLO project also.
The below table gives an overview of Lambeth’s tenant profile as compared with the
Lambeth population overall.

ethnicity
BAME
White
gender
Male
female
Age
>25
25-44
45-64

Council tenants

Borough residents

57.8%
31.1%

44.1%
55.9%

35.6%
64.3%

50%
50%

1.2%
29.2%
46.8%

28.2%
29.1%
19.6%

Page 121

>65

22.5%

7.7%

(Source: Tenants Digest, March 2019).

Of its 23,195 tenant profile, 12.9% is recorded as disabled and within that, 8.7% is recorded
as having a physical disability, 0.8% as wheelchair users and 3.5% as hearing impaired.
26.3% of its tenants are recorded as Christian, 4.1% as Muslim and 6.9% as having no
religion at all.
Survey data and protected characteristics (age, disability, gender, religion, ethnicity and age,
sexual orientation and socio-economic status) was analysed by an independent research
company from a good sample of 4,172.
Overall, there are no differences in levels of satisfaction by gender or disability. There are
some small differences in terms of sexual orientation, ethnicity, religion and age, although
taking account of the margin of error, inherent in the survey, these are not wide enough to be
statistically significant.
Having said that, these relatively small differences need to be understood further and the
causes of these are being investigated – to see if there are any underlying causes and how
best we can mitigate against barriers to any service. Question 3b will focus on targeted
methods for improving satisfaction levels amongst the above identified
sets (ethnicity, religion, age etc).

Age – positive
In terms of age and the satisfaction with quality of repairs, the data shows that residents are
generally satisfied with the quality of works completed. The age band 85 years+ are about
91.8% satisfied, with 80.6% of the 25-34 year old age band being satisfied with quality.

Page 122

Age and satisfaction with quality of repairs
Were you happy with the quality of the work completed by the tradesperson?
Age Band
Don't know No
Yes
Grand Total
% Satisfied
16 to 24
3
13
78
94
85.7%
25 to 34
15
106
440
561
80.6%
35 to 44
24
120
619
763
83.8%
45 to 54
23
136
817
976
85.7%
55 to 64
22
101
631
754
86.2%
65 to 74
10
60
414
484
87.3%
75 to 84
4
27
249
280
90.2%
85+
7
78
85
91.8%
Prefer not to say
8
30
137
175
82.0%
Grand Total
109
600
3463
4172
85.2%

Satisfaction and Age Band
100.0%

90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%
16 to 24 25 to 34 35 to 44 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 to 74 75 to 84

85+

Ethnicity – positive
55.9% of the Borough’s residents are white. Lambeth’s largest non-white ethnic group is
Black African (11.9%), followed by Black Caribbean (8.8%) and a small Asian population
(8.4%) of Lambeth residents from Asian backgrounds (including Chinese) which is much
less than the inner London average (21%).
In terms of understanding levels of satisfaction and ethnicity, based on the 4172 sample,
there is no significant difference amongst the diverse groups. This is positive as it reinforces
that no one group ‘feels’ particularly marginalised or ‘unhappy’ with the quality of repairs.

Black and Ethnic Minorities and satisfaction with quality of repairs
Were you happy with the quality of the work completed by the tradesperson?
BME versus Non-BME
Don't know No
Yes
Grand Total % Satisfied
100.0%
BME
64
363 2021
2448
84.8%
Non-BME
24
138 1013
1175
88.0% 90.0%
Prefer not to say
19
80
316
415
79.8% 80.0%
Other
2
19
113
134
85.6% 70.0%
Grand Total
109
600 3463
4172
85.2% 60.0%

BME versus Non-BME

50.0%

40.0%
30.0%
20.0%

10.0%
0.0%
BME

What is your ethnicity?
Were you happy with the quality of the work completed by the tradesperson?
Ethnicity
Don't know No
Yes
Grand Total % Satisfied
White British
16
97
779
892
88.9%
African
16
113
708
837
86.2%
South Asian
2
13
80
95
86.0%
Carribean
21
120
718
859
85.7%
Other
4
28
161
193
85.2%
Black other
6
42
240
288
85.1%
White non-British
8
41
233
282
85.0%
Chinese
2
2
10
14
83.3%
Latin American
3
14
58
75
80.6%
Prefer not to say
19
80
316
415
79.8%
Mixed ethnicity
12
50
160
222
76.2%
Grand Total
109
600 3463
4172
85.2%

Non-BME

Ethnicity
100.0%
90.0%
80.0%

70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%

Other

Grand Total

Grand
Total

Page 123

Ethnicity and Age - positive
The data shows steady satisfaction levels amongst age bands 16-24 right across and up to
the age band of 75-84. A disparity is evident only amongst the 85+ age band where nonBME tenants tend to be up to 97.6% satisfied when compared to the 84.2% BME group.
Ethnicity and Age
Were you happy with the quality of the work completed by the tradesperson?
Age band
BME
Non-BME Prefer not to say
16 to 24
84.7%
80.0%
100.0% 120.0%
25 to 34
80.9%
83.2%
71.1%
35 to 44
84.7%
83.8%
79.2% 100.0%
45 to 54
84.9%
89.9%
78.8%
55 to 64
87.1%
86.2%
76.7% 80.0%
65 to 74
84.2%
89.4%
88.0%
75 to 84
89.1%
91.7%
83.3% 60.0%
85+
84.2%
97.6%
100.0%
40.0%
Prefer not to say
92.0%
75.0%
80.6%

Satisfaction, Ethnicity and Age

20.0%
0.0%
16 to 24

25 to 34

35 to 44

45 to 54

BME

Age band
16 to 24
25 to 34
35 to 44
45 to 54
55 to 64
65 to 74
75 to 84
85+
Prefer not to say

BME
74
395
576
638
388
193
120
38
26
2448

Non-BME Prefer not to say Other
11
8
1
108
39
19 700
112
51
24 600
235
67
36 500
274
66
26
400
252
25
14
134
19
7 300
41
4
2 200
8
136
5
100
1175
415
134

55 to 64

65 to 74

75 to 84

85+

Non-BME

Ethnicity and Age

0
16 to 24

25 to 34

35 to 44

45 to 54

BME

55 to 64

65 to 74

75 to 84

Non-BME

Where there are differences in the levels of satisfaction (by several of the categories
including age and between BME and Non-BME residents), it would be hard to attribute
causation to any specific variable. Differences in the age profiles for some categories
complicate the situation. For example, BME residents are generally younger than non-BME
residents. It is possible therefore, that differences in levels of satisfaction between BME and
non-BME residents are, in part, due to differences in the age profiles. However, it could just
as easily be the case that differences in levels of satisfaction between age bands is in part a
consequence of differences between BME and non-BME.

Gender – positive
For gender, the level of satisfaction amongst male, female and other gender identity group is
around 80%. This is consistent irrespective of gender and is evidence of the effective
working to the core council values of carrying out improvement works to resident homes up
to a good standard and, universally. Even of those who preferred ‘not to say,’ level of
satisfaction was 83.9%.

85+

Page 124

Gender and satisfaction with quality of repairs
Were you happy with the quality of the work completed by the tradesperson?
Gender
Don't know No
Yes
Grand Total % Satisfied
Female
78
414 2389
2881
85.2%
Male
28
174 1014
1216
85.4%
Other gender identity
3
13
16
81.3%
Prefer not to say
3
9
47
59
83.9%
Grand Total
109
600 3463
4172
85.2%

Satisfaction and gender
90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%
Female

Male

Other gender identity

Grand Total

Sexual Orientation – positive
The Lambeth Residents’ Survey 2015 identified 4% of Lambeth residents as gay, lesbian or
bisexual. There is little information available on this profile, though it is estimated that of the
24,800 Lambeth tenants, 28 (0.1%) are transgender.

Sexual orientation and satisfaction with quality of repairs
Were you happy with the quality of the work completed by the tradesperson?
Sexual orientation
Don't know No
Yes
Grand Total % Satisfied
Bisexual
5
28
33
84.8%
Don't know
3
9
48
60
84.2%
Heterosexual
80
465
2859
3404
86.0%
Homosexual
2
15
61
78
80.3%
Other
7
46
53
86.8%
Prefer not to say
24
99
421
544
81.0%
Grand Total
109
600
3463
4172
85.2%

Sexual Orientation
100.0%
90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%
Bisexual

Don't know

Heterosexual

Homosexual

There was no significant difference in satisfaction in respect of sexual orientation and quality
of repairs.

Disability – positive
Data obtained amongst the ‘disability’ group was not recorded as one homogenous entity.
Instead, data recorded reflects their level of ‘limitation’ because of a health problem to
enable us to better understand the views of the group so that early scoping of the
specification for procurement could acknowledge residents’ needs in a more dynamic way.

Other

Page 125

There is no significant difference in satisfaction amongst residents whose day to day
activities are limited because of a health problem. When the data is analysed even further,
86.6% of permanently sick/disabled residents are satisfied in comparison to 85.1% of those
in all other categories.

Disability and satisfaction with quality of repairs
Were you happy with the quality of the work completed by the tradesperson?
Don't know No Yes Grand Total % Satisfied
No
63 362 2152
2577
85.6% 100.0%
Prefer not to say
10
48 228
286
82.6% 90.0%
Yes, limited a little
11
55 334
400
85.9% 80.0%
Yes, limited a lot
25 135 749
909
84.7% 70.0%
Grand Total
109 600 3463
4172
85.2% 60.0%

Day to day activities limited because of a health problem

50.0%
40.0%
30.0%

20.0%
10.0%
0.0%
No

Describe what you are doing at the moment
Were you happy with the quality of the work completed by the tradesperson?
Don't know No Yes Grand Total
Doing something else
1
8
33
42
Doing something else (please specify)
8
26 169
203
Don't know
2
1
3
Don't know (DNRO)
2
3
5
Employee in full-time job (30 hours plus per week)
32 165 763
960
Employee in part-time job (under 30 hours per week) 13
95 456
564
Full-time education at school, college or university
1
13
56
70
Looking after the home
6
35 210
251
On a government supported training programme
9
9
Permanently sick/disabled
8
60 389
457
Prefer not to say
6
14
52
72
Prefer not to say (DNRO)
5
42 242
289
Self employed full-time
3
15
80
98
Self employed part-time
2
16
62
80
Unemployed and available for work
6
28 288
322
Wholly retired from work
18
79 650
747
Grand Total
109 600 3463
4172

Permanently sick/disabled
All other categories
Grand Total

Yes, limited a little

86.6%
85.1%
85.2% 100.0%

Yes, limited a lot

Grand Total

Permanently sick/disabled

90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%

50.0%
40.0%

30.0%
20.0%

10.0%
0.0%
Permanently sick/disabled

All other categories

Grand Total

Religion – positive
There is no marked difference in the religious belief/principles a tenant holds and how
satisfied they are with the quality of repairs carried out.

Religion and satisfaction with quality of repairs
Were you happy with the quality of the work completed by the tradesperson?
Religion
Don't know No
Yes
Grand Total % Satisfied
100.0%
Hindu
1
10
11
90.9%
Christian
62
313
1974
2349
86.3% 90.0%
Other
3
34
211
248
86.1% 80.0%
Muslim
9
64
374
447
85.4% 70.0%
No religion
19
102
536
657
84.0% 60.0%
Atheist
9
40
49
81.6% 50.0%
Prefer not to say
15
69
291
375
80.8%
40.0%
Jewish
1
1
4
6
80.0%
Sikh
1
4
5
80.0% 30.0%
Buddhist
6
19
25
76.0% 20.0%
Grand Total
109
600
3463
4172
85.2% 10.0%

Satisfaction and religion

0.0%
Hindu Christian Other

Muslim

No
Atheist
religion

Jewish

Sikh

Buddhist Grand
Total

Page 126

Language – positive
Around 150 different languages are spoken in the Borough. The most commonly spoken
languages, other than English, are mostly EU and various African languages.
No specific data was collated on the survey of repairs/quality. Generally, there has been a
significant increase in non-English main languages in the last twenty years.
Having such a broad range of languages being spoken in one Borough is an opportunity for
the DLO as it will be set up specifically to serve the needs of the community with tailored
adaptations for example for the most vulnerable residents being a main priority.

Q2b - How will they be impacted by the change?
Notes: Is there a likelihood that some people will more impacted than others? Can you
describe the ways in which they will be affected, whether positively or negatively? How might
this change affect our ‘general duty?’
Responsible Procurement Policy seeks social value from all contracts over £100k.
The estimated annual value is £4.1m and because the service will impact residents across
the borough, it places an important duty and opportunity to maximise social investment.
Question 1a identified the proposed changes resulting from the setting up of the DLO.
Here, we will examine each change and its possible impact more closely.

1

Proposed change

Impact

Communal repairs brought in-house

Unique and scalable opportunity to positively
address repairing issues identified in the
2019 Resident Task & Finish Group.
Residents across all characteristics will have
a strong sense that communal repairs were
now being prioritise and that their feedback
during the 2019 Resident Task & Finish
Group was listened to and acted upon.
Having a streamlined DLO service focussing
on improving service quality and customer
service, will make accessibility much simpler
for all residents. Removes complex layering
which often acts as barriers for older
persons and vulnerable residents.

2

Property Adaptations

Support vulnerable, disabled and older
residents in maintaining their independence
whilst remaining in their homes.
The property adaptations service will hugely
benefit from the quality and customer service
focus of a DLO. By delivering this in-house,
it will remove backlog / delays when dealing
with urgent adaptations.

3

Minor Works Team

One team approach – less duplication for
residents and there is completely aligned

Page 127

objectives. Residents would have a better
service experience and there is clarity on
responsibility when dealing with issues on
performance.
There are opportunities for apprenticeship
schemes which could have a particularly
positive young people impact.
4

Estate Improvement Programme

A tailored estate improvement programme
delivered by the DLO would impact residents
on estates positively: vision for estates /
possibility to improve estate aesthetics for
residents in their areas.

5

Direct Recruitment of Workforce

Lambeth Residents will be positively
impacted through the creation of the DLO.
A Recruitment Campaign Group (RCG)
would help target specific groups /
communities who are more likely impacted
by inequality in employment, skills, health,
housing and educational attainment. Those
furthest from the employment market will
include care leavers, BAME and vulnerable
residents. Apprenticeship opportunities for
all and a preliminary target of six trade
apprentices at NVQ Level 2 and two
surveying apprentices (degree level) against
a £4m turnover, is ground-breaking.
Social Responsibility is at the heart of the
DLO, its focus on creating a diverse
workforce of council employees, apprentices
and training opportunities.

5

Remove commercial barriers and
secure grant funding

Third party commercial reliance often
creates commercial issues, backlog and
delay for vulnerable / disabled residents. But
the directly employed workforce can deliver
the service more quickly, with a strong
customer focus.

6

Embracing Latest ICT

The Lambeth DLO will embrace latest
dynamic software, using Dynamic Resource
Scheduling and use algorithms to allocate
work to appropriately skilled employees,
using handheld tablet technology.
For Residents accessing the service, this will
have a positive impact on them by giving
them a work order journey from reporting to
when a job is completed, where the resident
can track and trace the job online, receive
texts and alerts when the order is resolved.

Page 128

The technology will aim to be inclusive not
only for internet users, but also for those
who simply want notification via SMS
service.
7

Environmental Responsibility, Carbon
Neutrality and Equality

This aspect of the DLO will have a positive
impact for all: Residents, Lambeth DLO
workforce and wider council targets overall.
‘Greener’ vehicles are being sourced – the
DLO will have a commitment to using
electric vehicles longer term but with a
hybrid-run electric fleet for its first three
years. Contribute to cleaner air quality,
greener environment, positively affecting the
vulnerable, old, young people and all
persons in the borough.

8

Materials sourcing

Local established builders’ merchant which
has a digital material management capability
– would impact positively on DLO employees
by ensuring there are always adequate
supplies.
For Residents, local stock being made
available means that reported repairs can be
completed quickly.

It is intended that the change will achieve a better, effective service that works more closely
for our residents and delivers the highest possible standards of service. The change is
intended to entrench an ethos of social value, where we are contributing positively to our
community – in jobs, standards, wages, homes, health etc.
Delivering communal repairs and adaptation works to residents’ homes should impact all
groups positively. The DLO is expected to carry out works (where required) universally to set
standards and quality, and this is wholly non-discriminatory. No known negative impacts are
expected. This EIA would act as a live document, to be updated accordingly.

Q3a - How do you plan to address and mitigate any negative impacts of the proposal?
Notes: What can you do differently that might lessen the impact on people within the timeframes i.e. development-implementation? Who can help you to develop these solutions?
The data has so far told us what residents think about the services. It has shown that repair
improvements are broadly delivered equally to all.
An independent governing board with proposed membership consisting of the Director of
Housing Services, Cabinet Members, Residents and a Cost Manager will be tasked with
overseeing the DLO project, zooming in where there is any known negative impact to
residents. The Board will be the core governing body and independent of the day-to-day
operational running of the DLO. It will meet quarterly to review performance, expenditure,

Page 129

budgets, health and safety, culture, social and environment commitments and make
strategic decisions to support its sustainability and financial viability.
Even at this development stages, a focussed DLO Recruitment Campaign Group (RCG) is
being set up to help reach target candidates (for example school leavers, BAME, vulnerable
residents) and to provide the necessary support. To demonstrate the commitment to
mitigating negative impacts, this RCG itself will be diverse, as will any recruitment panels for
the DLO also.
It is intended that, as far as possible, resident-engagement groups will reflect the diverse
nature of the Borough in terms of protected characteristics.

Q3b - How do you plan to promote and deliver any positive impacts of the proposal?
Notes: How might the principles of fairness, equality of opportunity and positive relationships
be further promoted as a consequence of this proposal? Is there a possibility that you will
need to treat certain people differently, to enhance positive outcomes because of greater
need, disadvantage, experience of less favourable outcomes etc? What opportunities exist
to support Lambeth’s statutory duty to promote equalities? How can you measure this?
The DLO intends to promote and deliver positive impacts in the borough through coproduction with residents and ongoing resident monitoring together with robust and
transparent performance-management mechanisms and through various social responsibility
opportunities.
A Monitoring Board with residents and cabinet membership is being created to give
oversight on the DLO, will monitor performance, governance and social value and yearly
commitments on an ongoing basis.
The DLO offers transparency with measurable outputs such as:














Communal Repairs to all housing estates
Direct labour organisation will create local apprenticeship opportunities and seek to
recruit locally, where possible.
In-house handyperson service will focus on vulnerable residents in sheltered
accommodation and hostel services
Emphasis will be on customer service, quality of repairs and social value throughout
Early engagement to ensure clarity on service expectations and social value
obligations
Directly employed council workers guarantees London Living Wage and pensions
contributions, thereby enhancing socio-economic status of local workers
DLO will ensure compliance with council policies and procedures, as well as all
current and future relevant legislation
Scrutiny process by trained in-house resident inspectors to undertake physical
auditing – promotes more authentic review and feedback of resident’s experience
Resident and councillor involvement through monitoring boards and review of the
DLO performance
Quality apprenticeships required from DLO
Work experience and skills training
Local employment opportunities
Engaging with local schools

Page 130








Supporting Unemployed Residents
Resident Training
Fair pay (including London Living Wage requirements)
Minimising waste
Work with local social enterprises to deliver work experience, apprenticeships and
employment
Translation or offer of translation for all residents who do not speak English as their
main language in the home

From the comprehensive measurable outputs listed above, the characteristic groups most
impacted are, age, socio-economic group, language and health.
Expanding the handyperson service for example will positively impact on all vulnerable
persons as this would lead to greater accessibility of service and direct support within their
homes.
Age - young people would be impacted by the London Living Wage (LLW), social value and
quality apprenticeships and training programmes.
Health impacts is strengthened by the Discretionary Repairs Policy where housing support
workers are reintroduced to better respond to the needs of residents.
Communication strategy – the aim is to maximise the effectiveness of the already existing
and well-functioning ‘Lambeth 500’ forum as a key communication route to consult and
promote positive impacts of the proposal. This is effectively an ‘online’ sounding board,
encouraging broad participation and feedback from residents and is most diverse and
representative of the resident/tenant profile. To date, it is seemingly more productive and
representative than traditional forms of engagement (via area forums). The added benefit of
it being online means that it is widely accessible by a range and diverse group of our
resident profile.

Q4 - How will you review/evaluate your proposal, mitigating actions and/or benefits?
Who will be responsible for this?

Equality and social responsibility considerations are at the heart of the proposed DLO.
The DLO will be driven by a strong governance and management structure and guided by
the ethos of creating a diverse workforce of council employees, apprentices and with training
as additional support, it will deliver a quality service for all residents, tailored for the
vulnerable/disabled.
The proposed DLO should achieve the following:








Employee wellbeing
London Living Wage
Health and wellbeing
Safety and security
Innovation and Voluntary Community Sector (VCS) engagement
Levying social value funding stream
Promoting job opportunities locally

Page 131






Create supported employment opportunities
Apprenticeship and training support
Engage young people/ people at risk to promote careers, mentoring schemes
Local supply chains – businesses and VCS

The DLO will be accountable to an independent governing board with proposed membership
consisting of the Director of Housing Services, Cabinet Members, Residents and a Cost
Manager. The Board will be the core governing body and independent of the day-to-day
operational running of the DLO. It will meet quarterly to review performance, expenditure,
budgets, health and safety, culture, social and environment commitments and make
strategic decisions to support its sustainability and financial viability.
The proposed DLO is therefore an opportunity to see impact and bring about real change.
The following examples shows which groups will benefit through the procured contracts.
-

In-work poverty is a real problem in the borough therefore, employment opportunities
created through the DLO will make work pay, guaranteeing London Living Wage as a
basic requirement.

-

There is a significant number of those who are economically inactive students in the
borough and so, mentoring schemes, training and employment opportunities would
benefit them.

-

Disabled people – carrying out adaptation work for the most vulnerable/disabled
residents would enable independent living within their homes. The DLO has scope
for employment opportunities and training where required, early engagement with the
voluntary sector is intended.

-

Disparity among ethnic groups could be addressed by ensuring that there is targeted
employment opportunities and engagement for minority groups.

-

Long-term unemployed – ensuring apprenticeship schemes, training support,
employment opportunities are ring-fenced for residents.

EqIA Mitigation Actions


The quarterly performance reviews will inform the Annual Review Programme of the
DLO and would follow the council’s Gateway Four ongoing performance reviews
which will assess whether customer experience, complaints feedback and
satisfaction levels are being met alongside predicted key milestones.



The Annual Review will require sign off from the independent governing board which
is made up of residents, Director of Resident Services, Cabinet Members and cost
manager.



Positive impacts (as listed above) are expected outcomes from the DLO and, these
will be captured through the review processes outlined above.



Should there be any unintended consequences or negative impacts identified from
feedback or the review process, it is our intention that the review will be tailored
towards addressing those unforeseen impacts. It would be possible for example, to

Page 132

redistribute social investment measures for those groups negatively impacted. It
would also be possible to refine target specific groups as part of the recruitment
campaign for example, to redress inequalities.

Section to be completed by Sponsor/Director/Head of Service

Outcome of equality impact assessment: Positive
Comments from Neil Euesden, Director and Project Sponsor:
The creation of the DLO is part of a wider series of new service delivery arrangements in
Resident Services that focus on removing social inequality within the borough – and deliver
services in a more quality-driven and environmentally conscious way.
The DLO stems from a locally driven agenda and has a focus on maintaining
neighbourhoods; and transforming lives through training, jobs and removing disabling
barriers to residents’ homes. The associated recruitment and training campaign is being
designed to ensure inclusivity and has involvement from key teams such as: Skills and
Employment, Apprenticeships and Career Pathways, HR, Policy and Communications, and
Housing Services.
As project sponsor I fully support the creation of the DLO and the positive impact it will have
in correcting some of the inequality that exists within the borough.
Neil Euesden,
Director of Housing Services
Project Sponsor
For further information please email: equalities@lambeth.gov.uk

References


Direct Labour Organisation (Housing Services) – Cabinet Member Report



Equality Impact Assessment: What Are They and Why We Do Them (Powerpoint)



Equalities in Lambeth: Corporate EIA Panel 2 July 2018 (Powerpoint)



Labour Market & Economy in Lambeth, February 2019 (Powerpoint)



Our Equalities Responsibilities as a Local Authority: The Law and EIAs (Powerpoint)



Race & Diversity in Lambeth Council 2020: Findings and recommendations resulting
from an Independent Review carried out by Patrick Vernon OBE, December 2019

Page 133

Agenda Item 5

CABINET 30 NOVEMBER 2020
Report title: Lambeth Made Safer Strategy
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Community Safety: Councillor Jacqui Dyer.
Report Authorised by: Merlin Joseph: Strategic Director for Children’s Services
Contact for enquiries: Kristian Aspinall, Assistant Director, Community Safety, Children’s
Services, 020 792 62429, kaspinall@lambeth.gov.uk
REPORT SUMMARY
This report proposes that Cabinet endorses and approves the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy 2020 –
2030.
The strategy sets out our vision, goals, and priorities for making Lambeth one of the safest places in
London for young people and young adults. It presents the outcomes we will secure through its
implementation; describes the approach we will take to deliver the change required; and outlines the
commitments we will honour to realise our vision and achieve our goals.
Through its deliver we aim to improve the safety, health and wellbeing of children and young people in
Lambeth and reduce the number of young people and young adults who are impacted by violence.

FINANCE SUMMARY
The strategy will be supported by the £1,000,000 growth allocated in 2020/21 for its development and
long-term delivery.

RECOMMENDATIONS
To endorse the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy 2020 – 2030 and authorise its implementation.

Page 134
1. CONTEXT
1.1 In 2018 Lambeth council and our partners committed to tackling violence affecting young people
through the development and implementation of our Preventing Serious Youth Violence Programme.
This strategy builds on the work we have carried out to date and incorporates the activity we have
undertaken to listen to young people and our community and act on their views and feedback. It will
realise our long-term ambition of ensuring young people, families and communities do not suffer the
tragic consequences of violence against young people.
1.2 We know that young people in Lambeth suffer violence far more than most boroughs. We also know
that the burden of this injustice falls unequally on our Black communities and affects far more Black
children and young people than other groups. This violence ruins the lives of young people and their
families despite many attempts to reduce it.
1.3 Although violence against young people has fallen over the last two years, from its peak in 2018, it
remains a significant issue for Lambeth. In 2020 Lambeth’s position relative to other London
boroughs has significantly worsened and we are now one of the worst London boroughs for knife
crime and violence against young people. Gun discharges also remain unacceptably high.
1.4 The Lambeth Made Safer Strategy aims to break the cycle of violence that devastates the lives of
individuals, families, and communities. It will do so by acting upon what young people and
communities tell us about their experiences, together with their views about what will prevent
violence against young people in the future. It is also informed by the lived experience of those
affected by youth violence and the successes and failures of those who continue to strive to prevent
it.
1.5 The Lambeth Made Safer Strategy is one of the borough’s strategic programmes and relates to the
ambitions and goals of our Borough Plan 2019 - 2021 goals in general, and the ambition to increase
community resilience.

2. PROPOSAL AND REASONS
2.1 The proposal is to endorse and implement the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy in order to achieve the
goals of reducing the number of victims and perpetrators of serious youth violence every year,
reducing the number of young people involved in the criminal justice system year on year and to
address the root causes of serious youth violence.
2.2 The recommendation to endorse and implement the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy is made because
a collective long-term action is required to address the presenting challenges we face in eradicating
youth violence, whilst also dealing with the factors and conditions that lead to it occurring in the first
place.
2.3 We know that a renewed approach is needed, built on the Public Health principles of long-term
solutions. services in many key areas. Residents have told us they want us to further the work we
have progressed to date, but that they also want to see us increase the pace and breadth of our
endeavours.
2.4 Our research, engagement and consultation tells us that we need to adopt a strategic approach that
enables real community leadership and participation, is flexibility, and fosters a willingness to take
risks and acknowledges and address decades of structural racism that has contributed to violence
against young people.

Page 135
3. FINANCE
3.1

3.2

£1 million has been allocated to develop and deliver this work. This funding will be allocated
following the development of the individual workstreams and within the framework outlined in this
strategy.
We will also seek to increase investment from the Mayor of London, national government, and
private business where possible to increase resourcing in this area. We also have strongly
supported third sector groups working in this field to obtain additional grant funding where grant
pots are available.

4. LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
4.1

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. Delivery of aspects of the strategy
may require legal advice which should be sought as required.

4.2

This proposed key decision was entered in the Forward Plan on 19 October 2020 and the
necessary 28 clear days’ notice has been given. In addition, the Council’s Constitution requires
the report to be published on the website for five clear days before the proposed decision is
approved by the Cabinet Member. Any representations received during this period must be
considered by the decision-maker before the decision is taken. A further period of five clear days the call-in period – must then elapse before the decision is enacted. If the decision is called-in
during this period, it cannot be enacted until the call-in has been considered and resolved.

5. CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
5.1

We carried out a variety of engagement activity to inform our Lambeth Made Safer Strategy,
including live events such as the Hackathon and the Youth Jam in the Park. We conducted the
Serious Youth Violence Survey, questioning more than 500 young people aged from 10-25 across
the borough in one of the largest listening exercises the council has ever undertaken. During
summer 2020, we conducted a survey of more than 100 young people to ask them about their
experiences during the Covid-19 lockdown. We have also met regularly with third sector groups
and forums across the borough to gain their insight and input into the strategy and its
development.

5.2

In addition, we have used existing workstreams responsible for leading the work currently to both
shape the content of the strategy and advise on its priorities and outcomes. These workstreams
comprise a range of stakeholders from across the partnership, ranging from the Metropolitan
Police to third sector organisations including Black Thrive. We have also sought the views of
Council staff and Elected Members through a variety of fora including staff engagement events,
senior management meetings, Management Board, and Informal Cabinet. It is important to
highlight the key role Black Thrive have played in the development of this strategy, particularly
around the need to adopt an anti-racist lens throughout this work.

5.3

We have also consulted with specific community and interest groups including the Lambeth Youth
Safety Alliance, the Lambeth Forum Network, the Police Independent Advisory Group, the
Norwood Community Safety Partnership and other third sector groups across Lambeth who have
all fed into the strategy itself and also the work done in the lead up to this document.

5.4

We have used the information obtained from this activity to increase our understanding of what
young people, communities and fellow professionals feel are the root causes of serious youth
violence, how young people are perceived, how families have been impacted by youth violence
and what they have told us needs addressing to enable them to thrive. We have translated this

Page 136
understanding into the priorities, goals, principles outcomes and commitments set out in the
strategy that we will seek to address through its implementation.
5.5

Ongoing community engagement and participation is at the heart of this strategy. It forms one of
the main six workstreams, and through the development and delivery of Lambeth Made
Community program will ensure that residents continually have the opportunity to participate in the
development and delivery of this work.

6. RISK MANAGEMENT
6.1 The following table identifies the potential key risks associated with the proposed endorsement and
implementation of the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy together with associated control measures.
6.2

The main risks that impede on the successful delivery of the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy are:
Risk Register

Item

Risk

Likelihood Impact Score

1

Failure to deliver goals and
outcomes of the strategy and
the potential loss of community
trust and faith in the council,
police and other partner
agencies

2

8

16

2

Inability to significantly address
the root causes of serious
youth violence

2

6

12

3

Financial pressures impacting
on capacity to implement the
strategy

2

4

8

4

Securing cross-partnership
buy-in to the strategy and its
ambition given competing
priorities

2

8

16

Control Measures
The creation and
application of a robust
performance management
framework aligned to an
outcomes and evaluation
plan. The development of a
communication plan that
enables achievements and
progress to be
communicated and
challenges explained.
Ensuring due focus is
given to attending to root
causes via the
implementation plan and
the conducting of ongoing
evaluation to ensure
impact is assessed and
modification to approach
undertaken as required
The securing of the
£1,000,000 growth to
deliver the strategy and the
application of the
evaluation plan to ensure
resources are effectively
and efficiently deployed to
secure outcomes
The endorsement of the
strategy by all partners and
creation and
implementation of
governance for the strategy
which secures cross

Page 137
partnership investment in
its leadership and
implementation
Key
Likelihood
Impact

Very Likely = 4
Major = 8

Likely = 3
Serious = 4

Unlikely = 2
Significant = 2

Very Unlikely = 1
Minor = 1

7. EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
7.1

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) for the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy has been
undertaken. It was signed off by the Strategic Director for Children’s Services on 3rd November and
submitted for EIA Panel consideration on 17th November. The EIA found that that are a range of
often inter-related issues re: inequality and vulnerability that the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy
need to understood and respond to including the needs of those with protected characteristics
which can be summarised as follows:




7.2

Issues in relation to racism and discrimination and the resultant impact on the life chances for
Black African and Caribbean families.
Issues in relation to early childhood and families, particularly early adverse life experiences;
Issues in relation to ‘socio-health’ factors including the prevalence of poverty, deprivation,
learning and other disabilities and poor mental health.
The aim of the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy is to positively affect all young people with a
particular focus on those who are disproportionately impacted, or at risk of being impacted by
serious youth violence including those with protected characteristics. We will do this by delivering
an implementation plan underpinned by our principle of equity and the knowledge that inequity,
racism and discrimination have resulted in worse life chances for Black African and Caribbean
families and the understanding that other forms of inequality have a bearing on young people’s
exposure to and involvement in serious youth violence. Financial and health disadvantages,
inequality affecting young people with special education needs and disabilities, young people in
care or leaving care or vulnerable girls and young women are factors that will also be responded to

through delivery of our strategy.
7.3

Its implementation will also be shaped by the expressed views and experiences of young people
with particular regard to those with protected characteristics so that all activity is informed by their
lived experiences and what they tell us needs to change.

8. COMMUNITY SAFETY
8.1

This strategy is one of the three main Community Safety crime reduction plans for the council and
wider Safer Lambeth Partnership. It will make a significant contribution towards reducing crime in
Lambeth and making our borough a safer place by reducing violence against young people.

9. ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
We do not anticipate any environmental impacts from this work. Any physical alterations that take
place through the Safe Spaces workstream will be fully cleared by the sustainability team as the
work is developed in the future.

Page 138
9.2

9.3

9.4

Health
Lambeth is adopting a Public Health approach to reducing violence against young people.
Violence has an extremely significant impact on the physical and mental wellbeing of young
people, their families and communities in Lambeth and this work seeks to deliver a marked
improvement to their health.
Corporate Parenting
This strategy works with improve the safety of young people up to the age of 25, and care leavers
and young people to whom we are the corporate parent are a key cohort of young people at higher
risk. This strategy has been discussed at corporate parenting board and work to improve safety
and support for care leavers is an essential element of the future work.
Staffing and accommodation
None.
Responsible Procurement

9.5

Good Quality Jobs with Fair Pay and Decent Working Conditions
This strategy does not commission any specific work currently. Any future commissioning will be in
line with the Responsible Procurement areas.

9.6

Quality Apprenticeships, targeted Employment for Lambeth residents and Lambeth Priority Group
This strategy does not commission any specific work currently. Any future commissioning will be in
line with the Responsible Procurement areas.

9.7

Reduce Emissions: Lambeth Council has a commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030
This strategy does not commission any specific work currently. Any future commissioning will be in
line with the Responsible Procurement areas.

9.8

Single Use Plastics
This strategy does not commission any specific work currently. Any future commissioning will be in
line with the Responsible Procurement areas.

9.9

Positive Health and Wellbeing
This strategy does not commission any specific work currently. Any future commissioning will be in
line with the Responsible Procurement areas.

Other Offers (Innovation)
9.10 This strategy does not commission any specific work currently. Any future commissioning will be in
line with the Responsible Procurement areas.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 The table below details the stages and deadlines for implementing the recommendations

Activity

Proposed Date

Date published on Forward Plan

19.10.20

Cabinet decision

30.11.20

Page 139
Development of workstream specific plans

30.01.21

Delivery of workstream plans

Feb onwards

Page 140
AUDIT TRAIL

REPORT HISTORY
Name and Position/Title
Councillor Jacqui Dyer
Merlin Joseph, Strategic
Director
Rachel Harrison, Finance
Jean-Marc Moocarme,
Legal Services
Maria Burton, Democratic
Services
Colin Winthrope, Borough
Commander
Corporate Management
Board & Directors Network
Abi Onaboye
Paul Bates

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments in
paragraph:

Cabinet Member for
Jobs, Skills and
Community Safety

01.10.20

01.10.20

Throughout

Children’s Services

29.09.20

29.09.20

Throughout

Finance and Property

12.11.20

19.11.20

N/A

Legal and Governance

12.11.20

13.11.20

4.1

Legal and Governance

12.11.20

13.11.20

4.2

N/A

30.10/20

09.11.20

Throughout

All directorates

07.10.20

09.11.20

Throughout

Children’s Services
Strategy &
Communications

22.09.20

01.10.20

Throughout

29.09.20

01.10.20

Throughout

Lambeth Directorate

Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

Background information

Appendices

01.10.20
19.11.20
19.11.20
No
Yes
19.10.20
3. Meets community impact test.
https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/inspireseven-strategies-for-ending-violence-againstchildren
World Health Organisation: INSPIRE model for
reducing violence against children
Appendix A – Lambeth Made Safer Strategy
Appendix B – Lambeth Made Safer Equality Impact
Assessment

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE

Page 141

FOR YOUNG PEOPLE
STRATEGY
2020/2030

101727 (11.20)

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 2

Contents
FOREWORD / PAGE 3
INTRODUCTION AND CONTEXT/ PAGE 5
OUR VISION / PAGE 7
OUR GOALS / PAGE 8

“

OUR PRIORITIES / PAGE 9

Stop
pretending
to care.
We can
tell the
difference.

”

Throughout this document, you will see quotes from the young
people of Lambeth, talking about how violence impacts on their
day-to-day lives. We thank them for their candour in talking to
us, and promise them that we will do whatever is in our power
to improve the quality of their lives.

WHAT YOU HAVE TOLD US / PAGE 12
HOW WILL WE ACHIEVE CHANGE / PAGE 17
OUR COMMITMENTS / PAGE 19
THE DIFFERENCE WE WILL MAKE / PAGE 38

Page 142

OUR PRINCIPLES / PAGE 10

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 3

Foreword

The co-creation of this strategy provided an
opportunity for us to review progress, having the
views of residents and other stakeholders at the heart
of what we aim to achieve. Covid-19 has shown us
that business as usual is not an option – we need to
tackle the inequalities and racism that are present
in our society, ensuring that we give our residents,
particularly our youngest ones, the best opportunity
to thrive and succeed in life.

Our role as a council is that of a facilitator, putting our communities and their needs
at the heart of all we do. We will build upon our inclusive approach, removing the
barriers to participation, understanding what matters to our communities and
recognising that not all areas in our borough will have similar concerns when it
comes to community safety.
We are ambitious – we will make Lambeth one of the safest places in London
for children, teenagers and young adults, and we recognise that will not happen
overnight. That is why in Lambeth we have taken a long-term, Public Health approach
to community safety – intervening as early as possible so that the aspirations of
a young person do not become limited due to the obstacles that they encounter in
life. Thus we are committed to catalysing opportunities for all our people to thrive.
The council’s approach to community safety cannot happen without our partners
– schools, police, NHS, justice, local employers and, crucially, our residents and
community groups who are the fabric of our fantastic borough. I have been honoured
to work with the energy of so many who have shaped this strategy. It is an honor to
lead it and I am utterly committed to its fruition.
Councillor Jacqui Dyer, Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills & Community Safety

“

Young people are our future.
We all need to invest our
time, energy and resource
to create the conditions
where children and young
people are nurtured, feel
safe and thrive.
Councillor Jacqui Dyer

”

Page 143

The distress that has been generated by the death of George Floyd at the hands
of police in America has further emphasised the need for our approach to be an
anti-racist one that reflects the lived experiences of Black people, particularly African
and Caribbean communities, and has emboldened our work to address structural
racism. We are responsive and keen to adapt to the needs of our communities.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 4

I am acutely aware serious
violence between young people
has devastating consequences,
not only for individuals and their
families, but also for communities. The recent tragic
deaths of young people from Lambeth brings this into
stark focus. Urgent short and long-term action must be
taken to protect young people within our borough.

This strategy is designed to ensure collective action is
taken to address the presenting challenges we face in
eradicating youth violence, whilst also dealing with the
factors and conditions that lead to it occurring in the
first place. It sets out the case for change and the means
to deliver it. This strategy will provide renewed drive
to our work, and will ensure our collective energy is
focused on making Lambeth a safer place for children
and young people to grow up. I endorse ‘Lambeth Made
Safer’ and offer my personal commitment to contribute
to the collective leadership required for it to succeed
in delivering the outcomes that all our young people
deserve, namely a safe and happy future.
Merlin Joseph, Strategic Director of Children’s Services

Colin Wingrove

”

Throughout my police career I have seen the devastating
impact of serious violence between young people. Police
officers and staff witness and respond to the immediate
danger it presents, as well as the aftermath and trauma
experienced by victims, families and communities. Each
time it renews our determination to make a difference
and keep young people in Lambeth safe.
Policing alone will not end the cycle of violence or tackle
factors driving violent crime. For example, we have seen
significant work between Lambeth police, the council
and communities in tackling illegal drug markets and
removing dangerous individuals who exploit children
from our neighbourhoods. This activity improves safety,
but to eliminate violence we need to identify the root
causes and deliver earlier interventions.
A long-term partnership approach is therefore needed.
One which tackles the deep-rooted and ingrained social
and economic problems, addresses inequalities and
the disproportionate impact of serious youth violence
affecting some communities more than others. This
strategy sets out that long-term collaboration, your local
police alongside Lambeth Council, our schools, our NHS,
our fire brigade, our probation services, and places our
communities at the heart of all we do.
Chief Superintendent Colin Wingrove, Metropolitan Police

Page 144

As a senior leader of children’s services over many years
I have seen several young people lose their lives as a
consequence of youth violence across the country. I have
heard first-hand the anguish of families who have lost
loved ones. Sadly, the root causes are all too familiar:
adverse childhood experiences, poverty, peer pressure,
racism, lack of inclusive learning environments, domestic
abuse, emotional health and wellbeing difficulties, and
the wider role of society and the state in perpetuating the
social and economic factors that lead to these issues.

“

Listening to our local
communities and responding
to community needs will
increase public confidence in
the Met, and other institutions,
will lead to a more diverse
police service, and will
mobilise communities and
partners to create a safer
Lambeth for all our children
and young people to thrive.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 5

1 Introduction and context
1.1
In 2018 Lambeth Council and our partners
committed to tackling violence affecting young people
through the development and implementation of our
Preventing Serious Youth Violence Programme. This
revised strategy builds on the work we have carried
out to date and incorporates the work we have done
together to listen to young people and our community
and act on their views and feedback. It will realise our
long-term ambition of ensuring young people, families
and communities do not suffer the tragic consequences
of violence against young people.

1.3
We are also building upon the work and
learning that took place before 2018: the Youth Violence
Commission in 2009, the efforts of Young and Safe in
2010, the Equality Commission in 2017, and all the work
that has taken place in Lambeth through residents and
third sector groups over a number of years. We know
that a completely new approach is needed, built on the
Public Health principles of long-term solutions. Over the
next 10 years we commit to create and deliver solutions
to tackle the drivers of crime with and alongside our
residents and other partners.

violence against young people in Lambeth, with work
including bringing young people together to generate
ideas about how to address the problem. For example,
more than 500 young people responded to a survey
on youth violence; and third sector groups such as
Black Thrive and Juventis supported us to engage
with communities and the voluntary sector to inform
our work plans and programmes. We have tried to
make sure many voices are heard but we know we
must do more.

1.5
The Covid-19 pandemic has further exposed
racial and wider inequality in our society, and its
enormous impact on the physical and emotional
wellbeing of residents in Lambeth. We recognise
invisible inequalities, and racism in all its forms (e.g.
individual level, institutional racism by organisations),
create the conditions that lead to violence. Our strategy
will therefore tackle racism by embedding an anti-racist
approach to transform community safety in Lambeth.

Through our research, engagement and consultation,
the people of Lambeth have said they want to see:
• Real community leadership and participation:
statutory agencies empowering the residents they
serve to help them to tackle violence
• More flexibility and a willingness to take risks: we
should be honest and open when things don’t work,
and to work with communities to fix them
• A recognition of the need to acknowledge and address
decades of structural racism that has contributed to
violence against young people.

Since starting this journey, we have improved
1.6
our services in many key areas. For example, how we
offer support to those affected by a critical incident,
improving and embedding our early help services in
the communities they serve and enabling our children
to learn and thrive in schools. Residents have told us
they want more of this, but that they also want to see us
increase the pace and breadth of the work we do. They
also need to be more involved in the creation, delivery
and evaluation of those services. We have sought to
involve as many people as possible in addressing

1.7
This strategy aims to set out clearly, for the first
time, our vision, goals, priorities and to make Lambeth
one of the safest places in London for young people and
young adults. Community views have been put at the
heart of our intentions and commitments. The strategy is
alive and dynamic it not set in stone. It is a roadmap for
our work, not a rulebook. It will be changed and reviewed
as we all work together to reduce violence against young
people, ensuring a Lambeth made safer.

Page 145

1.2
We know that young people in Lambeth suffer
violence far more than most boroughs. We also know
that the burden of this injustice falls unequally on our
Black communities and affects far more Black children
and young people than other groups. This violence
ruins the lives of young people and their families,
despite many attempts to reduce it.

1.4
This strategy is the first of its type for Lambeth.
It is developed from the ground up, strengthened and
informed by the voices of our communities, the work
of Lambeth’s Public Health team and the research we
have done, not just in London but elsewhere in the UK
and worldwide, to identify what works and what doesn’t
work to make communities safer. It continues to be
shaped by the views and voices of young people, youth
workers and parents from across Lambeth and we thank
them for their ongoing commitment and support.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 6

Vision

4We will make Lambeth one of the
safest places in London for children,
teenagers and young adults.

Goals

4To develop and implement our new
approach to community engagement
and participation
4To identify, acknowledge and address
structural racism
4To develop and embed a whole
system approach to preventing violence
against young people.

Page 146

4To reduce the number of victims and
perpetrators of serious youth violence
every year
4To reduce the number of young
people involved in the criminal justice
system year on year
4To address the root causes of serious
youth violence.

Priorities

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 7

2 Vision

2.1
Our vision is clear. Over the course of this
10-year strategy, we will make Lambeth one of the
safest places in London to be a child, teenager or young
adult. Although a challenging aspiration, we believe
that this is achievable if we work together, focus on the
things we want to change and ensure that everything
we do stays true to this vision.
2.2
It is important to say that at the core of this
strategy is the idea that WE means everyone. Our vision
means young people, families, statutory agencies,
communities, charities, faith-based organisations,
businesses and everyone across Lambeth are all
working hand in hand to make change happen. Only
by working together can we make our borough safer
in the long term.

Page 147

We will
make
Lambeth
one of the
safest places
for children,
teenagers
and young
adults
in London
by 2030.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 8

3 Goals

3.1
Our goals outline the essential things we are
trying to achieve to realise our long-term vision. Our
goals are the key things we will measure to demonstrate
progress and to show success.

We will reduce the number of young
people who are victims of violence

3.3
We will also reduce the severity of violence in
Lambeth. Violence which involves weapons (such as
guns and knives) tend to have a greater impact on a
young person, their family and community than other
violence. We will reduce the use of weapons and the
need for young people to feel safe by carrying a weapon.

We will reduce the number of young
people involved in the criminal justice
system
3.3
We know that once a young person enters the
criminal justice system, their long-term life prospects
are often diminished, and they may become more
vulnerable to getting involved in further crime. Young
people involved in criminal activity make up a large
percentage of incidents of violence towards other young
people and are often victims themselves. Equally, young
people who have become involved in risky activity and

We will address the root causes of serious
youth violence
3.4
It is not enough to target violence affecting
young people on its own. We also need to address
the fundamental root causes that make young people
vulnerable to experiencing and/or committing acts of
violence. Root causes such as structural racism, social
and economic inequality and disproportionality must
be addressed if we are to realise our ambitions. We
need to deliver long-term change with our residents
and communities to prevent future generations from
experiencing the trauma caused by these incidents of
violence. This includes areas such as creating inclusive
learning environments in school and community
settings; providing the right support for parents who
may be experiencing challenges; reducing domestic
violence in the household; supporting the emotional
health and well-being of our communities, and
other key issues. Our success must be measured not
only in reducing violence in Lambeth now, but also in
preventing it from happening in the future as well.
3.5
We will reduce the number of young people
in the criminal justice system. We will both reduce
the number of young people committing crime for the
first time and reduce the offending behaviour of those
already involved. We will do this by preventing young
people being drawn into violence and providing better
services for those already involved.

Page 148

3.2
We will reduce the number of young people
who are victims of violence every year, year on year.
We will measure this through police data and hospital
admission data.

crime are often exploited by older people to commit
further crime and acts of violence.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 9

4 Priorities
4.1
A significant amount of work is taking place
across the different parts of the strategy, tackling many
key areas and concerns. However, there are three
actions that we must take now if we are to achieve our
goals and realise our vision. These apply across the
entire strategy and are vital for the success of this work.

We will build a new community
partnership

We will tackle racism and embed an
anti-racist approach, building equity
across all communities
4.3
Now more than ever it is vital we focus on
discrimination and the racism which underlies so much
of what happens nationally as well as in Lambeth. But
this must go beyond words to show our commitment to
making our work truly anti-racist. We must deliver on
this promise. Therefore, we commit to:

• Working with Black Thrive and other key partners
to help train our staff and ensure our work is tackling
discrimination, reducing inequity and the trauma caused
by the exposure to different forms of oppression
• We will embed an anti-racist approach not only in our
work but in the evaluation of our work – we will work
with communities to measure our success. We aim to
make a positive impact on the experiences of our Black
African and African-Caribbean communities as well as
other groups who are targets of racism and other forms
of prejudice or discrimination
• We will review every piece of work we are currently
delivering or committed to deliver to ensure that it
tackles racism where it can and does not feed into
existing inequalities
• We will work to identify, acknowledge and be open to
listen and learn about how racism shapes communities/
people’s day-to-day lives and their experiences of our
services. We will be honest where we have failed in the
past and will demonstrate our commitment to tackle
racism by using the levers we have to make changes
to our policies and practices, to develop our workforce
and to influence our partners to work towards becoming
anti-racist. We will use our new community partnership
to listen to our communities and work with them to
create an environment that is genuinely inclusive.

We will develop and embed a whole
system approach to preventing youth
violence
4.4
Over the last year much work has taken place
to address immediate gaps in our services and to
improve what we do for those most vulnerable right

now. But we must work with families, communities and
our partners to create an environment where young
people are protected from violence in all its forms
e.g. peer to peer, domestic abuse etc.
We commit to working with communities, education,
health and care providers, local police and other
agencies to put prevention at the heart of the next
round of project development. This aims to focus on
the structural barriers that limit the life chances of
our young people. For example, improving access
to a high quality and inclusive education, providing
opportunities to find good work, opening access to
secure and quality housing, giving culturally appropriate
support for physical and emotional health, or supporting
families who may be struggling or are experiencing
vulnerabilities and so on.
We recognise and value the need to take a long-term
approach to prevention and see this as essential to
stopping the violence permanently in Lambeth.

Page 149

4.2
We will develop new ward-level community
engagement mechanisms over the next 12 months
which will be led by the elected members who represent
their communities. The new approach of Lambeth Made
Communities will bring together residents including
young people, councillors, third sector groups, our local
police, businesses, and local MPs to address community
safety issues. through building resilience Together,
we will reduce crime and make Lambeth safer. This
partnership will enable the voice of local people to be
heard, especially those who we have struggled to hear
before. It will ensure the views and experiences of
communities drive the changes we are committed
to achieving.

– what we must do in the next two years

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 10

5 Our principles
5.1
Our principles show who we are and what we
believe. They are the values that underpin everything we
do now and plan to do for the future. We commit to putting
these at the centre of every project and piece of work we do.

Putting young people and communities
at the heart of all we do

Equity
5.3
We recognise the impact inequality, disadvantage
and injustice of all kinds plays in perpetuating youth
violence. Decades of inequity, racism and discrimination
have resulted in worse life chances for Black African and
African-Caribbean families. We also know that other forms
of inequality have a bearing on young people’s exposure
and vulnerability to experiencing or becoming involved in
serious youth violence. Wider social and economic factors,
inequality affecting young people with special education

needs and disabilities, young people in care or leaving
care who do not receive adequate support, or when the
system does not work effectively together to prevent girls
and young women becoming vulnerable are all factors
that require consideration and action when seeking to
tackle violence against young people. Our strategy is
therefore underpinned by the principle of equity – the
concept of fairness and impartiality – and a commitment
to challenge inequality in all that we do. Equity doesn’t
mean adopting a ‘one size fits all’ solution – it means
some groups might need additional support to have
access to equal opportunity.

Honesty
5.4
We must be honest with ourselves and our
communities. We must acknowledge past mistakes and
where things haven’t worked, and be willing to work with
residents, partners and communities in a way that allows
for truth to be spoken and for us to listen. We must build
relationships that are based on honesty and trust. Equally,
we must be willing to share information and work far
more openly than we have done before. We need to share
our data and intelligence, and work with communities in a
transparent way.

Accountability
5.5
We need to be more accountable and visible to
the communities we serve. If we are to truly work with our
communities in a new way, we must be willing to share
where things work and don’t work and be visible in those
communities to build trust and participation. We must
celebrate success and learn from mistakes in a way that

involves residents and young people, particularly those in
the communities most affected such as the Black African
and African-Caribbean communities.

Evaluation and learning
5.6
Learning what works to benefit Lambeth
communities is key to the long-term success of this
strategy. This includes understanding whether and how
the strategy benefits residents in different ways including
based on race, gender, sexuality, neighbourhoods,
different socio-economic groups and so on. This learning
must be done fairly and independently of the statutory
partners but in collaboration with young people and
communities. Most importantly, it must be tied to the
lived experience of our Black African and AfricanCaribbean communities. The evaluation needs to embed
an anti-racist approach and involve those communities to
the same level as the rest of the strategy. This includes
ensuring that the evaluation includes experts and
those whom can speak to the experiences of the Black
community in Lambeth.
5.7
This will be part of a culture of learning and
evaluation which we will embed throughout our work. We
must be willing to scrutinise ourselves and be scrutinised
by our communities to make sure that what we do makes
a difference in people’s lives with noticeable change
and impact. This principle relies on the following to be
effective. Putting our communities at the heart of our
work, identifying and tackling racism, being honest with
our work and transparency and accountability are all
necessary to make sure we measure success and failure
properly and learn from what we do.

Page 150

5.2
Our communities must be at the centre of
everything we do. Statutory agencies and the third sector
cannot tackle this problem alone, and not every solution
lies with professionals. We must ensure that our diverse
communities are involved at every stage of the strategy
development, delivery and evaluation. Only by listening
to, supporting and working with our communities in a new
way can we make the long-term change in Lambeth we all
want to see. We will work together with young people and
communities as partners in both identifying challenges and
priorities and determining and implementing solutions.
This includes groups we have struggled to listen to before,
young people themselves and their families and the
different neighbourhoods that make up Lambeth.

– what we believe

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 11

Our commitments
INTERVENE EARLY AND PREVENT

Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London for children, teenagers and
young adults because communities and services work together to prevent youth
violence by building on and developing the local awareness, capacity and resilience
to do so.

DISRUPT AND DETER

EDUCATE AND TRAIN

Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London for young people because
they will feel heard and empowered to make positive choices in their education,
employment, training and relationships.

RESPOND AND SUPPORT

Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London for children, young people and
young adults because services and communities will work together to support
those who may be affected by youth violence.

ENGAGE AND INVOLVE

Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London for children, teenagers and
young adults because communities are actively and fully engaged in identifying
and implementing solutions to address youth violence.

SAFE SPACES

Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London for children, teenagers, and
young adults because we work together to ensure our environment and our
public spaces are safe and free of crime.

Page 151

Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London for children, teenagers and
young adults because communities and services work together to deter young
people and adults from perpetrating violence and disrupt individual and group
activity associated with youth violence.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 12

6 What young people
and communities have
told us

”

Page 152

“

Past or current verbal
abuse causes people to
react in a certain way…
It acts like a virus that
affects others.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 13

they have told us...

6.2
Recent community engagement activity tells
us that many young people feel that the following
issues continue to contribute to incidents of serious
youth violence in Lambeth. This engagement included
us speaking to more than 550 young people earlier this
year in one the widest ranging exercises of this nature
we have ever conducted as a council.

Causes of youth violence
6.3
Young people told us that the following issues
contributed to violence against young people:
• the need for self-defence and protection from other
groups of young people that may cause harm
• stress, anxiety or poor mental health
• the impact of trauma, such as domestic abuse and
family disruption
• lack of things to do for young people like youth clubs,
sports, music.

6.4
Young residents also told us that they believed
more could be done to prevent youth violence through
education in schools, colleges and youth clubs and the
delivery of community and relationship building events.
Other key issues identified included:
• Treating young people fairly: the way young people
were treated based on their physical appearance
including the perceived targeting of young Black people
which was described as unfair
• Increased support for young people: the need for our
local police to support young people both to prevent
youth violence and provide support after incidents
• Building trust and confidence in our local police
actions: training in dealing with issues on the streets
and also in communicating with young people in an
empathetic manner would be helpful in preventing
youth violence.
Feedback from recent community engagement
6.5
activity tells us that the following are also significant
issues for us to address and views to consider:

How young people are perceived and how
families have been impacted by youth
violence
• Negative perceptions and fear of young people
• Discrimination experienced by young people
• The impact of loss because of serious youth
violence and the impact this has had on families and
communities.

“

If you don’t constantly
mention violence
to young people,
they become less
intrigued.

”

The root cause of the problem
6.6
The things young people have told us that
they feel are root causes of serious youth violence:
• Exclusion of young people from school, both
permanent, temporary and off-rolling
• Lack of support for young people who wish to focus
on vocational learning
• Deficiencies in mental health services and cuts in
services
• Poverty, financial difficulties and lack of job
opportunities
• Peer pressure, gang culture, the drugs trade
• Family problems.

Page 153

6.1
We are determined to do all we can to break
the cycle of violence that devastates the lives of
individuals, families and communities. We will do so
by listening to what young people and communities tell
us about their experiences, together with their views
about what will prevent violence against young people
in the future. We will also learn from and act upon the
lived experience of those affected by youth violence
and the successes and failures of those who continue
to strive to prevent it.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 14

they have told us...
The things young people have told us need
addressing to enable them to thrive

”

What is needed for young people to thrive:

• Listening to and building relationships with young
people
• Strengthening and actively building a sense of
community, providing love and care to young people,
and providing peer mentors and role models
• Involving young people in decision making.
6.8
Things that can be done together with young
people to reduce youth violence:
• Providing safe activities and spaces for young people
• Providing job and opportunities, adequate support
from schools, childcare and parental support and
services which look after the whole person.
In addition, learning from the impact of
6.9
incidents of serious youth violence both locally and
nationally tells us:
• Boys from Black and Minority Ethnic backgrounds
appear to be more vulnerable to harm from criminal
exploitation
• Being excluded from mainstream school can act
as a trigger point for coming to serious harm
• The importance of tackling domestic abuse and
violence, which overlaps with violence affecting
young people

6.10
This strategy is informed by ongoing
consideration of what you have told us needs to change
in order to eradicate violence against young people
in Lambeth. It is shaped by the experiences of young
people, young adults, families and communities. It is
also underpinned by our ongoing commitment to learn
from the tragic cases where serious injury has been
caused and lives lost because of violence, as well as
our focus on prevention.

Page 154

“

Let young people
know the risk
involved and how
things can affect
them when they
are older. You can
have a criminal
record for life.

6.7

• Trusted relationships between staff and young people
are essential for effective safety planning, and ensuring
that unconscious staff bias is not preventing effective
vulnerability assessment
• The importance of responding at the ‘critical moment’.
This is the moment when young people are likely to be
at their most vulnerable and therefore most receptive
to receiving help and support, and where our strategy
might have the greatest impact
• The importance of parental engagement as a primary
protective factor
• The importance of disrupting perpetrator activity,
including criminal exploitation
• The need to focus on engaging Black boys, for
example through positive role modelling, but combining
this with recognising and addressing the ways in
which organisations, people and processes embed
racism in society
• The importance of understanding lived experience and
history. Understanding relationships with family, friends
and professionals of children and young people who may
be at risk of serious youth violence and how these shape
their world.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 15

they have told us...
Covid-19 and young people
6.11
The Covid-19 pandemic has had – and will
continue to have – a massive impact on the lives of
young people and has disproportionately struck Black
and Minority Ethnic communities. Young people have
shown great courage and resilience in the face of
a disease which is interrupting their educations
and putting their futures on hold. Many vulnerable
children who no longer have the stability that
educational institutions and workplaces provide
could find themselves at risk of criminal exploitation
or becoming the victim of violence.

Securing a safer future for our children, who are facing
a completely different set of anxieties than experienced
by previous generations, is our key concern. Young
people told us that lockdown left them worrying for
their future: about falling behind at school; achieving
the grades they needed at exams; whether they would
be able to go to university; about getting a job; financial
uncertainties and wider family pressures.
More than half of the young people surveyed were
concerned in some way over what their lives would
look like after lockdown ends, with Black and Minority
Ethnic residents more likely to be worried – 59% against
35% of non-Black and Minority Ethnic residents.

”

Page 155

Helping young people with their mental health has
been a key part of Lambeth’s response to the pandemic.
According to a survey we carried out over summer
2020 of more than 100 young people, over a quarter
of 11-17-year-olds reported that they had experienced
moderate to severe levels of anxiety during lockdown.

“

The depiction of young people
in the UK media, particularly
young Black boys, perpetuating
harmful stereotypes and
sensationalising the crime
epidemic, making other young
people scared and causing them
to turn to carrying knifes as a
perceived form of protection.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 16

they have told us...

Page 156

During consultation for this
document over the last two
years, hundreds of residents and
community groups have had their
say on youth violence in Lambeth.
This illustration captures the
key issues that they identified.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 17

7 How we will achieve change
Our Public Health approach to violence

7.2
Public Health is about acting to improve the
health and wellbeing of all residents in a community,
by preventing health problems, reducing risk factors
for illness and injury, improving the accessibility of
services, and ensuring all of these things are done fairly
and not excluding specific groups in the population.
A big focus in Public Health is on evaluation and doing
things that are based on good evidence that they will
work in this setting.
7.3
We will also:
• Look at the problem and understand the issues using
local lived experiences of residents and communities
who are most affected by violence, and supporting data

7.4
Places which have employed a Public Health
approach to violence have reported reductions in
violence. We have put the Public Health approach to
violence at the heart of this strategy because it focuses
on fairness, evaluation, developing ideas for change
with residents, and using interventions which are
based on the highest quality evidence that they work.
This approach is not all new but looking at
7.5
youth violence in this way is new to Lambeth and
London. Having a strong focus on information means
that we can measure the impact of our activities and
will know whether our actions are working to improve
outcomes for young people.

Why are we following this approach?
7.7
The Public Health approach has been used
across the world with good results. After a Public Health
strategy against violent crime was launched in 2005
in Glasgow, Police Scotland saw a decline of 69% in
recorded incidents of handling an offensive weapon over
the next decade.

Page 157

7.1
This is a different way of looking at the issue of
violence against young people. It means understanding
that violence is preventable, that it is a result of a wide
range of influencing factors and will need a long-term
plan to bring about lasting change. The most important
part of this is working with our local community, as
they are the ones who are directly affected, have lived
experience of the challenges and know what is likely
to work to reduce violence. It is important that we note
that we will be implementing the Public Health approach
through an anti-racist lens. The Public Health approach
and anti-racism are not separate approaches. They
complement each other to make our work more effective
at tackling the root causes of violence.

• Look at what has been tried in other places and what
worked or didn’t work, and for who has been most
affected by violence
• Try new ideas for services or interventions with
different partners and residents themselves
• Make long term plans for activities, to see what
works best in Lambeth
• Review these and make changes as needed.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 18

achieving change...
Achieving the change required
7.8
We will achieve our goals by following three
simple principles throughout our work:

7.9
We will deliver against these principles by
ensuring we:
• Intervene early to prevent serious violence occurring
in the first place
• Disrupt and deter young people and adults from
perpetrating violence and disrupt individual and group
activity associated with youth violence
• Create the conditions where young people are
empowered to make positive choices in their education,
employment, training and relationships
• Respond swiftly to support those who may be at
risk of or affected by youth violence
• Create, develop and maintain environments and
public spaces to enable safety and prevent crime
• Ensure young people and communities are fully
engaged in designing and delivering solutions to
violence against young people.

Page 158

• Stopping serious youth violence before it happens:
we will focus on activity that has proven impact in
preventing serious youth violence
• Limiting its impact when it does happen: we will focus
on activity that supports and protects those involved and
limits escalation
• Supporting young people to move away from violence
where necessary: we will focus on activity that enables
those who may become involved in youth violence to
step away from the danger they face and may present
to others.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 19

8 Our commitments
Page 159

INTERVENE EARLY AND PREVENT
DISRUPT AND DETER
EDUCATE AND TRAIN
RESPOND AND SUPPORT
ENGAGE AND INVOLVE
SAFE SPACES

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 20

INTERVENE EARLY AND PREVENT

We know that
Early childhood experiences have a significant impact on
a person’s life. We also know that serious youth violence
can be prevented by ensuring all children have the best
start in life and that they and their communities are
supported to develop the means to identify and safely
negotiate risk throughout their journey to adulthood.

What you have told us
Young people have told us we need to:
• Address concerns about domestic violence
• Provide easy to access support for parents
• Offer life-saving skills.

8.1
Our commitment: Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London
for children, teenagers and young adults because communities and services
work together to prevent youth violence by building on and developing the
local awareness, capacity and resilience to do so.

We will do this by

INTERVENE
EARLY AND
PREVENT

4Ensuring that all

children have the best
start in life with a
particular focus on those
who may be at risk of
poor outcomes

4Understanding and

responding to the past
and current experiences
of children, young people
and families

4Identifying risk

and supporting and
keeping young people
safe through their
adolescence

4Supporting children

and young people to be
safe from and recover
from domestic abuse

4Building upon local

communities’ strengths
and resources to further
develop preventative
and supportive
responses to youth
violence.

Young people want more engagement from their
communities, both among their peers and adults in
countering SYV, rather than it being left to council staff
and stakeholders. One respondent said: “Take part
in more community engagement activities, be where
young people are at! Don’t be so afraid to TALK.” Key
influencers such as parents, faith groups, youth workers
and community centres should be vigilant before and
after school about the risks of SYV, and should link
stories of Lambeth into how they discussed the issue:
“Lambeth is so diverse and there are so many victims
that could tell their stories to secondary school kids.
But what happens is that a person who can’t relate
makes an assembly and it doesn’t make a difference.”
Source: Young People’s Survey Feb 2020

Community representatives have said we should:
Strengthen communities. Listen to and build
relationships with young people. Actively build a sense
of community and provide love and care to young
people. Provide peer mentors and role models.
Source: Community Conversations January 2020

Page 160

Source: Awayday YP engagement summary

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 21

INTERVENE EARLY AND PREVENT

FROM COMMITMENT TO ACTION
Actions will include

4Adopting an anti-racist approach to all we do
4Developing and embedding a whole system
approach to preventing serious youth violence

and positive health outcomes for children under
five so that they have the foundations they need to
lead a happy and safe life

4Increasing multi-agency and community

confidence in supporting children and families who
have experienced trauma. Ensuring those working
with children and young people receive appropriate
support with particular regard to the negative
impact that racism has on communities, children
and young people

4Improving informal learning opportunities for our

young people, through the development of our new
youth strategy which will review assets, delivery and
commissioning arrangements of our youth provision
and ensure our provision is evidence-based, focused
on prevention, linked to the community and based
on need

4Developing our peer and community support
networks.

FROM ACTION TO OUTCOMES

awareness to safely negotiate risks associated with
the teenage years

The outcomes we will work towards
will include

4Children and young people will be safe from the

4We will reduce the number of Black young

4Serious youth violence is reduced because

people and young adults who are disproportionately
impacted by serious youth violence due to structural
racism

4Children will have what they need in their early

years to progress positively through their childhood
into adolescence

4The number of young people impacted by

serious youth violence will be reduced because they
have developed the skills, knowledge ability and

impact of domestic abuse

communities are supported to identify and resolve
risks associated with youth violence

4Our work will positively affect the outcomes of

all children and young people living in Lambeth, with
particular regard for Black children, young people
and young adults impacted by youth violence

4Young people, young adults and communities

from all neighbourhoods in Lambeth will feel safer.

Page 161

4Developing practice which increases attachment

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 22

OUR WORK IN PRACTICE

4The establishment of the neighbourhood
based Early Help Model to build resilience and
enable serious youth violence prevention in their
neighbourhoods

4The introduction of the Strengthening Families,

4The introduction of the Street Doctors
Programme. The project provides a safe space
to explore attitudes to violence, including its true
medical consequences. By highlighting the death
and significant injury associated with violent
crime, Street Doctors also help to discourage
young people from carrying weapons in the first
place. It also enabled participants to learn vital
emergency first aid skills to help them to respond
with confidence and effectively deliver simple
first aid which can and does save lives.

INTERVENE AND PREVENT4DISTRUPT AND DETER4EDUCATE AND TRAIN4RESPOND AND SUPPORT4ENGAGE AND INVOLVE4SAFE SPACES

Page 162

Strengthening Communities Programme to
promote happy families, improve parent-child
relationships and better connect and inform
parents to support children to develop healthy
relationships

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 23

DISRUPT AND DETER
We know that
We know the importance of disrupting activity which
contributes to serious youth violence and how deterring
perpetrators can save lives. We also know that trust and
confidence between agencies, communities and young
people is key to being able to limit activity which may
lead to violence. Engagement with our communities is
essential to policing by consent and ensuring that we
can take action against those who cause the most harm.

What you have told us

We will do this by

DISRUPT
AND
DETER

4Improving trust and

confidence in police
actions with a focus on
stop and search activity

4Enabling safe and

crime-free transport by
identifying issues and
working with agencies
to limit illegal activity
and behaviour around
transport hubs

4Tackling exploitation
by working with
services, partners and
communities

4Stopping access

to weapons by
working with partners,
communities and
businesses to identify
and disrupt distribution

4Disrupting the drugs

market by identifying
and targeting trafficking
activity and deterring
those who may be
involved in drug dealing

4Undertaking

enforcement and
protection activity.

Young people have told us we need to:
• Reduce unfair treatment and negative stereotypes
of young people, particularly Black people
• Reduce focus on low-level crime
• Build trust and better community relations
• Offer support and guidance and provide better
training for the police
• Build trust around stop and search practice
• Have more joint activities for young people and
our local police.

Page 163

8.2
Our commitment: Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London
for children, teenagers and young adults because communities and services
work together to deter young people and adults from perpetrating violence
and disrupt individual and group activity associated with youth violence.

As part of the preparations for the Lambeth Made Safer
strategy, we conducted a survey at the beginning of
the year of more than 550 young people aged between
10 and 25. In one of the largest listening exercises
ever undertaken by Lambeth, we asked for their views
about serious youth violence: their personal fears of
it, what they thought the causes of it were, what they
thought should be done about it and how they felt we
had previously dealt with it as a council. Their answers
have provided a bedrock of this strategy document and
helped to shape our thinking on key issues.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 24

DISRUPT AND DETER

Page 164

FROM COMMITMENT TO ACTION
Actions will include

4Adopting an anti-racist approach to all we do
4Working with young people and communities
to build increased confidence, trust and fairness
in the stop and search process

4Working together to deter young people and

adults from perpetrating violence and disrupting
individual and group activity associated with
youth violence

4Disrupting the patterns of youth violence by
interrupting the activities of perpetrators and
inhibiting the grooming and targeting process

4Developing information-sharing protocols to
address ‘county lines’ activity

4Creating a drugs market disruption strategy.

FROM ACTION TO OUTCOMES

4We will reduce the number of young people

The outcomes we will work towards
will include

and young adults impacted by exploitation because
communities and agencies will work effectively
together to identify and prevent the targeting and
grooming process

4We will reduce the number of Black young

4Young people and young adults will be less

people and young adults who are disproportionately
impacted by serious youth violence due to structural
racism

4Young people, young adults and communities, will
have increased trust and confidence in police actions
because they are seen to be culturally informed,
proportionate and effective

impacted by serious youth violence because actions
designed to disrupt and deter criminal activity have
been effective

4Young people and young adults in Lambeth will
feel safer in their neighbourhoods.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 25

OUR WORK IN PRACTICE

4Working in partnership with the National Crime
Agency and the UK Border Agency to identify and
intercept weapons and weapon parts that are
distributed via the ‘dark net’. Through doing so,
they are able to target distributors and intended
recipients and work with partners to prevent
incidents of youth violence that could occur as
a result
4Our local police are working with organisations

4Police officers from the exploitation team to
work with the proprietors of hotels and bed and
breakfasts to raise awareness of child exploitation
and monitor settings for risks and concerns
4Transport police, council officers and council
street wardens run operations which use drugs
dogs and knife arches to detect people entering
Lambeth transport links carrying weapons and
drugs. This gathers intelligence as to who is
entering Lambeth intent on being involved in
distributing drugs or committing violent acts.

INTERVENE AND PREVENT4DISTRUPT AND DETER4EDUCATE AND TRAIN4RESPOND AND SUPPORT4ENGAGE AND INVOLVE4SAFE SPACES

Page 165

such as Black Thrive, our independent advisory
group, our schools and youth groups to improve
stop and search interactions so they are
proportionate, professional, culturally sensitive
and accountable to our communities

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 26

EDUCATE AND TRAIN
We know that
We know the major role education and training
plays in the prevention of serious youth violence.
Enabling all children and young people to achieve the
educational standards they need to reach their goals
and reduce inequalities is central to achieving our vision.
Supporting young people to have the aspirations and
ability to progress into sustained employment and
training is also key.

8.3
Our commitment: Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London
for young people because they will feel heard and empowered to make positive
choices in their education, employment, training and relationships.

We will do this by

EDUCATE
AND
TRAIN

4Enabling children

and young people to
achieve the educational
standards they need to
reach their goals and
reduce inequalities

4Empowering

children and young
people to develop
and sustain safe and
healthy relationships

4Supporting children

and young people to
develop the knowledge,
skills and abilities to
secure and maintain
employment

4Ensuring children

and young people have
the opportunities to
access and sustain
participation in an

What you have told us

inclusive learning
environment

4Facilitating the

inclusion of children and
young people at risk by
nurturing their talents,
gifts and skills with
a particular focus on
disproportionality.

What young people have told us that:
• In some cases communication between teachers
and students could improve
• They have concerns about exclusions in the borough
• They would like improved mental health provision
• They believe better education is key to stopping SYV.
Source: Young People’s Survey 2020

Communities have said we should:
• Address the exclusion of young people from school
• Increase pastoral support and support for
non-academic students
• Address gaps in mental health services
• Address poverty, financial difficulties and lack of
job opportunities for young people.
Source: Community Conversations Jan 2020

Page 166

We are also aware of how exclusion can impact on
outcomes, the importance of a positive transition from
primary to secondary school and the part the recognition
of and culturally informed response to trauma plays in
preventing poor outcomes.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 27

EDUCATE AND TRAIN

FROM COMMITMENT TO ACTION
Actions will include

4Adopting an anti-racist approach to all we do
4Working with our partners in health and education

Page 167

to provide every school in the borough with
training on how to support young people who have
experienced trauma and provide free, confidential
counselling for students aged 11-16

4Continuing improve the outcomes for all students
in particular those groups who are not achieving
their potential

4Actively supporting all schools to introduce
relationships education

4Continuing to focus on the reduction of exclusions
and the provision of support for those who are
excluded

4Exploring new ways to engage young people

in their learning and creating inclusive learning
environments. Further reduce the number of young
people who are not in education, employment and
training

4Increasing the number of opportunities for

apprenticeships by improving our offer and work
in partnership to increase the number of job
opportunities that are available to under 25s.

FROM ACTION TO OUTCOMES

will have the knowledge and awareness to do so

The outcomes we will work towards
will include

4Fewer young people be draw into or impacted

4We will reduce the number of Black young

4A greater number of young people and young

people and young adults who are disproportionately
impacted by serious youth violence due to structural
racism

4Young people will be able to negotiate risks

associated with serous youth violence because they

by youth violence because they have the aspirations,
confidence and education to progress and achieve
adults will benefit from sustained participation in
education, employment or training.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 28

OUR WORK IN PRACTICE

4Supporting schools to prepare for the
introduction of statutory sex and relationship
education

4The introduction of ‘Raising the Game’ which
is beginning to close the attainment gap for
Black-African and African-Caribbean students

Kooth.com counselling services to all young people
aged 11-16

4Working together, schools and partners have
halved the number of permanent exclusions in
comparison with England, where this number has
remained static

4Reducing the number of young people who are
not in education, employment and training.

INTERVENE AND PREVENT4DISTRUPT AND DETER4EDUCATE AND TRAIN4RESPOND AND SUPPORT4ENGAGE AND INVOLVE4SAFE SPACES

Page 168

4Working with health services to promote

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 29

RESPOND AND SUPPORT
We know that
Providing swift, targeted support to those who may
be affected by serious youth violence is key to both
minimising the impact and avoiding escalation
and reducing re-victimisation. We also know that
effectively responding to the needs of both victims
and perpetrators will prevent and reduce serious
youth violence.

What you have told us

8.4
Our commitment: Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London
for children, young people and young adults because services and communities
will work together to support those who may be affected by youth violence.

Source: Awayday YP engagement summary

We will do this by

RESPOND
AND
SUPPORT

4Identifying and

4Supporting

4Working with

4Preventing offending

supporting young people
and young adults at risk
and referring them for
additional support where
required
perpetrators to ensure
the risks they may pose
to themselves or others
are addressed

victims, ensuring
that opportunities for
restorative justice
approaches are applied
where appropriate
and reoffending through
the provision of targeted
and specialist support

4Ensuring a swift and

coordinated response
is provided to serious
incidents of youth
violence so impact can
be limited and escalation
and repetition avoided.

What young people want to make them feel safe::
• Counselling should be available to the young
person and their parents
• The police should be involved in offering advice
and protection
• Young people should communicate their fears
and concerns with friends and family
• Schools and colleges should become involved
through safeguarding and tutors and mentors. Young
people should be empowered through self-defence
classes or other clubs.
Source: Young People’s Survey Feb 2020

Page 169

What young people have told us we need to do:
• Provide support and culturally appropriate
counselling after serious incidents happen
• Offer more tailored support for families and friends
• Provide opportunity to show support through
events
• Develop smaller clinics/hospitals to provide
rapid support.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 30

RESPOND AND SUPPORT

FROM COMMITMENT TO ACTION
Actions will include

Page 170

4Our work will be informed by the lived experience

of young Black people, young adults and communities
and we will tackle racism by embedding an anti-racist
approach in all we do.

4Exploring the link between online abuse and

violence, and how to support young people better to
prevent escalation

4Continuing to work with our partners to develop

our outreach and detached youth work provision so
that we engage and work with young people within
their own communities

4Strengthening joint work with victim support and

health services by creating clear pathways and joined
up responses

FROM ACTION TO OUTCOMES

4Repetition or escalation of incidents will be

The outcomes we will work towards
will include

4Services and communities will work effectively

4We will reduce the number of Black young

4Improving how we help families and communities
after a critical incident

people and young adults who are disproportionately
impacted by serious youth violence due to structural
racism

4Enhancing our collaborative work with schools to

4Young people and young adults will feel safe in

support informal and formal learning in relation to
serious youth violence.

Lambeth as the associated risks of youth violence
will be reduced

reduced because we have an effective critical
response process in place

together to both prevent and respond to incidents
of serious youth violence

4Our work will positively affect the outcomes

of all children and young people and young adults
living in Lambeth, ensuring all communities in
Lambeth will feel safer.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 31

OUR WORK IN PRACTICE

4The introduction of community youth outreach
workers working in partnership with local police,
public protection, Early Help and community safety
to engage with children, young people and young
adults within the community, to provide support,
advice and guidance

4Development of a multi-agency approach to
addressing the risks and issues posed by gangs in
the borough. This work involves the identification
of the impact of gang-related activity, nationally,
regionally, and locally. Targeted work includes
the gathering of intelligence to inform partnership
activity to intervene at a range of levels including
work with individuals, families, and communities.

INTERVENE AND PREVENT4DISTRUPT AND DETER4EDUCATE AND TRAIN4RESPOND AND SUPPORT4ENGAGE AND INVOLVE4SAFE SPACES

Page 171

4The introduction of a critical incident protocol
so those impacted by serious incidents are swiftly
supported through emotional wellbeing services
and victim advocacy provisions

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 32

ENGAGE AND INVOLVE
We know that
We know that the only way to fully address serious
youth violence is to understand and effectively
respond to the lived experience of young people and
communities, with particular regard to the experiences
of Black children, young people and young adults
impacted by youth violence. We also know that the
solutions to the problems of serious youth violence
must be determined by and with communities.

What young people have told us we need to do:
• Listen to what they have to say and offer
• Promote and share what is on offer
• Share information and enable them to be part of
decision making
• Young people want events and activities that
consult them and develop ideas jointly
• They also say that social media should be used to
get their feedback.

8.5
Our commitment: Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London
for children, teenagers and young adults because communities will be actively
and fully engaged in identifying and implementing solutions to address youth
violence.

Source Young People’s Survey 2020

We will do this by

4Creating a shared

approach and culture to
community collaboration

4Building community
ENGAGE
AND
INVOLVE

resilience through
actively engaging with
young people and their
families within their own
communities

4Sharing community

intelligence that we
have gained through our
officers and activities
within our communities

4Developing shared

responses with
communities to address
and lessen the impact of
serious youth violence
incidents

4Increasing

community awareness
of the services we
can offer and the
assistance we can give
communities to create
their own solutions and
build resilience.

Communities have told us:
• We need to rethink our approach to developing,
delivering and evaluating our work so that residents
are involved at every stage.

Page 172

What you have told us

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 33

ENGAGE AND INVOLVE

FROM COMMITMENT TO ACTION
Actions will include

Page 173

4Adopting an anti-racist approach to all we do
4Using existing informal process of engagement

including those in place via youth services, schools
and wider community activity to engage young people
and involve them in our work to limit the impact of
serious youth violence

4Expanding the Lambeth Made Community initiative
and create new boroughwide approach to resident
engagement and involvement in the delivery of our
Lambeth Made Safer Strategy

4Establishing a ward-level model to identify issues
of concern and help develop joint responses

4Identifying other means of engagement to secure

the involvement of younger people by developing
a multi-channel approach which includes school
engagement events, online forums and conversations
outside of meetings an active presence on social
media

4Establishing a digital platform for the

implementation of our Lambeth Made Safer strategy.

FROM ACTION TO OUTCOMES

4Families and communities will experience

The outcomes we will work towards
will include

a reduction in serious youth violence because
community and organisational intelligence is shared
to identify issues in advance and help develop a
joint response

4We will reduce the number of Black young

4Families and communities will experience a

people and young adults who are disproportionately
impacted by serious youth violence due to structural
racism

4Communities will be less impacted by youth

violence because we have jointly identified what
matters most to them in terms of prevention and
response and built local skills and capacity to
make sustainable change

reduction in serious youth violence because a model
of shared responses is developed that adds capacity
to prevention and complements, rather than replaces,
public services.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 34

OUR WORK IN PRACTICE

4We carried out a variety of engagement
activities to inform our serious youth violence
reduction programme, including live events such
as the Hackathon and the Youth Jam in the Park

4We conducted the Serious Youth Violence

4We piloted a new resident involvement
initiative in six wards across the borough. We
held online meetings for Lambeth Made Community
and launched websites through which residents
could draw our attention to issues in their
neighbourhoods
4During summer 2020, we conducted a survey
of more than 100 young people to ask them about
their experiences during the Covid-19 lockdown.

INTERVENE AND PREVENT4DISTRUPT AND DETER4EDUCATE AND TRAIN4RESPOND AND SUPPORT4ENGAGE AND INVOLVE4SAFE SPACES

Page 174

Survey, questioning more than 500 young people
aged from 10-25 across the borough in one of the
largest listening exercises the council has ever
undertaken

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 35

SAFE SPACES

We know that
Places that are well-designed and looked after can
reduce violent crime and improve residents’ perception
of crime, combat stress, increase community pride
and benefit physical health. We know that some young
people are growing up in poor housing conditions and
many are unlikely to be in a position to afford housing
locally, and as a consequence will either be forced to
remain living with their parents or move away from their
families and friends when they enter early adulthood.
In these circumstances, young people, particularly
those from the most deprived communities, can become
demoralised, alienated and frustrated.

What you have told us

8.6
Our commitment: Lambeth will be one of the safest places in London
for children, teenagers, and young adults because we will work together to
plan and build public spaces that are safe and free of crime.

Source: Young People’s Survey Feb 2020

We will do this by

4Providing and

developing housing to
respond to local needs

4Developing and
SAFE
SPACES

enabling the use of
public spaces and
parks including the
programming of events

4Tackling

homelessness within
18-25-year-old young
people

4Improving the quality
of the environment
on our housing estates
and in our town centres
including lighting

4Working together to

ensure our environment
and our public spaces
are safe and free of
crime and can be
enjoyed by all young
people

What young people have told us we need to do:
• Improve street lighting
• Change bus routes and make them more secure
• Create safer spaces which increase young people’s
confidence
• Provide more help with housing, including affordable
and flexible housing options
• Create more CCTV that works.
Lambeth Made Safer Awayday: Young People’s engagement
summary

Communities have told us:
• Providing safe activities and spaces for young people.
Source: Community Conversations January 2020

Page 175

• Poor housing contributed to serious youth violence
and that overcrowding at home is a risk factor
• Public transport and public spaces are seen as unsafe
in some cases
• Home and school or college were considered to be
two of the safest locations.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 36

SAFE SPACES

Page 176

FROM COMMITMENT TO ACTION
Actions will include

4Adopting an anti-racist approach to all we do
4Enabling young people to play a greater role in

decision-making for improvements to local estates

4Reinforcing safer design principles within new
developments

4Building new sustainable homes
4Implementing our CCTV and lighting strategy
4Applying planning principles for safe high streets
4Developing activity which promotes civic pride
and responsibility

4Creating digital programmes and projects

FROM ACTION TO OUTCOMES
The outcomes we will work towards
will include

4We will reduce the number of Black young

to engage young people as part of the council’s
commitment to full fibre connectivity and 5G

people and young adults who are disproportionately
impacted by serious youth violence due to structural
racism

4Developing an early intervention pathway for

4The impact of youth violence on young people will

reducing homelessness.

be reduced because they live in environments that

enable them to live and grow up safely

4Criminal activity on estates will be limited because
safer design principles have been applied in their
development

4Opportunities for criminal activity in high streets
and public spaces associated with serious youth
violence will be prevented

4Young people will enjoy the places where they live
and spend time and will take pride in them.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 37

OUR WORK IN PRACTICE

4Creating capacity to lead and develop effective
youth and young adult engagement throughout
the council’s housing estates

4Delivering a rolling programme of

4Developing safe cycle routes across the
borough to provide the option for young people
of a healthy alternative to public transport, which
has been highlighted as a conflict hotspot for
young people

4Improving the quality of information available
for the council and its partners by replacing
and transferring CCTV cameras from analogue
to digital

4Building smart homes that are safe and
welcoming and ensuring young people have
somewhere to live.

INTERVENE AND PREVENT4DISTRUPT AND DETER4EDUCATE AND TRAIN4RESPOND AND SUPPORT4ENGAGE AND INVOLVE4SAFE SPACES

Page 177

improvements to our parks which includes
rejuvenated play areas, more fitness opportunities
and refurbished sports areas to ensure that parks
are a desirable destination for young people

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 38

9 The difference we
will make

9.2
In addition, we hope that through the positive
improvements in safety brought about by the strategy,

there will be knock-on improvements in the physical
and mental health of young people and young adults.
9.3
We will evaluate the strategy; this means
checking whether it has been successful. When we do
this, we will make sure that we are looking at the right
outcomes, by including residents, staff and young people
in the process of deciding which outcomes to focus
on and how. Because the programme involves public
money, it is important that we know what success will
look like and how we will know we’ve achieved what
we set out to do.
9.4
We will measure success using a combination
of three approaches. First, we want to make sure that
the programmes we implement as part of the strategy
are being delivered as intended (monitoring and
performance management). Next, we want to check
that the interventions that are included as part of this
strategy are value for money, and have broader value
to young people and the community. Finally, we want to
assess whether the strategy actually benefits people by
improving safety in the community (impact evaluation).
In other words, it is about being able to attribute any
changes in community safety to the programme (as
opposed to other changes which might have occurred
at the same time).

Page 178

9.1
We want this strategy to improve the safety,
health and wellbeing of children and young people in
Lambeth. The specific outcomes we would like to achieve
through this strategy include:
• Reducing the number of young people and young
adults who are victims of violence
• Bringing down the number of young people and young
adults who enter the criminal justice system, and reduce
the negative effects and discrimination against young
people through the criminal justice system
• Increasing the number of young people and young
adults who are supported to achieve their educational
goals
• Seeing a greater number of young people and young
adults benefitting from sustained participation in
education, employment or training
• That improvements delivered by the strategy
positively affect all children and young people living in
Lambeth, including Black children and young people
• That young people and young adults from all
neighbourhoods in Lambeth will see the improvements
listed above, and that all residents feel safer in their
neighbourhoods
• That criminal gangs and those who seek to exploit
and harm young people will be tackled and stopped.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE 39

With local residents, academics and other experts,
we will develop a list of key questions we want the
evaluation to answer. We will draw together all the
different sources of information which may be relevant
to answering these questions (such as information
which is already being collected, such as on school
exclusions, court appearances and hospital records).
We will look closely through all the different available
methods for doing the evaluation, to select the ones
which we think are likely to be most useful and cost
effective. Parts of the evaluation plan could look at:
• using interviews to learn about the experiences
of young people and staff delivering the programme,
to develop a rich understanding of what was delivered,
what it was expected to do and how it was expected
to improve community safety

Once finalised, we will commission an
9.6
evaluation of the strategy which will be a combination
of independent research and feedback from our
communities and key stakeholders to report back
to residents and the council. This reporting stage is
important. The evaluation will help us learn:
• which benefits of the programme were short-lived
and which were more long-lasting
• which parts of the programme should be highest
priority for continued investment
• how we might change the programme as we
go forward to increase benefits/eliminate any
disproportionate impacts
• learn more about the fairness of the intervention,
including differences in impact between ethnic
groups, for example.
9.7
Reporting the evaluation is also important
to show that any benefits that we have found for the
programme are fairly and transparently assessed,
that the knowledge we have gained is useful for others
(such as other councils), and that we are accountable
for the programme.

Page 179

9.5
We are in the process of developing an
evaluation plan: this will describe how we determine
if the process has been successful and for whom.
We will create this plan by talking to young people and
families, as well as charities and other organisations, to
work out what the priorities are for learning about the
benefits of the programme.

• using interviews with young people and families
to understand in depth how the programme affected
their lives and how any changes in safety came about
• tracking the number of young people who were
victims of violence over time and trying to trace
whether this is an effect of the programme or not
(for example by comparing with boroughs not affected
by the programme or with Lambeth wards in the
past, before the programme was delivered). This
might involve joining different types of information
together, for example healthcare information and
neighbourhood data.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE / PAGE

Page 180

Page 181

Proposal Title *
Lambeth Made Safer

Author
Kristian Aspinall
Please provide name of lead author and/or those within project team who may be required to contribute to this assessment

Who will sign off the assessment?
Merlin Joseph
Please indicate who will be involved in approving this assessment. This will need to be signed off by the designated Head of Service or
Director

Q1a. What is changing?
We are changing how we work together to prevent serious youth violence through the development and
implementation of the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy. Our vision is to make Lambeth the safest place in
London to be a child, teenager or young adult. The goals we will work towards in order to realise this
vision over the next 10 years are that:
We will reduce the number of young people who are victims of violence.
We will reduce the number of young people involved in the criminal justice.
We will address the root causes of serious youth violence.
Our strategy is informed by the recognition of the role inequality, disadvantage and injustice plays in
perpetuating youth violence. Inequity, racism and discrimination have resulted in worse life chances for
Black African and Caribbean families. We also know that other forms of inequality have a bearing on
young people’s exposure to and involvement in serious youth violence. Financial and health
disadvantages, inequality affecting young people with special education needs and disabilities, young
people in care or leaving care or vulnerable girls and young women are all factors that required
consideration and action when seeking to tackle serious youth violence. Our strategy is underpinned by
the principle of equity, the concept of fairness and impartiality and a commitment to challenge inequality
in all that we do. It will also contains the following equality related priority: "we will tackle racism and
embed an anti‐racist approach, building equity across all communities".
One key aspect of this work is the link to the the partnership's other long term harm reduction strategy ‐
the Lambeth Violence Against Women and Girls strategy ﴾VAWG﴿. There is a known link between
witnessing and being a victim of domestic abuse, and potentially committing violence in later life. This
strategy acknowledges and aims to improve support for young people where VAWG is occurring in the
household. Equally, the borough's VAWG strategy is currently being refreshed and both aim to
compliment and support each other to deliver better outcomes.
By implementing the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy we aim to positively impact all groups, particularly
the vulnerable including those with protected characteristics. A primary focus of our work will be
ensuring that the voice of young people, particularly those with protected characteristics is heard and
influences all that we do, so that our ambition of positively impacting on their lives through the delivery
of this strategy is realised.

What is the most significant or key change taking place? Can you indicate the type of change in your response ﴾e.g.
policy/decision/strategy/ service/procedural/ geographic/procurement etc.﴿ so it is clear what is being equalities

Page 182

assessed? Why is this change happening? What do you aim to achieve? Can you clearly indicate what decision‐makers
are being asked to take a decision on?

Read more

Q1b. Who will be involved in approving this decision?
Cabinet will be asked to sign‐off the Lambeth Made Safer strategy on 30th
November 2020
Who else will be involved in signing‐off this decision?

Read more

Q2a. What do we know about the people who will be impacted by this
change?
Our strategy is primarily concerned with impacting upon young people aged 10 ‐ 25. We anticipate that
young people from all protected characteristic groups will be positively impacted, with particular regard
to the characteristics of age, race/ethnicity,disability, health and socio‐economic factors. The following
information outlines some of the key things we know about those who will be affected by the changes
the strategy will bring about:
Approx 63,210 children and young people under the age of 18 live in Lambeth ﴾19% of the
population﴿.
35,485 ﴾21%﴿ of Lambeth residents are under 20 51 % are boys, and 49 % are girls.
The under 20 population will grow by 3% to 36,651 by 2027.
Lambeth is the 5th most densely populated borough nationally.
63% of children and young people are from Black and minority ethnic communities. ﴾compared to
21% nationally﴿.
27% of children in Lambeth are living in poverty.
1,652 children and young people are known to Children’s Social Care and Youth Offending
Services.
There are approximately 1,800 children and young people with Education Health and Care plans
﴾EHC﴿ and at least 5,640 receiving support for special educational needs being educated in
Lambeth schools. These numbers do not include all the pre‐school children with additional needs,
and those aged 18‐25.
3,848 ﴾9.8%﴿ of 5‐16 years olds have a mental health disorder.
Lambeth had the highest numbers of victims of serious youth violence in London in 18/19.
Victims of serious youth violence classified as African & Caribbean make up 55% of all victims.
This has consistently been the case for the last three recording periods where African &
Caribbean people have overwhelmingly made up the majority of victims. White Europeans make
up the second majority of victims, making up 25% of all victims. The remaining 20% comprises
Southern European ﴾11%﴿, Asian ﴾6%﴿, Arabian / North African ﴾2%﴿ and Oriental ﴾1%﴿. Please
note these identifications are taken from Police Identity Codes which are determined by the police
during an incident and based on visual identity by the police, rather than self identification.
The majority of serious youth victims are aged between 20‐25, making 57.3% of all victims and
are predominantly male. There are 111 more male victims than female victims. Second largest
cohort of victims of serious youth violence are aged between 15‐19 and are overwhelmingly male
making up 21% of all victims.
47% of all accused of serious youth violence were classified as of African & Caribbean ethnicity
from 2017‐19. This has been historically the case with African & Caribbean cohort making up the
majority of victims and accused of serious youth violence in Lambeth. White Europeans form the
second largest cohort of accused making 14%.
Males form the majority of accused of serious youth violence and this can be split into two age
categories. 28% of male accused are aged between 15‐19, 31% are aged between 20‐25.
Although girls are a small minority of victims of serious youth violence, we continue to monitor
the frequency and intensity of female victims through regular performance data and crime
reporting. in other boroughs the number of girls as victims and perpetrators of serious youth
violence is rising, and although we are not seeing this shift to date we are continually looking out
for it.
In addition, gang related activity can see girls being exploited and harmed through associated

crimes such as being used to hold weapons or drugs, or sexual coercion. These cases are
significantly under‐reported.
White young people are under represented and Black young people are over represented when
comparing the youth offending population with the 10‐17 population.
White young people make up 12% of the offending population and 33% of the 10‐17
population.
Black young people and those from ethnic minority groups make up 88% of the offending
population and 67% of the 10‐17 population.
The most over‐represented ethnic group are Black young people. They make up 64% of the
offending population and 43% of the 10‐17 population.
The Serious Youth Violence Needs Assessment 2015 found that at least one third of teenagers
known to youth justice services had had childhood experiences that predisposed them to
violence: 38% had witnessed violence, 36% had suffered a significant bereavement, and 33% had
experienced abuse.
Children who offend or are at risk of offending have been identified as a subgroup experiencing
disadvantage, often at multiple levels.
Children and young people who offend are also more likely not to be in education, employment
or training. There is also an association between young people who have difficulties with
communication and youth offending; 60% of young offenders have communication difficulties.
The health and wellbeing needs of children and young people tend to be particularly severe by
the time that they are at the risk of receiving a community sentence and more so when they
receive custodial sentences.
Children with learning difficulties and neuro‐disability are overrepresented in the youth justice
system. Having these conditions can make it more difficult to cope with justice processes, such as
police interviews, court proceedings or compliance with the requirements of a community
sentence.
As young people are admitted to custody their needs ﴾including health needs﴿ are assessed.
Through this process, young people entering youth custody have been found to have
disproportionate health needs ﴾often undiagnosed or untreated﴿ when compared to the general
population, including mental health ﴾33%﴿, substance misuse ﴾including alcohol﴿ ﴾45%﴿, and
learning difficulties or disabilities ﴾32%﴿.
We recognise the need to understanding more about the needs and vulnerabilities of LGBTQI+
young people in relation to serious youth violence. We will work with relevant partners and
agencies to improve the gathering and analysis of data and intelligence to inform our work as
part of the implementation process of the strategy.
We wil look to continually strenthen our data and intelligence gathering processes through the
development of evaluation and performance systems outlined in Q4 to ensure we fully
understand the needs of those with protected characteristics and how our strategy impacts upon
them.

Page 183

Information sources: Strategic needs Assessments 2016 ‐ 2020, Lambeth Children and Young People's
Plan 2018‐2022, SEND Strategy 217‐2020, Youth Justice Partnership Board Performance Dashboard
Report Oct 2020 and Public Health England Improving health outcomes for vulnerable children and
young people report for Lambeth.
This information tells us that there are a range of often inter‐related issues re: inequality and
vulnerability that our strategy needs to understand and respond to including the needs of those with
protected characteristics which can be summarised as follows:
Issues in relation to racism and discrimination and the resultant impact on the life chances for
Black African and Caribbean families.
Issues in relation to early childhood and families, particularly early adverse life experiences;
Issues in relation to ‘socio‐health’ factors including the prevalence of poverty, deprivation,
learning and other disabilities and poor mental health.
We anticipate that vulnerable young people in general, and those with protected characteristics
associated with age, race/ethnicity,disability, health and socio‐economic factors in particular will be
positive impacted by our strategy.
This inter‐sectionality is a key aspect of violence against young people in Lambeth. It is not just that the
victims are predominantly young, black men of African and Caribbean heritage. They also are over
represented in terms of health, educational and socio‐economic disadvantages. Serious violence against
young people is a complex issue with many facets, and our work to tackle it is informed by all of those
inequalities and not just the primary identifiers. This health intersection is particularly important ‐ we
know that mental health victims are substantially over‐represented in the criminal justice system, and that
any attempt to reduce serious violence against young people without also looking at the health issues
behind it will not be successful.
Consultation
We carried out a variety of engagement activity to inform our serious youth violence
reduction programme, including live events such as the Hackathon and the Youth Jam in the Park. We
conducted the Serious Youth Violence Survey, questioning more than 500 young people aged from 10‐
25 across the borough in one of the largest listening exercises the council has ever undertaken. We have
also piloted a new resident involvement initiative in five wards across the borough. We held
online meetings for Lambeth Made Community and launch websites through which residents can draw

our attention to issues in their neighbourhoods. During summer 2020, we conducted a survey of more
than 100 young people to ask them about their experiences during the Covid‐19 lockdown. we also met
regularly with third sector groups and forums across the borough to gain their insight and input into the
work.

Page 184

We have used the information obtained from this activity, which includes direct references to issues of
inequality and discrimination, to increase our understanding of what young people feel are the root
causes of serious youth violence, how young people are perceived, how families have been impacted by
youth violence and what they have told us needs addressing to enable them to thrive. We have
translated this understanding into the priorities, goals, principles outcomes and commitments set out in
the strategy that we will seek to address through its implementation. The views of young people and
communities have informed the overall ambition to reduce disproportionality which is embodied in one
of the core principles of the strategy as follows:
Equity
We recognise the impact inequality, disadvantage and injustice of all kinds plays in perpetuating youth
violence. Decades of inequity, racism and discrimination have resulted in worse life chances for Black
African and Caribbean families. We also know that other forms of inequality have a bearing on young
people’s exposure to and involvement in serious youth violence. Financial and health disadvantages,
inequality affecting young people with special education needs and disabilities, young people in care or
leaving care or vulnerable girls and young women are factors that required consideration and action
when seeking to tackle serious youth violence. Our strategy is therefore
underpinned by the principle of equity – the concept of fairness and impartiality – and a commitment
to challenge inequality in all that we do.

What does your information tell you about the people who will affected by this change? Are protected groups
impacted? What information do you hold on the protected characteristics of the people affected by the change? ﴾Age,
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race/ethnicity, religion or belief, gender, sexual orientation,
health, socio‐economic, language﴿ Are there any gaps or missing information?

Read more

Q2b. How will they be impacted by the change?
The Lambeth Made Safer Strategy will postively impact on all our residents and communities with

particular regard to young people and young adults. They will be positively impacted because we wil
attending to the previously outlined vision, goals and priorities and also honour the following
commitments set out in the strategy:
INTERVENE EARLY AND PREVENTLambeth will be the safest place in London for children, teenagers and
young adults because communities and services work together to prevent youth violence by building on
and developing the local awareness, capacity and resilience to do so.
DISRUPT AND DETERLambeth will be the safest place in London for children, teenagers and young
adults because communities and services work together to deter young people and adults from
perpetrating violence and disrupt individual and group activity associated with youth violence.
EDUCATE AND TRAINLambeth will be the safest place in London for young people because they will feel
heard and empowered to make positive choices in their education, employment, training and
relationships.
RESPOND AND SUPPORTLambeth will be the safest place in London for children, young people and
young adults because services and communities will work together to support those who may be
affected by youth violence.
ENGAGE AND INVOLVELambeth will be the safest place in London for children, teenagers and young
adults because children, young people and communities are actively and fully engaged in identifying
and implementing solutions to address youth violence.
SAFE SPACESLambeth will be the safest place in London for children, teenagers, and young adults
because we work together to ensure our environment and our public spaces are safe and free of crime.
Our aim is to postively impact all young people with a particular focus on those who are
disproporionately impacted, or at risk of being impacted by serious youth violence including those with
protected characteristics. We will do this by delivering an implementation plan underpinned by our
principle of equity and the knowledge that inequity, racism and discrimination have resulted in worse life
chances for Black African and Caribbean families and the understanding that other forms of inequality
have a bearing on young people’s exposure to and involvement in serious youth violence. Financial and

health disadvantages, inequality affecting young people with special education needs and disabilities,
young people in care or leaving care or vulnerable girls and young women are factors that will also be
responded to through delivery of our strategy.

Page 185

It will also be shaped by the expressed views and experiences of young people with particular regard to
those with protected charateristics so that all activity is informed by their lived experiences and what
they tell us needs to change.
We anticipate that this positive impact will include the securing of outcomes such as:
A reduction in the number of Black young people and young adults who are disproportionately
impacted by serious youth violence.
A reduction in the number of young people involved in the criminal justice system year on year.
The number of young people impacted by serious youth violence will be reduced because they have
developed the skills, knowledge ability and awareness to safely negotiate risks associated with the
teenage years.
Fewer young people and young adults will be impacted by exploitation because because communities
and agencies work effectively together to identify and prevent the targeting and grooming process.
Fewer young people be draw into or impacted by youth violence because they have the aspirations,
confidence and education to progress and achieve.
A greater number of young people and young adults will benefit from sustained participation
in education, employment or training.
The impact of youth violence on young people will be reduced because they live in environments
that enable them to live and grow up safely.
The needs of individuals and groups with protected charateristices will be at the forefront of all planned
activity to secure these outcomes.

Would you assess the impact as positive, adverse, neutral? Do you have any uncertainty about the impact of your
proposal? Is there a likelihood that some people will more impacted than others? Can you describe the ways in which
they will be affected? How might this change affect our ‘general duty’

Read more

Q3a. How do you plan to promote and deliver any positive impacts of the
proposal?
The principles of fairness, equality of opportunity and positive relationships are embedded in the
Lambeth Made Safer Strategy as expressed through the following principle contained within the strategy
document:
EquityWe recognise the impact inequality, disadvantage and injustice of all kinds plays in perpetuating
youth violence. Decades of inequity, racism and discrimination have resulted in worse life chances for
Black African and Caribbean families. We also know that other forms of inequality have a bearing on
young people’s exposure to and involvement in serious youth violence. Financial and health
disadvantages, inequality affecting young people with special education needs and disabilities, young
people in care or leaving care or vulnerable girls and young women are factors that required
consideration and action when seeking to tackle serious youth violence. Our strategy is therefore
underpinned by the principle of equity the concept of fairness and impartiality and a commitment to
challenge inequality in all that we do.
We will measure the impact of our work and the positive outcomes secured via the production and
application of an outcomes and performance framework allied to an evaluation plan. This framework
and plan will include outcome measures and performance indicators to assess impact and evaluate our
work so lessons may be learned and built upon. Our 'engage and involve' workstream will ensure the
direct involvement of residents in the process of measuring the sucess of our work and the resultant
impact it has on its target beneficiaries. This includes an assessment of the anticipated positive impact
of individuals and groups with protected characteristics.
All strategy activity including the promotion of our principles, delivery of our implementation plan and
the achievement of outcomes will be promoted via all available channels in addition to a promotional
campaign designed and led by young people.
In addition, the Lambeth Made Community forums allow residents across the borough to be involved
with all aspects of our strategy and work. We will use these forums to not only promote the positive

change the strategy will deliver, but also to ensure residents are part of that change and are leading
action in their ward to improve community safety and resilience. By involving residents in the design,
delivery and leadership of our work we ensure that it will make a positive difference on the ground and
to the lives of people in Lambeth.

Page 186

How might the principles of fairness, equality of opportunity and positive
relationships be further promoted as a consequence of this proposal? How
do you propose to measure your positive outcomes and the benefits outlined
to find out if these have been achieved?

Read more

Q3b How do you plan to address and mitigate any negative impacts of the
proposal?
There are two main risks of negative impact from our work:
1﴿ Lack of delivery will significantly impact on all crime and disorder work across Lambeth. This strategy
acknowledges and aims to address deep seated, long term inequalities in Lambeth including systemic
racism. Acknowledging this issue and then failing to address it will cause significant community distrust
and lack of faith in the council, police and other partner agencies. The impact of us raising expectations
and then failing to meet them is significant, especially given the nature of the dis‐proportionality and
racism we aim to address.
2﴿ There is a risk that we focus exclusively on one cohort and as a result miss changes in demographics
and behavior which includes other disadvantaged groups. For example, if the number of girls as victims
of serious youth violence significantly rises over the coming years, but we do not shift our model of
delivery as we remain focused on young African and Caribbean men. We will mitigate this potential by
ensuring rigorous performance and data analysis as outlined in Q4 so that we are always sighted on
those most affected by violence against young people. In addition, community intelligence and
information on the impact of violence through the Lambeth Made Community forums will ensure we are
not just reliant on reported crime figures but can also hear from our residents directly on changes and
trends in violence in the borough.

What impact has this evidence had on what you are proposing? What can you do differently that might lessen the
impact on people within the timeframes i.e. development‐implementation? Who can help you to develop these
solutions?

Read More

Q4. How will you review/evaluate your proposal, mitigating actions and/or
benefits? Who will be responsible for this?
Our strategy will be overseen by a strategic board with responsibility for ensuring the Lambeth Made
Safer strategy is successfully implemented. It will ensure that all associated activity is reviewed and
evaluated in acordance with the processes outlined in Q3a. Performance indicators will include ﴾all with
associated analysis re: disproportionality﴿:
First Time Entrant to the Juvenile Justice System levels
Serious youth violence incident levels
Re‐offending rates
Custody rates
Participation in education, employment and training levels
Exclusion rates, including not just permanent exclusions but also looking at off‐rolling and other,
more hidden forms of young people not being present at school
An evaluation plan is in the process of being produced in collaboration with public health and external
academic input provided by a seconded research fellow from King's College, London. The evaluation
plan will be implemented as part of our 'test and learn' approach to determining whether the
programme has been successful ﴾and why, how, and for whom﴿. Evaluation results will be used to
improve the programme as it is implemented and to help make decisions about ongoing programme

activity. Success in relation to the impact of the strategy in addressing issues of inequality will be a key
component of the evaluation plan. Key to this will be the work done through Black Thrive and the
development of the Shared Measurement system, particularly for children and young people, to ensure
that our work is making the difference to the communities most affected by serious violence against
young people. Black Thrive are a key partner of the strategy as a whole and the evaluation work
specifically as part of our goal to ensure that we address inequality through the strategy,

Page 187

The views of our communities, residents and young people are essential to measuring the success of
this work. We are aiming to make significant improvements to inequality in the borough and seeing the
impact of that change on the ground and the experiences of our communities is key. Our new ward
based community resilience forums, Lambeth Made Community, are one way for residents to work with
us, lead on change in their neighbourhoods and to evaluate the impact of our work.
The voices of young people, particularly Black young men from the African and African‐Caribbean
community will be key to ensuring we are making a difference. As well as working to specifically hear the
voices of young people through Lambeth Made Community, we will also engage with existing young
people's reference groups aligned to the Youth Offending Servce, Lambeth Made for example and other
youth engagement forums in the borough.
Additionally, we will engage with various third sector organisations such as the Police Independent
Advisory Group ﴾IAG﴿, the Lambeth Safer Neighbourhood Board and other forums within Lambeth and
they will continue to be part of our delivery and evaluation.
A rigourous performance management process will be applied whereby operational activity is
systematically monitoring and evaluated via the production of regular progress reports, the
consideration of evidence of impact and the monitoring of performance data including information
relating to the impact of the strategic from an equalities perspective in general and consideration of the
needs of individuals and groups with protected charateristics.
The Board will be chaired by the Strategic Director of Children's Services.
Finally, to note that the data and information in this EIA will form part of our ongoing evaluation process.
Part of the process of evaluation and impact monitoring will be the data we have gathered and used
here. The data will be regularly monitored and evaluated to show the programs impact.

Who will you be accountable to for the above actions/outcome? How will those responsible know these actions have
worked? What performance indicators will you use to demonstrate this? Are there any other forms of evidence you can
use to support this assessment of their effectiveness?

Read more

Section to be completed by Sponsor/Director/Head of Service

Outcome of equality impact assessment

Read more

Comments from Sponsor/Director/Head of Service
This Equalities Impact Assessment is integral to our Lambeth Made Safer Strategy. It informs our
ambition and commitment to make Lambeth one of the safest boroughs in London by addressing the

root causes of serious youth violence as well as its impact. We recognise the bearing inequality,
disadvantage and injustice of all kinds including the inequality and discrimination experienced by
individuals and groups with protected characteristics plays in causing and perpetuating youth violence.

Page 188

The outcomes of this assessment will inform our ongoing work to impact positively on the lives of all
those affected by youth violence with particular regard to those disproportionately affected.
I endorse this assessment and offer my personal commitment to contribute to the collective leadership
required to deliver the positive changes referenced within it.

Submit for approval
Pending

Executive Approval
Pending

Attachments
Close

